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AYM Syntex

THE STRENGTH WITHIN

AYM Syntex Limited is a Leading Multi Polymer

Specialty Yarn Manufacturer Specializing in

Texturizing | Draw | Dyeing
Twisting

. of Polyester & Nylon yarns oo 5

THE BUILDING BLOCKS FOR AYM'S SUSTAINED FUTURE GROWTH
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1. SCALING UP OF THE STRATEGIC BUSINESS

“INTRODUCED ADDITIONAL BCF & IDY LINEsi/.'E

BULK CONTINUOUS FILAMENT YARN (BCF)

BCF Production Capacity Increased by ~ 50%
Added Capability of Tri-Color Yarn
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Bath Carpet Tufted Woven (7]
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INDUSTRIAL YARN (IDY)

2.5 Times more Production in Industrial Yarns Since Last Year
Only Indian Manufacturers to Produce Fine Denier High Tenacity Industrial Yarn

Sewing Coated Wet Ropes &
Threads Fabrics Filteration Nets

APPLICATIONS
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AUTOMOTIVE YARN . SEWING THREAD

Octalobal Capability for Matt Look Launch of PTT Sewing Thread in the Global Market
Offering Recycled GRS Certified Yarns :
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TEXTILE YARN

Focus on Production of Solution Dyed Micro-Yarns for Upholstery & Home Furnishing;
Polyester & Nylon Mono Yarns for Dress Materials & Sheer curtains & Nylon Yarns for
Sarees, Hosiery & Garments

Apparels & Home Hosiery  Automotive
Fashion Textiles
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Sarees & Denim Seamless
Dress Materials Garments
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2. STRENGTHENING THE CORE BUSINESS

Re-equipped the Traditional Business to Meet the Ever
Changing Market Conditions

Redefined Existing Production Goals & Attained Process
Efficiency

Streamlined Processes to Attain Maximum Qutput from
Existing Capacities

Strengthened the Conventional Dyeing Business Unit at
Palghar




4. INTERNATIONALIZATION

Touching Lives Acros§‘
/' 50+ Countries . ©
gy v L RRE
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-FY 17-18

Export Share Increased from 5
3%% to'35% in FY 201819

35% - FY 18-19

32%

Export Share (%)

5. COST & RESOURCE OPTIMIZATION

Restructured the Teams to
Ensure a Focused Approach
Towards Our Vision

Robust Training &
Development Across
2 Plants & Head Office

Enhanced Operating
Efficiency Through Cost
Rationalization
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6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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Implemented Initiatives that would Benefit the Underprivileged
Community Members

Supported 2000+ - Installed 20 Water :
. Community Members | Purification Units ' | Supported 110

" Through Safe Drinking | @  Across Palghar& | . Students Through
Water Initiative. Silvassa. Quality Education.

' Ensuring Continuity of

Education for Pre- School .

- Students by Admitting - 100% Beneficiary
themto Grade 1in ' | Happiness Achieved.
a Near by School.




MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO'S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

Our company has faced strong headwinds over the last 3 years. The environment has been difficult to say the least.
We have gone through major events some of which happen once in a lifetime.

Several instances of total disruption of domestic and export demand due to demonetization, GST & other
political factors such as the Turkey coup.

Sharp drop in realizations due to sudden increase in domestic supply (increase in local nylon capacity) as well
asimports asaresultof discontinuance of anti-dumping duties.

Serious disruptions in supply chain including but not limited to a global shortage of caprolactam, chemicals &
dyes & several domestic supplier insolvencies.

Wildly volatile raw material prices particularly nylon, sometimes fluctuating by~50% within a span of a quarter.
Sharpincreasein costsin energy & consumables in both plants.

| do believe that our business has been caught in the wrong end of the cycle over the last 3 years. As | write this
letter, the Indian economy has been through a major NBFC crisis & is currently going through a slowdown. While we
need to be aware & prepared for the fact that things might become worse before they become better, | do believe
that over time, things will go back to being more “normal.”

In the last financial year, we have been able to improve quarter after quarter & generated healthy operating cash
flows. While improving product mix (in line with our vision) has certainly played its part, cost rationalization,
efficiency improvement & better asset utilization have also played an importantrole.

While the external environment has been nothing short of challenging, our business itself has undertaken a
massive transformational journey. The core essence of this journey has always been to create a more defensible

business, one where market forces outlined above
have a lesser impact on our business. At the heart of
this goal is to service quality conscious customers
with a consistent quality product in a timely fashion
such that customers can rely on us just like they
would rely on their developed economy European or
American suppliers. Typically, these are areas where
only few Asian suppliers have been successful
however, we aim to do this whilst creating innovative
products which give us an additional edge.

Despite the difficult environment, we have
continued to remain firm on this journey of
transformation. We have invested heavily in human
resources, R&D, systems, infrastructure both hard &
soft as well as equipment & capacity. It is easy to get
defocused in a tough operating environment but |
am pleased that we stuck to our vision. As a result,
we have made steady progress & some of this hard
work is starting to manifest.

1. Our volumes of strategic products as well as
share of exports have started to increase &
contribute to the overall share of volumes &
profitability. Sales in Wonderfeel, Sewing
Threads, Industrial Yarns (IDY), Comfeel,
Automotive & Solution Dyed Nylon BCF have
been growing at a rapid pace. The encouraging
news is that we are expecting significant
increase in volumes in the coming year as major
kinks associated with stabilizing these products
have all beenironed out.
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2. The progress in creating a cohesive customer centric team in Rakholi has been phenomenal. Further,
management systems such as advanced production planning through merchandisers, statistical process
control & visual management & better labour engagement through kaizen programs, training, reward &
recognition initiatives, etc. have resulted in better operational efficiency. | can also see the customer centricity
percolating through the organization at not just the Business & HOD level but also down the line. While there is
room for improvement, focus on consistent quality & timely delivery together with prompt customer service is
at a level never seen before in this organization. For the businesses that we are reaching for, this would create
significant barriers for other Asian suppliers.

3. We have done well on our operational excellence initiative — the Rakholi textile plant is operating with lower
downgrades, leftovers & wastages & OEE has inched up considerably. We have successfully reduced our costin
several areas. The plant has also done small debottlenecking operational capex & focused on increasing speeds
in a controlled manner. This has allowed us to increase the throughput without adding capacity. Several
production records are being created across departments through the course of the year & | am hopeful that we
will outdo some of these numbers in the year ahead.

4. This year more than INR 100 crore of capex has been commissioned particularly in IDY, BCF, Cabling & Heat
Setting. This has not only added capacity but also new capability in the form of specialized industrial yarns as
well as tricolor BCF yarns to help us stay a step ahead of competition. Our team has done afine job to ensure that
this large project has been commissioned successfully & is now ready to add to our bottom line through new
strategic businessin the coming year.

As | have mentioned before, ours is a business with relatively higher gross margins (& also higher fixed costs). This
means operating leverage is a double-edged sword. As our capacity utilizations go up, they start to contribute
disproportionately to the bottom line. Despite the improvement highlighted above, we still have sizeable low
hanging fruits to take advantage of:

1. Our Palghar business continues to perform below potential. | believe we can increase average throughput
there by 10-15%. We have taken the initial steps necessary by bringing in a new business head &
strengthening the sales team. Our new carpet developments have received a good response from customers
& | believe this area will become an important & strategic segmentfor us going forward.

2. Last year we expanded our capacity in BCF by more than 50%. Part of this new capacity has remained
unutilized. | believe however, that with all the new customer developments & samplings that have taken
place in the last 6-12 months, we should be able to fill our lines with business from our strategic customers
by Q2/Q3in the upcoming year.

3. We have only just begun our journey on the throughput improvement initiatives in the Textile Division in
Rakholi. Without incurring any major capex, | believe we have the ability to grow volumes by 10-15% from the
numbers that we achieved in FY19.

4. Some of the cost rationalization initiatives that we had commenced last year are ongoing. | hope to see the
impact of this in the coming year.

Overall, | believe that AYM now stands at an important inflection point. | believe that the low hanging fruits that |
have highlighted above are sufficient to contribute to meaningful growth not just in the coming year but the one
after next too. With all our major capital expenditures behind us, we should be able to use a bulk of our operating
cash flows towards reduction of debt & strengthening of the balance sheet leading to interest cost reduction & more
free cash flows. As our story plays out, the quality & sustainability of our business & earnings is likely to be far more
superior than the past.

We stand committed to the goal of creating a world class defensible business by making AYM an innovative,
competitive and mostimportantly, areliable and consistent supplier of synthetic yarns.

On afinal note, | would, once again, like to take this opportunity to thank all members of the AYM family including
board of directors for their relentless efforts towards excellence and continuous improvement & extend my sincere
gratitude to the shareholders for their continued patience and beliefin us.

Best Regards,

Abhishek Mandawewala

I&\\W\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\.



KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net Sales ZinCr Export % to Turnover %
FY 14-15 834.9 FY 14-15 22
FY 15-16 800.9 FY 15-16 25
FY 16-17 779.3 FY 16-17 21
FY 17-18 850.4 FY 17-18 32

FY 18-19 - 992.0 FY 18-19 35

EBITDA ZinCr PAT ZinCr
FY 14-15 86.9 FY 14-15 42.8
FY 15-16 108.5 FY 15-16 47.8
FY 16-17 1011 FY 16-17 40.0
FY 17-18 69.3 FY 17-18 7.9

Fy1s-19 71.5 FY 18-19 5.8

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) % Market Capitalization ZinCr
FY 14-15 19.6 FY 14-15 134.8
FY 15-16 21.9 FY 15-16 378.5
FY 16-17 15.2 FY 16-17 312.7
FY 17-18 6.8 FY 17-18 235.4

FY18-19 6.8 FY18-19 163.4

KEY RATIOS FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 AAVAT] FY 18-19
Debt Equity Ratio 1.35 1.05 1.01 0.86 1.03
Current Ratio* 1.37 1.52 1.56 1.49 1.20
Net Debt / EBITDA 1.77 1.37 1.93 3.18 3.53
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.78 1.85 1.59 1.00 0.98
Interest Coverage Ratio 2.79 3.92 3.09 1.30 1.16
Fixed Assets Coverage Ratio 1.13 1.46 1.46 1.49 1.51

*Current Ratio excludes Term Debt
Figures for FY 18-19, FY 17-18 and FY 16-17 are as per Ind AS; figures for earlier years are as per Indian GAAP
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QUARTERLY FINANCIALS

2018 - 2019 ZinCr
Three Months Ended Annual
PARTICULARS
30-Jun-18 30-Sep-18 31-Dec-18  31-Mar-19 FY 2019
Total Revenue 2311 251.8 245.3 263.8 992.0
Other Income 0.8 2.6 0.4 2.1 5.9
Total Expenditure 215.5 236.1 225.8 242.9

Earning Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation

& Amortization (EBITDA) 16.4 18.3 19.9 23.0
""" Finance Charges 10 18 93 102
""" Depreciaton &1 88 98 103
””” Profit Before Tax (PBT) 071 16 08 24
””” Tox Expense (Net of MAT credit entitement) 04 02 o1 (1)
””” Profit After Tax (PA) 03 14 01 35
""" Other Comprehensive Income (Vetof Ta) ~ (00) 00 00  (01)
""" Total Comprehensive Income 03 14 08 34
””” Equity Share Capital 456 458 456 456
””” Eaning Per Share (EPS)-3 01 03 02 08
2017 - 2018 ZinCr
Three Months Ended Annual
PARTICULARS
30-Jun-2017  30-Sep-2017  31-Dec-2017  31-Mar-2018 FY 2018
Total Revenue (et of Excise) 205.0 190.6 2211 221.1 850.4
""" Otherlcome 26 08 12 11 [
””” Total Expendire 1924 1750 2005 2007
S T T DO 153 e wa e
""" Finance Charges 62 62 13 82
""" Depreciaton 84 718 83 85
””” ProfitBefore Tax (PBT) 05 24 32 23
””” Tox Expense (Net Of MAT credit entitement) —~ (0.1) 10 01 (L)
””” Profit After Tax (PA) o1 13 25 35
""" Other Comprehensive Income (Vetof Ta) ~ (0.) 00 (02 03
""" Total Comprehensive Income 06 13 23 31
””” Equity Share Capital 392 32 392 45§
© Eaming Per Share (EPS)-X 02 03 06 09

*EPS is not lized for quarterly

IMW.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

This discussion covers the financials results, operational
performance and other developments for the year
ended 31st March 2019 in respect of AYM Syntex
business. The Management Discussion and Analysis
{MD&A) should be read in concurrence with the Audited
Financial Statements of AYM Syntex Limited, and the
notes for the year ended March 31, 2018,

Some statements in this discussion describing
projections, estimates, expectations or outlook may be
forward looking. Actual resulis may, however, differ
materizlly for those stated on account of various factors
such as changes in government regulations, tax
regimes, economic developments, exchange rate and
interest rate movements, impact of competing products
and their pricing, product demand and supply
constraints within India and the countries within which
the company conducts jts business. The Company
assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify
or revise any forward - looking statements, on the basis
of any subseguent developments, information or
events.

Economic Overview:
Global Economy

During the first half of 2018, economic activity was
accelerating in almost all regions of the world and the
Global economy was projected to grow at 3.9 percent
in 2018 and 2019. During the latter part of the year,
much has changed: the global financing conditions
tightened, industrial production moderated, trade
tensions remained elevated, and some large emerging
market and developing economies experienced
significant financial market stress, all contributing to a
significantly weakened global expansion, especially in
the second half of 2018. Faced with these headwinds,
the recovery in emerging market and developing
economies has lost momentum.

With this weakness expected to persist into the first
half of 2018, the World Economic Cutlock (WEO)
projects a decline in growth in 2019 for 70 percent of
the global economy. Global growth, which peaked at
close to 4 percent in 2017, softened to 3.6 percent in
2018, and is projected to decline furtherto 3.3 percent
in 2019. Although a 3.3 percent global expansion is

14

still reasonable, the outlook for many countries is very
challenging, with considerable uncertainties in the
short term. With improvements expectad in the second
half of 2019, global economic growth in 2020 is
projected to return to 3.6 percent. Bayond 2020 growth
will stabilize at around 3.5 percent, bolstered mainly
by growth in China and India and their increasing
weights in world income.

Growth in advanced ecanomies will continue to slow
gracually as the impact of USfiscal stimulus fades and
growth tends toward the modeast potential for the
group, given ageing trends and low productivity
growth. Growth in emerging market and developing
economies will stabilize al around 5 percent, though
with considerable variance between countries as
subdued commodity prices and civil strife weaken
praspects for scme. In this difficult environment, it is
of paramount importance for emerging market and
developing economies to rebuild policy buffers while
laying a stronger foundation for future growth by
boosting human capital, promaoting trade integration,
and addressing the challenges associated with
informality,

Economy growth projections
Expected GDP growth ratio
Country / Region 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

India 7.2 7.0 1.7 o 4 7.8
China 62 B.2 6.2 60 58 56
United States 28 25 1.8 17 15 14
European Union 22 20 1.8 L B A .
Global Growth 36 33 36 35 35 a5

Statisties Source: IMF report, Warld Bank, IBEF
Indian Economy

The macro environment in India was less eventful
during the year as compared to previous few years
when Key structural reforms aimed at formalizing the
economy were implemented, The Indian economy
started the fiscal year 2018-19 with a healthy 8.2 percent
growth in the first quarter on the back of domestic
resilience. Growth eased to 7.3 percent in the
subsequent quarter due to rising global volatility, largely
fram financial volatility, normalized monetary policy in
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advanced economies, exiernalities from trade disputes,
and investment rerouting, Further, it got majorly
impacted by the volatile crude oil prices and
depreciation of domestic currency with recovery in
some advanced economies caused faster investment
outflows, The non-banking financial sector which has
played a vital role in meeting credit needs as been under
stress on account of defaults thaerehy tightening
financial conditions and raising the cost of capital.

Despite softer growth, the Indian economy remains one
of the fastest growing and possibly the least affected
by global turmoil. In fact, the effects of the
aforementioned external shocks were contained in part
by India’s strong macroeconomic fundamentals and
policy changes including amendmeants to the poliey/
code related to insclvency and bankruptey, bank
recapitalization, and foreign direct investment. This
growth in FY 19 was achieved even at the backdrop of
the several challenges faced during the year.

Though there has been a deceleration in GOP growth
lately, projections of a recavery from the next year are
encouraging. The Indian economy is likely to sustain
the rebound in FY2018-19 and growth is projected to
be in the 7.2 percent to 7.5 percent range and is
estimated to remain upward of 7 percent for the year
ahead. The recovery in growth to be supported by
continued pickup in investment and robust
consumption amid a more expansionary stance of
monetary policy and some expected impetus from fiscal
policy. India has already surpassed France to become
the sixth-largest economy. By 2019, it may becomethe
fifth-largest economy, and possibly the third-largestin
coming years.

In the short term, the growth outlook is positive, an
account of subdued inflation expectations, lower repo
rates, sustained resolution of stressed assets, better
governance of public sector banks and a reform-
focused policy framework. Growth in longer term will
depend onthe econamy's ability to consclidate its fiscal
debt, expand and utilize capacities, create jobs and
promote private investment in tandem with
consumption. Despite the positive cutlocok, the
economy remains vulnerable to domestic and
geopolitical risks, especially economic and political
changes that can affect relative prices and hurt current
and fiscal account deficit.

Industry Overview
Global Textile Industry

The global textile and apparel industry is continuously
evolving. Over the years, it has witnessed multiple shifts
in consumption and production patterns, including
shifts in geographical manufacturing hubs, as the
industry is driven by the availability of cheap labour.
The global textile market size was valued at USD 925.3
billion in 2018 and is expected to register a CAGR of
4.24% over the forecast years. The textile and apparel
trade is predicted to grow at a CAGR of 3.7% during
the period 2018-28. During this period, the increase in
apparel trade is expected to be at a CAGR of 4.5% and
textiles al a CAGR of 2 5%.This growth is attributed to
the high demand for apparels, particularly in the
developing economies including India, China,
Bangladesh, and Mexico, as a result of growing
population, Moreover, rising disposable income levels
and rapid urbanization in these countries have led to
the increased number of retail outlets and supermarksts;
thereby, supparting overall market growth. The textile
industry’'s growth will largely depend onthe growth of
other industries such as automobile, apparel and
housing, as well as changing lifestyles.

Even though apparel industry is dominated by
developed markets of EU and the US, the emerging
markets led by countries such as India, China, Russia
and Brazil are becoming consumption markets.
Simultaneously, India and China have strong textile
manufacturing base, and thus are emerging as both
sourcing and consuming nations. Polyester is projected
to expand at a CAGR of 4%, interms of revenue, from
2019 to 2025. Such fibers are characterized by high
strength, quick drying properties, and high chemical &
wrinkle resistance. Owing to these advantages,
polyester is one of the most commonly used products
in the market. Nylon is expected to exhibit the highest
CAGR during the forecast years due to product
properties, such as excellent elasticity, high resilience,
and low moisture absorbency,

Source: Grand view segrch [Aprif 2019)
Domestic Textile Industry

India’s textiles sector being one of the oldest industries
in Indian economy, estimated at around US$ 150 billion
in 2017, is expected to reach USS 223 billion by 2021
growing at a CAGR of 12.28% betwesn 2009-21, By
2022, Indian textile sector will require additional 17 Mn.
workforce.The textiles sector has witnessed a spurtin
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investment during the last five years. The industry
lincluding dyed and printed) attracted Foreign Direct
Investment (FDI) worth US$ 2.09 billion during April
2000to December 2018,

India’s overall textile exports during FY 2017-18 stood
at USE 39.2 billion and is expected to increase to US$
82.00 billion by 2021 growing at 8 CAGR of 17% from
US$E 31.65 billion in FY19 till January 2019, The sector
contributed 15 per cent to the export earnings of India
in 2017-18.

Textile and apparel industry in India
(US S billion)

250 713
200
- 137 150
108
103
:Ju I
(i ]
2015 016 2017 JOZLF
Textile and apparel exports from India
(Us $ billion)
100.00 = —nt R17.4% | -
| CAGR I’ _ >
B0.00
60.00
39,00 3820
40,00 e 3LE5
e F¥1l7 FY18 Fylgn 2021 E

E - Estmate, F - Forcast, - Till Jan 2019
Source : [BEF Feb 2018

Apart from exports, even the Indian domestic textile
and apparel market is also substantial at an estimated
figure of USD 100 billion in FY 2018-19 growing at a
CAGR of 10% since FY 2005-08. The growth in the
disposable income of the middle and lower middle-
class sactions of the society has led to continuous
growth of demand of textile and apparel in India. This
growth in demand is expected to continue at 12% CAGR
to reach USD 220 billion by 2025.

India remains the second largest producer of manmade
fibre (MMF) and filaments globally after China, The
country’'s MMF industry has been wading through a

16

lean phase for the last few financial years, In the last
couple of years, the industry witnessed softened
demand due to rise in imports, greater competition,
fall in realizations and short-term loss of praduction
owing to demonetization and GST implementation.
With the industry now stabilizing, the demand from
downstream industry - apparels and made-ups from
both domestic and international markets, has only
marginally picked up in the last few months.

Key features of Indian Textiles Sector

Supply Despite some pick-up in demand from
both global and domestic markeis, most
new capacities in the textile segments
are not cperating at full capacitias

Demand High far premium and branded products

due to increasing per capita disposable
incaome.

Barriers to entry Superior technology, skilled and
unskilled labour, distribution netwark,
access to global custamers.

Bargaining power Because of oversupply inthe unorganised

of suppliers market suppliers have little bargaining
power. However, premium products
and branded players continue to garner
higher margins

Bargaining power Domestic customers - Low for premium

of customers and branded product segments, Global
customers- High due to presence of
alternate low-cost sourcing
destinations.

Competition High, Very fragmented industry.
Competition from other low cost

producing nations is likely to intensify.

Business Overview:

Owver the last few yaars, the sectors we opearate in, got
impacted by warious macro, regulatory and policy
developments like GST, Demonetization etc. along with
changing market, campetitor dynamics and Industry
pricing pressures. While most ot thess changes are
expected to be beneficial in the long run. However,
the pace of change adversely impacted the perfermance
of our sector over the last few years. The year 2018-19
was yet another challenging year for the textile industry,
with the environment not fully recavered from the
strong headwinds faced in last few years on account
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of certain structural reforms and macro-economic
factors coupled with the challenging input cost
environment and liquidity crisis.

Our Company Sales for the year 2018-19 have grown
in value & volumes, the company also witnessed
growth in EBIDTA but profits have declined year-on-
year. In the last financial year, we have been able to
improve quarter after quarter with last quarter ending
on a higher note on account of improved product mix,
efficiency improvement and better asset utilization,
however, the overall yearly performance got affected
by raw material price volatility, delay in
operationalization of new capacity in BCF. Going
forward, with input costs of raw material looking stable
and no major Project capex in pipeline, focus is to
generate higher cash flows through operations which
will entail reduce our net debt and improve the Balance
sheet. AYM business can be categorized into three,
each one of which forms the significant part of the
Topline

Nylon and Polyester

In the textile segment (Nylon and Polyester) the
sluggishness of demand continued from previous year
coupled with extreme volatility in raw material prices
during the year as well as a sharp influx of new capacity
in the segment leading to scenario of demand supply
mismatch thereby creating pressure on margins and
dragging the profitability. However government took
course corrective steps during the year like allowing
input tax credit on fabrics, increase of Anti-dumping
duty on certain end products which helped in curbing
the imports to a certain extent. On the other side the
depreciating rupee has led to increase in RM cost which
became increasingly difficult to pass this on to
customers in the textile space.

During the second half of the year, situation improved
with input raw material costs getting stabilized, certain
initiatives on cost front being worked out and focus on
getting improved throughput from the existing capacity,
however rising power costs in Silvassa region has
negated the effect of some of these benefits accrued.
While volumes with new strategic businesses like
automotive, Industrial yarn (IDY) and sewing thread have
increased during the year, it also took time to stabilize
the required quality resulting in higher downgrades,
wastages and leftovers which created lower yields and
impacted our profitability. The company has increased
the capacity in IDY segment during the year which has
also picked up pace and the new product development
is expected to provide stability to this part of the
business. Coming year is expected to have increased
with the improved product mix.

Conventional Dyeing

Conventional Dyeing business of the company is hosted
at the Palghar Plant, which during the year lost
productivity initially on account of shortage of raw
material supply, frequent power tripping as well as
slowness in domestic demand. The plant continued to
operate at significantly lower utilization levels as
comparedto installed capacity. Several initiatives were
taken to de-bottleneck upstream process including
business development activities in the carpet segment,
strengthening the talent pipeline on sales as well as
operations front. Maharashtra Government announced
power concessions in the textile policy during the year,
the benefit of which will start accruing in FY 20. Focus
in the coming year will be to utilize the plant capacity
to the full potential and create a healthy order book as
the conventional dyeing business has the potential of
giving highest return on capital employed and
disproportionate returns on any incremental production
and sales among others.

Bulk Continuous Filament Yarn (BCF):

The company added significant capacity in BCF during
the year resulting in increase of production capacity
by 50% with a part of expansion caters to Tri-colour, a
unique differentiated product with high margins in
order to reinforce its market leadership in India and
increase its footprints in international market. New lines
got stabilized in this year and is expected to get fully
utilized to add to our bottom line through new strategic
business in the coming year. Focus on quality and
branding over the last few years has started giving
positive results by way of adding business in the
strategic products namely solution dyed Nylon and
Comfeel.

Although, the prime focus of this year was on filling
up new capacities (post expansion) which is going to
continue in the first half of coming year, the later part
of the year our focus will be to improve margins with
increased share of differentiated products, better sales
mix, new product development as well as utilizing Tri
colour line to its full potential.

AYM now stands at an inflection point where we believe
that the focus on BCF expansion capacity utilization
with the improved product mix having threshold
margins and increase in volumes in different segments
without incurring significant capex coupled with cost
rationalization initiatives will make us stand in better
state to deliver sustainable profitable growth in the
medium term. Our future growth and value creation
will be driven by our differentiation strategy
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based on innovation, customer centricity, sustainability
and focus on the exports market. Qur differentiated
business model will enable sustained revenue growth
despite pricing pressures and regulatory concerns that
impacted the industry recently.

Human Resources

Our company believes that talent is our most valuable
asset, and that the ultimate identity and success of aur
company lies in the excellent quality of our people and
their commitment towards attaining our arganizational
goal. Human Resources Business Partners are
responsible for supporting talent management, data
analysis, employee engagemeant, employee relations
and guidance, performance management,
compensation and benefits and learning and
development.

With this objective, A¥YM has taken several steps in this
direction like Building depth of talent across levels to
build capability for business by recruiting relevant
talent. With resource optimization in mind, it has also
waorked upon restructuring the roles to ensure focused
approach towards key goals, We have also identified
the key talents across the organization and curated
various strategic programs across the levels. The key
initiative undertaken are:

« Intraduction of the Employee stock option (ESOP)
Scheme for the leadership team and select key
resources

« Devised lgarning journey programs for both the
Middle and Junior level management to make the
key performers future ready who take up
responsibilities of the next level.

» Introduced leadership talk series across the locations
to develap the culture of transparency, where the
performance of the organization, its association with
the major brands, and its reach in the global market
was shared,

+ Technical & Behavioral training schedules were
organized for Rakholi & Palghar plant.

+ Several other initiatives such as Open House &
recagnition programmes were done in plants,

With People focus as one of our core values, AYM
continues to prograss an the tollowing strategic areas
in order to be able to leverage the potential of its human
capital:

Talent Management

Building and developing our talent pool is our
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continuous and top priority and we have been
successtul in atiracting diverse talent with sound
expertise, new perspectives and experience, Our
initiative to participate in various market studies enable
us to stay updated with market trends.

Rewards and Recognition

At AYM, we pride ourselves in our people and their
achievements. It is therefore important to us that we
recognize their hard work, dedication and commitment.
Qur Rewards and Recognition program provides a
framework for encouraging and recognizing long
service and exemplary performance of our employees.
The erganization has a monthly and on the spot Reward
and Recognition Program which recognizes and
appreciates talent.

Celebrations & Health awareness:

At AYM, we firmly believe thal celebration is a part of
our work culture. Festivals bring employees closer and
help improve work relationships. Celebrations provide
a well-desarved break and help employees to remain
engaged.

Health and Awareness sessions were conducted with
the intent of sharing the importance of a positive lifestyle
and to ensure that our employees take efforts to
maintain a work-life healthy balance. We organize yearly
health checkups for our employees.

Performance Management

We follow a comprehensive performance evaluation
process for annual reviews. Employees across levels
benefit from the development criented approach of this
system. This practice helps us identify the capabilities
of employees and |leverage the same. |t also helps us
to suggest and plan development in the identified areas
through training. For this, a Training Need Analysis is
captured. A structured performance evaluation
calendar was launched.

Succession Planning

At AYM, we promote an atmosphere of inclusion, by
encouraging the next level of employees to take higher
respansibilities. Managers along with Hurnan Resources
formulate a customized grooming and orientation of
high potentials, by carefully planning their work
experiences. Thair skills and capabilities are developed
through further training and mentoring.

Learning and Development

Training is necessary for the employees’ development
and progress; this motivates them to work not only at
an individual level but also at an organizational level.



STRATEGIC REPORT STATUTORY REPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Technical and behavioral training programs are
organized for employees on need-basis by internal and
external faculties. Employees are also sent for seminars
and job related trainings arranged by specialized
centers. We have also devised |learning journey
programmeas for middle and Junior level managemeant.

Our focus over the next few years would be to retain
Talent, Strengthening Culture of Performance,
Collaboration and Innovation, Robust Talent
Management with defined roles and goals to ensure
alignment with our vision and helps us in creating a
Future-ready Organization.

Risk Management

Risk is integral to any business and AYM has established
arabust risk management system to identify, measure,
manage and mitigate business risks and opportunities,
The company has incorporated processes and systems
to proactively monitor, manage and mitigate these risks
along with appropriate review mechanisms. We
continuously evolve our risk management system which
is enabling our business to achieve its strategic
objectives; and deliver sustainable, long-term growth
and a commitment to responsible business practices.
Risk-aware organization is better equipped to maximize

the shareholder value. The key cornerstones of our Risk
Management Framewaork are:

+« Periodic assessment and prioritization of risks that
affect the business of the Company;

« Development and deployment of risk mitigation
plans to reduce the vulnerability to the prioritized
risks;

« Focus on both the results and efforts required to
mitigate the risks;

« Defined review and monitoring mechanism
wherein the functional teams, the top management
and the Board review the progress of the mitigation
plans;

«  Wherever, applicable and feasible, defining the risk
appetite and install adequate internal controls to
ensure that the limits are adhered to.

The Internal Risk Committee constituted by the
management assists the Board in monitaring and
reviewing the risk management plan, implementation
of the risk management framework of the Company
and such other functions as Board may deem fit. Some
of the key risks are listed below, with the appropriate
actions that have beeninitiated to mitigate, transfer or
accept the risk {if need be).

Costs Volatility Risk .

Quality Risk .

Competition Risk .

s  Maintaining strong

Employee risk .

Increasing share of value-added products & product differentiation
« Maintaining cost competitiveness through efficiency improvement
« Developing alternate source of vendor

Fully-equipped laboratory, strong technology backup

« Capable quality team ensures quality of products.

« Firm guality measures in place

Enhancing the brand image of the Company by focusing on R&D, guality, cost,
timely delivery and customer service

« Changing the sales mixes from commodity to the specialized, differentiated
products and quality conscious customers

« relationship with clients

Building depth of talent across levels to build capability

« Launching various emplaoyee retention schemes like ESOPs
« Employer branding efforts aon social media to attract talent

« Arranging employee engagement activities to strengthen relationships and develop
a pleasant work environment
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Product Development Risk

study

Cautious approach to new product introductions backed by an intense market

» Lotof prototypes &sampling to maintain a healthy pipeline and limit the downside

risks

« New investrnents only when the product is commercially sucecessful

Macroeconomic factors .
adverse impact.

Continuous monitoring of Govt, policies and takes measures to minimize any

« Diversification of sales across geographies as well as diversification of product
offerings to reduce trade barriers impact

Forex movement risk .

Maintaining an equilibrium betwean exports receipts and import paymeants - a

natural hedge against currency fluctuations.
» Taking forward contracts to safeguard against currency volatility

» Encouraging sales in USD as against local currency of export country

Internal Control system and its Adequacy

The internal control system encompasses the
implementation of standard policies and processes,
maintenance of an appropriate audit program with
internal control enviranment, effective risk monitoring
and Management Information Systems (MIS] and other
aspects that taken together, facilitate effective and
efficient operation, guality of internal and external
reporting, compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Company has a strong Internal Control System,
commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of
its operations. The Internal Audit Department monitors
and evaluates the efficacy and adeguacy of internal
controls in the Company, its compliance with operating
systems, accounting proceduras and policies at all
company locations. Internal audits are undertaken an
a continuous basis, covering various areas across the
valug chain, such as procurement, manufacturing,
supply chain, sales, marketing and finance. The internal
audit program is reviewead by the Audit Committee at
the beginning of the year to ensure that the coverage
of the areas is adequate. Based on the internal audit
report, process owners undertake corrective action in
their respective areas and therehy strengthen the
controls. Significant audit observations and corrective
actions thareon are presented to the Audit Committes
of the Board.

The key constituents of our internal control system
are:

» Identification of key risks and opportunities and
regular reviews by top management and the Board
of Directars

» Clear and well-defined organization structure and
limits of financial authority
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« Continuous identification of areas requiring
strengthening of internal controls

« Operating procedures to ensure effectivenass of
business processes

« Systems of monitoring compliance with statutory
regulations

« Well-defined principles and procedures far
evaluation of new proposals/capital expenditure

« A robust management information system, internal
audit and review system as well as sound
framework on Internal Financials Controls (IFC)

«  Anetfective whistle-blowing meachanism

« Periodic review of SOPs compliance and
managemeant-approved policies

The statutory auditors, as part of their audit process,
carry out a systems and process audit to ensure that
the ERP and other IT systems used for transaction
processing have adequate internal contrals embeddad
to ensure preventive and detective controls, Intermal
audits are undertaken on a continuous basis, covering
various areas across the value chain, such as
procurement, manufacturing, supply chain, sales,
rmarketing and finance,

AYM has developed an (IFC} framewaork basis review
of policies, procedures and processas and contrals for
each of the processes were documented. Design and
operating effectiveness of controls was tested by the
management and later audited by the statutory auditors.

The management believes that strengthening internal
controls system is a continuous process and therefore,
it will continue its efforts to make the controls smarter,
with a focus on preventive and automated controls as
opposed to mitigating and manual controls,
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Financial Performance Overview

During the year ended 31st March 2019, the company registered Revenue from operations of Rs 992.0 crs, improved
by 17% over previous year. The volume growth underlying this revenue growth improved by 1% over previous
year, Profit after tax (PAT) for the year was Rs 5.8 crs vs Rs B0 crs in FY 18,

The following tables summarize the results of operations for the year ended March 317, 2019;

Particulars Far the year ending March 31
2019 2018

As Crores % of Revenue RsCrores | % of Revenue
Sales Volumes (MT) 50,064 49,234
Net revenue from operations 992.0 850.4
Expenditure
Cost of Materials 659.1 66.4% 559.9 65.8%
Employee costs 67.1 6.8% 65.8 7.7%
EBITDA margins 775 7.8% 60.3 8.2%
Finance Charges 344 3.5% 219 3.3%
Depreciation 378 3.8% 330 3.9%
Tax 0.4 0.0% 0.4 0.1%
Profit after Tax 59 0.6% 8.0 0.9%
Other Comprehensive Income -0.0 0.0% -0.1 0.0%
Total Comprehensive Income 5.8 0.6% 7.9 0.9%
Earnings per share (EPS) -1 1.3 20

Revenue

Revenue from operations stood at Rs 992.0 crs,
improved by 17% over previous year, Sales grown by
1% over the previous year in terms of volumes.
Company continues to retain focus on throughput
improvement, filling up the enhanced capacities and
getting the product sales mix right in the current year
for sustainable profitable growth in future. The export
sales in line with strategy has increasad from 32% in
FY 18to 35% in FY 19. The company has adopted IND
AS 115 revenue recognition during the year wherein
revenue is recognized upon satisfying specific
pertormance obligations as against recognition basis
transfer of risks and rewards approach adopted
previously.

Cost of Materials

The cost of materials comprises consumption of raw
material, packing material, dyes & chemicals, changes

ininventories of finished goods, work-in-process. The
cost of materials at 66.4% of Revenue exaggerated by
80 basis points as compared to previous year on
account of raw material price increase. Consumption
of Dyes and chemicals have also gone up on account
of mix change as well as availability shortage. Raw
material costs has impacted mainly due to adverse
movement in Brent Crude prices from $ 51 per barrel
to 5 86 per barrel during the year, With the shift towards
favarable mix in the coming years this is going to
improve gradually.

Employee costs

Employee cost includes salaries, wages, annual
performance incentives, statutory bonus and gratuity,
contribution to provident and other funds and staff
welfare schemes expenses (except actuarial gain / {loss)
on defined benefit plans). During the year under review,
employee cost at As 67.1 ers has gone down in line
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with the revenue compared with last year. The company
has put in place the adequate team structures during
the year which could fuel the future growth. With
resource optimization in mind, it has also worked upon
restructuring the roles to ensure focused approach
towards key goals. Largely, with the team structures in
place, the increase in employee cost going ahead will
not be in proportionate to revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation &
Amortization (EBITDA) Margins

EBITDA in FY19 was reported at Rs 77.5 crs (7.8%
margin) going up from Rs 69.3 crs (8.1% margin) in FY
18. EBITDA margin has improved on quarter after
quarter with last quarter ending on a higher note on
account of improved product mix, efficiency
improvement and better asset utilization. The year was
adversely affected by the pressure on sales price due
to lack luster demand, increase in raw material prices,
lower utilization of capacities and increase in input costs
including dyes, power etc. The delay in capex
expansion of BCF line has also resulted in lower than
expected EBIDTA in current year.

Finance Charges

Finance charges include interest on loans and other
financial charges. The increase in finance charges is in
line with the increase in the Company’s Debt position.
Net Financial Expenses in FY19 was Rs 34.4 crs as
compared to Rs 27.9 crs in the previous year. During
the year debt increased by Rs 68 crs due to BCF
expansion, the benefit of which will accrue in next year.
However, the costs of these facilities are continuously
monitored and negotiated with lenders to garner the
benefits accruing from money market changes. With
no major Project capex in pipeline, focus is to generate
higher cash flows through operations which will entail
reduce our net debt which in turn will reduce the finance
costs going forward

Depreciation

Depreciation has increased from Rs 33 crs in FY 18 to
Rs 37.6 crs in the current year. The increase is on
account of capitalization of on-going modernization
and expansion projects. There are no further project
capex in pipeline, however depreciation would
marginally increase going forward before stabilizing on
account of already committed capex continuing in the
coming year.

Tax Expense

The Effective Tax Rate (ETR) for the Company during
FY19 was 0% as compared to 5.2% during FY18 on
account of higher depreciation and R&D expenditure
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benefit along with reversal in DTA. The company
continues to be pay taxes under MAT provision in FY
19.

Profit after Tax

Profit after Tax stood at Rs 5.9 crs in FY19 as compared
toRs 8.0 crsin FY18 down by 35 bps as a % of revenue
as compared to previous year.

Total Debt

Debt figure includes all the long-term & short-term
borrowings, cash credits, Interest bearing acceptances
as well as Buyers Credit. Gross Debt as on March 31,
2019, stands at Rs 304.1 crs as against Rs 255.9 crs at
the end of FY 18. Cash and cash equivalents of the
Company in FY19 stood at Rs 30.4 crs as compared to
Rs 35.5 crs in the previous year. Net Debt as on March
31,2019, stands at Rs 273.7 crs after reducing the cash
and bank balance and liquid investment versus Rs 220.4
crs at the end of FY18. The debt has increased on
account planned Capex on capability enhancement
and expansion. This is expected to improve going
forward with improved cash flows and limited Capex
plans.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets (tangible and intangible) including Capital
work-in-progress stands at Rs 471.5 crs at end of FY 19
as compared to Rs 380.6 crs at the end of previous
year. This increase was mainly on account of capex
for the capacity addition and capability enhancement.

Foreign Exchange

During FY 2019, India’s currency saw substantial
depreciation vis-a-vis the US dollar, particularly in the
first half of the financial year, by falling nearly 14%
during the period from April 2018 to October 2018. The
rupee opened the financial year at 65.13 vis-a-vis the
US dollar in April 2018. From that level, the phase of
massive depreciation started till it hit its all-time intra-
day low of 74.45 against the US dollar on 11th Oct.
This level was short-lived as the rupee appreciated
and came back to settle at 70-72 levels against the dollar.
It further appreciated in March 2019 to breach 70 levels
and finally closed at 68.97 at 2019-end.

The company currently has a natural hedge with its
exports similar to value of imports, however, company
monitors and track the currency movement and take
adequate steps to hedge the exposures as and when
required.

Key Ratios
Key capital efficiency ratios for AYM Syntex has been
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highlighted here which provides a snapshot of the
health of Balance sheet. Key debt ratios have
detericrated in the current year on account of lower
profits and the continued infusion of capital in the form
af planned Capital expenditure, However, the same
along with other ratios are expected to improve in the
current year with improvement in cash flow and
reduction in debt.

Key Ratios FY 19 FY 18
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)} 6.8% 6.8%
Debt: Equity 1.03 0.86
Net Debt: EBITDA 3.53 3.18
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.98 1.00
Interest Coverage Ratio 1.16 1.30
Warking Capital {no. of days) 2 18
Debtor turnover ratio {no. of days) a8 37
Inventory turnover ratio {no. of days) 39 39
Current Ratio fexcluding term date) 1.20 1.49

Outlook

The outlook for AYM remains optimistic with improved
product mix, capacity expansion as well as macro-
economic headwinds behind us, With expected
favorable government policies towards textile industry
and stable raw material prices, the demand is expected
to rise. The company is largely focused an its customer
centric approach along with improving throughput at
both the plants without incurring any major Capex,
new product developments, optimum utilization of
enhanced BCF capacity as well as various cost
reduction initiatives which are underway. We continue
to remain firm on this journey of transformation to
prepanng ourselves to navigate through a challenging
operational environment and create sustainable value
for all stakeholders by making AYM an innovative,
competitive and sustainable value driven player of
synthetic yarns.
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present 36th Annual
Report together with Audited Statement of Accounts
of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2019.
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Financial Highlights

{in Lakhs)
Particulars 201819 2017-18
Revenue from Operations* 99,198.16  85,041.57
Other Income 580,14 E58.95
Total Revenue 95,788.30 85,60052
EBIDTA 7.751.51 6933.77
EBIDTA Margin (%) 787 &718
Finance Costs 3,442.56 2792.76
Depreciaticn and
Amaortization Expense 3,7680.97 3297.38
Profit Before Tax 54798 84363
Current Tax 10593 182,70
Deferred Tax (144.10) {13912
Profit after tax 586.15 800.05
Other Comprehensive lncome 12.79) (5.87)
(Met of Tax)
Lit::ni"mmha"w“ 56336  794.18
Earning Per Share |Basic) 1.29 2.02
Earning Per Share (Diluted) 128 2.02

' Revenue from operations includes otfver operative fncome and net of
Excizseduty for FY 18

Dividend

In order to conserve resources of the Company,
the Board has not recommended dividend on equity
shares.

Amount Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any
amount to the reserves,

Performance and Outlook

Curing the year under review, revenue fram
operations (net) was at ¥ 99,1928.16 Lakhs as
compared to ¥85,041.57 Lakhs in previous year.
Exports during the financial year 2018-19 were of
T 34,129.83 Lakhs as compared to ¥27,388.35 Lakhs
during the previcus year.

Industry demand was severely affected with the
pricing pressure continued on account of persistent

volatility in the raw material prices resulting in lower
utilizations at the plant level which has largely got
stabilized in Q4. Exports as a percentage of net
revenue was at 35% in FY 19 as compared to 32%
in overall last year FY 18. BCF expansions got
operational in Q3 FY 19 was inta stabilization mode
and the benefit of it might accrue in the coming
year.

The Company now concentrates on Nylon yarn
rather than polyester yarn, production of high
quality products, increasing efficiency and
utilization of installed capacity, increase in
customers and exports, etc. The Company
continuously develops new products to have better
margin of profits.

The expansion projects involving BCF and IDY have
been largely completad in FY 19 and there are no
major capex planned in near future and the focus
will be on cost rationalization, favourable product
mix and optimum utilization of enhancad capacity.

During the year, your Company’s long term credit
rating and short term credit rating has been
reaffirmed by CARE as CARE A and CARE A1
respectively. India Rating and Research Private
Limited has reaffirmed rating of IND A for long term
loans and fund based working capital facilities and
IND A 1 for non-fund based working capital facilities
with Negative outlook,

Share Capital and Listing

Disclosure Relating to Employee Stock Option
Scheme

The Shareholders of the Company has approved
AYM ESOP scheme 2018 for issue of 9,80,989 equity
shares under the scheme at Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on 28th February 2018; BSE has
accorded In-principle approval for issue and
allotment of the said shares on 26th April 20718 and
NSE approvad on 27th April 2018,

During the year, the Company issued 7,81,700
shares to its eligible employees under the AYM
ESOP scheme of the Company.
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Members of Nomination and Remuneration
committee and Board of Directors vide circular
resolution dated 30th May, 2019 and 1st June, 2019
respectively approved and recommended for the
approval of shareholders modification in AYM
ESOP scheme 2018.

Accordingly, appropriate resolution is proposed for
approval and necessary details are given in the
resolution and explanatory statement in
accompanying Notice of convening the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

In compliance with the provisions of Rule 12(9) of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules,
2014 and SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014, as amended thereto, the details
of Employees Stock Option Schemes of the
Company as on 31st March, 2019 are furnished in
Annexure A attached herewith and forms part of
this Report.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) read with Section
134(5) of the Act, the Directors hereby confirm that:

a. inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable Accounting Standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year 31st
March 2019 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

e. the Directors have laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively; and

f. the Directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

VII. Disclosure as Required Under The Companies Act,

2013
a. Declaration by an Independent Director(s)

All Independent directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Atul Desai, Mr. M. K. Tandon, Ms.
Mala Todarwal and Mr. K. H. Viswanathan, the
independent directors have given declaration
that they met the criteria of independent
directors as provided in sub section 6 of Section
149 of The Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act");

b. Policy on directors’ appointment and
remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence
of adirector and other matters provided under
sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Act is placed
on website of the Company and web link
thereto is http://www.aymsyntex.com/aym-
policies.

c. Board Evaluation

In compliance with the Act and SEBI
Regulations 2015, the Board of Directors, as per
the process recommendation by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Board, its
committees and Directors. The evaluation
process invited graded responses to a
structured questionnaire, which was largely in
line with SEBI Guidance Note on Board
evaluation, for each expect of the evaluation.
The evaluation process invited through IT
enabled platform sought graded responses to
a structured questionnaire for each aspect of
the evaluation viz. time spent by each of the
directors; accomplishment of specific
responsibilities and expertise; conflict of
interest; integrity of the Director; active
participation and contribution during
discussions. For the financial year 2018-19, the
annual performance evaluation was carried out
by the Independent Directors, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board,
which included evaluation of the Board,
Independent Directors, Executive Directors,
Chairman, Committees of the Board, Quantity,
Quality and Timeliness of Information to the
Board. All the results were satisfactory.

d. The CSR policy of our Company as approved
by the Board of directors’ is hosted on the
Company’s website and web link thereto is
http://www.aymsyntex.com/aym-policies.
Disclosure as required under Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility)
Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure B;
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e. Four meetings of Board of directors were
conducted during the financial year 2018-19.

f. The Company is a subsidiary of Mandawewala
Enterprises Limited.

g. Particulars of loans, guarantees or
investments under section 186 of the Act
Particulars of investments made, loans and
guarantee given and securities, if any provided
under Section 186 of the Act, form part of the
notes to the financial statements.

h. Ratio of remuneration of the Managing Director
& KMP to the median employee’s remuneration
and other details are as under:

IIn Lakhs
Ratio of
Remune-
Name Designation Remuner- % ration to
ation# Increase Median
Remune-
ration
Mr. Abhishek ~ Managing
Mandawewala  Director 73.56 NIL 32.32
&CEO
Mr. Himanshu Chief
Dhaddha Financial 62.97 NIL 27.67
Officer
Mr. Kaushik Company 49.68 NA® NA
Kapasi * Secretary
Mr. Ashitosh Company 5.99 NA® NA
Sheth * Secretary

* Employed for part of the year 2018-19, hence % increase is not
computable

# Remuneration represent gross salary paid during the year including
retiral benefits, if any.
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Notes:

i. Average increase in remuneration of
employees other than managerial
personnel: 5.89% and managerial persons:
NIL

ii. The number of permanent employees on
the rolls of Company: 1246

iii. The percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in FY 2018-19
was 2.85%.

iv. Affirmation that the remunerationis as per
the remuneration policy of the Company.

v. For calculation of median remuneration,
only those employees who have served
whole of FY 2018-19 are considered.

Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala, Managing
Director & CEO of the Company have not
received any remuneration from Mandawewala
Enterprises Limited, the holding company.

Details in respect of adequacy of Internal
Financial Controls (IFC) with reference to the
Financial Statements:

Your Company has designed and implemented
a framework for internal finance controls and
the same are adequate and were operating
effectively. The Company periodically reviews
the internal controls to align it with the changing
business needs and to improve governance and
enhance compliance with evolving regulation.

Your Company has well documented Standard
Operating Procedures (SOPs) for various
processes which are periodically reviewed for
changes warranted by business needs. The
Internal Auditors continuously monitor the
efficiency of the internal controls / compliance
with the SOPs with the objective of providing
to the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors, an independent, objective and
reasonable assurance of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the organisation’s risk
management, control and governance
processes.

For the year ended 31st March 2019, the Board
is of the opinion that your Company has sound
IFC commensurate with the nature of its
business operations, wherein adequate controls
are in place and operating effectively and no
material weakness exists. Your Company has
a process in place to continuously monitor
existing controls and identify gaps and
implement new and / or improved controls
wherever the effect of such gaps would have
a material effect on your Company’s operation.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with
related parties

Your Company has formulated a policy on related
party transactions which is also available on
Company’s website and the weblink thereto is
http://www.aymsyntex.com/aym-policies. This
policy deals with the review and approval of
related party transactions. The Board of
Directors of the Company has approved the
criteria for making the omnibus approval by
the Audit Committee within the overall
framework of the policy on related party
transactions. Prior omnibus approval is
obtained for related party transactions which
are of repetitive nature and entered in the
ordinary course of business and at an arm’s
length basis. All related party transactions are
placed before the Audit Committee for review
and approval.
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All related party transactions entered during the
year 2018 -19 were in ordinary course of the
business and on an arm’s length basis. No
material related party transactions were entered
during the financial year by your Company.
The disclosure of related party transactions as
required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act, in
Form AOC 2 is not applicable to your Company.
Members may refer to note no. 46 to the
financial statement which sets out related party
disclosures pursuant to IND AS-24.

k. Vigil Mechanism

Your Company is committed to highest
standards of ethical, moral and legal business
conduct. Accordingly, the Board of directors
has formulated Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil
Mechanism for its directors and employees and
any director or employee may make protected
disclosures to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. No personnel have been denied
access to the Audit committee.

Extract of Annual Return

An extract of annual return referred to in Section
92 of the Act read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is
placed on website of the Company at
www.aymsyntex.com. The extract of Annual
Return as at March 31, 2019 in Form MGT-9 is
annexed as Annexure C and forms an integral part
of this Report.

. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption

and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
a. Conservation of Energy:

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation
of energy: Nil

ii. the stepstaken bythe Company for utilizing
alternate sources of energy: Nil

ii. the capital investment on energy
conservation equipment’s: Nil

b. Technology Absorption:

i. The efforts made towards technology
absorption:

For the BCF expansion project we have
taken high pressure centrifugal compressor
in place of screw compressor. This will help
in reducing per cubic foot per minute
(CFM) cost.

ii. The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution: Nil

iii. In case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year): Nil

iv. Research and Development expenditures:

Jin Lakhs
Particulars 2018-19  2017-18
Revenue Expenditure 595.93 592.79
Capital Expenditure 933.35 513.99
Total 1529.28 1106.78

c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual
inflows during the year and the Foreign
Exchange outgo during the year in terms of
actual outflows.

i. Earning in foreign exchange —¥34,129 lakhs
ii. Outgo in foreign exchange -%40,491 lakhs

X. Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel (KIVIP)

Mr. Rajesh R. Mandawewala being the longest in
duration is liable to retire by rotation at the 36th
Annual General Meeting. His brief resume and other
details as required under the Act and Listing
Regulations for his re-appointment as Director are
provided in the Notice of the 36th AGM of your
Company.

Mr. Atul Desai and Mr. Mohan Krishna Tandon has
been reappointed as an independent director for
the second term with effect from 29th May 2019 to
28th May, 2024 for a period of five years by the
Shareholders through special resolution passed
through postal ballot on 20th March 2019.

On recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and subject to approval
of the Members, your director’s has appointed
Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala as an Additional
Director and Whole time Director of the Company
with effect from 29th July 2019 for the term of 3
years. Accordingly, the matter with respect to the
appointment of Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala is
proposed in the Notice of the 36" AGM. A brief
profile of Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala and other
relevant information is appended in the Notice of
36" AGM.

Board has recommended the aforesaid
appointment of Mr. Rajesh R Mandawewala and
Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala.

XIl. Committees of the Board of Directors

Information on the Audit committee, the
Nomination and Remuneration committee, the
Stakeholders Relationship committee, the
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Corporate Social Responsibility committee and
meetings of those committees held during the year
is given in the Corporate Governance Report
forming part of this Report.

Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit within
the meaning of the Chapter V to Companies Act,
2013. Further, no amount on account of principal
or interest on deposit was outstanding at the end
of the year under report.

Auditors

As per Section 139 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
Members of the Company in 34th Annual
General Meeting approved the appointment of
M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants
LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAl Registration
No- 012754N/N-500016), as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company for an initial term of 5 years i.e.
the conclusion of 34th Annual General Meeting
till the conclusion of 39th Annual General
Meeting. Pursuant to amendments in Section 139
of the Act, the requirements to place the matter
relating to such appointment for ratification by
members at every annual general meeting has
been omitted with effect from 7th May, 2018. The
Report given by M/s. Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants LLP on the financial
statement of the Company for the year 2019 is
part of the Annual Report. There has been no
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer in their Report. During the year 2018-
19, the Auditors had not reported any matter
under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no
detail is required to be disclosed under Section
134(3)(ca) of the Act.

Cost Auditor and Cost Records

In terms of the Section 148 of the Act, read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
it is stated that the cost accounts and records are
made and maintained by the Company as
specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. In terms of
Section 148 of the Act read with Companies (Cost
Records and Audits) Rules, 2014, the Audit
Committee recommended and the Board of
Directors appointed M/s. Kiran J Mehta, Cost
Accountants, being eligible, as Cost Auditors of
your Company, to carry out the cost audit of
products manufactured by the Company. Your
Company had received their written consent that
the appointment will be in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed
thereunder. The remuneration of Cost Auditors

XV.

XVI.

XVILI.

has been approved by the Board of Directors on
the recommendation of Audit Committee and in
terms of the Act, and Rules thereunder requisite
resolution for ratification of remuneration of the
Cost Auditors by the members has been set out
in the Notice of the 36th Annual General Meeting
of your Company. During the year 2018-19 the
Cost Accountants had not reported any matter
under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no
detail is required to be disclosed under Section
134(3)(ca) of the Act.

Members are requested to ratify remuneration as
fixed by the Board of directors by passing an
ordinary resolution in the Annual General Meeting.

Secretarial Audit Report

The Secretarial Audit was carried out by Mr. A. L.
Makhija Practicing, Company Secretary (CP No.
3410) for the financial year 2018-19. The Report
given by the Secretarial Auditors is annexed as
Annexure — D and forms integral part of this
Report. There has been no qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer in
their Report. During the year 2018-19, the
Secretarial Auditors had not reported any matter
under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no
detail is required to be disclosed under Section
134 (3)(ca) of the Act.

During the year 2018-19, your Company has
complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

Auditors’ Report

There is no qualified opinion in the Auditors’
Report. We refer to para i (c) of Annexure B of
Independent Auditor’s Report and state that the
Company is in the process of executing document
to transfer freehold land in respect of two plots of
¥ 20.04 Lakhs (net block) in the name of the
Company. The Company is in possession of land
without any interference for more than 12 years.
Further in respect of documents of title deeds of
six residential flats of ¥9.95 lakhs (net block), we
clarify that the said flats are in the name of the
Company and the Company is in the process of
tracing the physical agreements of the said flats.

Risk Management Policy

The Company has evolved risk management policy
identifying primary risk and secondary risk.
Primary risk includes manpower development,
product efficiency, pace of development of new
products, competition. Board has not identified
any risk which threatens the existence of the
Company.
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XVIIl. Familiarization Program for Independent

XIX.

XXI.

Directors (Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR), 2015)

The familiarization program aims to provide the
Independent Directors with the scenario within
the textile industry, this socio-economic
environment in which the Company operates, the
business model, the operational and financial
performance of the Company, significant
development so as to enable them to take well-
informed decisions in timely manner. The
familiarization programme also seeks to update
the Directors on the roles, responsibilities, rights
and duties under the Act and other statutes.

The policy on Company’s familiarization program
(for independent directors) is hosted on the
Company’s website and a web link thereto is
http://www.aymsyntex.com/aym-policies

Code of Conduct

The Company has Code of Conduct for Board
members and Senior Management personnel. A
copy of the Code of conduct has been put on the
Company’s website for information of all the
members of the Board and management
personnel.

All Board members and senior management
personnel have affirmed compliance of the same.

Particulars of Employees

The statement of Disclosure of Remuneration
under Section 197 of the Act and Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”), is
appended as Annexure -E to the Report. The
information as per Rule 5(2) of the Rules, forms
part of this Report.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace

As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH), your
Company has a robust mechanism in place to
redress complaints reported under it. The
Company has complied with provisions relating
to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under POSH. The Internal Committee
(IC) composed of internal members and an
external member who has extensive experience
in the field.

During the year 2018-2019 no cases of sexual
harassment were reported in your Company.
During the year, the Company has received NIL
complaint and appropriate action has been taken
by the Company in this regard.

The Company is committed towards promoting

XXIL.

XXIIl.

the work environment that ensures every
employee is treated with dignity and respect and
afforded equitable treatment irrespective of their
gender, race, social class, caste, creed, religion,
place of origin, sexual orientation, disability or
economic status.

Corporate Governance

In terms of Regulation 34 of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter “Listing Regulations”), a Report on
Corporate Governance along with Compliance
Certificate issued by Statutory Auditors of the
Company is attached as Annexure F and forms
integral part of this Report (hereinafter “Corporate
Governance Report”).

Management Discussion and Analysis Statement
is separately given in the Annual Report.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by The
Regulators/Courts/Tribunals

No significant or material orders were passed by
the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impacts the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

XXIV. Cautionary Statement

Place: Mumbai
Date:

Statements in this Report, particularly those which
relate to Management Discussion and Analysis as
explained in the Corporate Governance Report,
describing the Company’s objectives, projections,
estimates and expectations may constitute
‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning
of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results
might differ materially from those either expressed
or implied in the statement depending on the
circumstances.

XXV.Acknowledgement

Your Directors take this opportunity to express
gratitude for valuable assistance and co-operation
extended to the Company by Financial Institutions,
Commercial Banks and other authorities. Your
directors also wish to place on record their sincere
appreciation of the dedicated services, hard work,
solidarity and profuse support by all the
employees of the Company.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R Mandawewala
Chairman

29th July, 2019 DIN: 00007179
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ANNEXURE A: BOARD'S REPORT (esop)

Disclosure of Information in Respect of Employees Stock Option Scheme:
A. Relevant disclosures in terms of the ‘Guidance note on accounting for employee share-based payments’:

The disclosure is provided in Notes 48 to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2019.

Sr. No. Particulars

Employee Stock Dptions Scheme-2018 - Grant |

1.

Date of Sharsholder's Appraval

28th February 2018

2 Options Granted 7,81,700 Equity Shares of the Face Value of 1 10/- zach
3, Exercise Price Per Stock Option T 10/
4 Vesting Requireaments ESOPs will Vest not earlier that One (1} Yearfrom the
Date of Grant
5. Maximum Term of Options Granted 5 years from the Date of Vesting
5, Source of Shares Ptimary
¥ Options movement during the year
Particulars Details
Mumber of Options Outstanding at the MIL
Beginning of the Year
Number of Options Granted During the Year 7,81,700 Equity Shares of the Face Value of T10/- rach
MNumber of Options Forfeited/Lapsed/ MIL
Cancelled During the Year
Number of Options Vested During the Year MIL
Number of Options Exercised During the Year MIL
Mumber of Shares arising as a Resul of MIL
Exercise of Options
Money Realizes by Exercise of Options [INR], MNIL
if Scheme is Implemented Directly by the Company
Loan Repaid by the Trust During the Year from MA
Exercise Price Recaived
Number of Options Qutstanding at the End of the Year  7,81,700
Nuimber of Stock Exercisable at the End of the Year NIl
8. Variation of Tarms of Options MNA
9. Maoney Realized by Exercise of Options NA
10. Total Number of Options in Farca 7.81,700

30



STRATEGIC REPORT STATUTORY REPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNEXURE A: BOARD'S REPORT (Esop)

Sr. No. Particulars Employee Stock Options Seheme-2018 - Grant |
11. Employee-wise Details of Options Granted to
il Senior Menagerial Personnel/ KMP - 46,900

Key Managerial Personnel

(i} Any other Emplayee who Receives a Grant, 3 Employees — 2,55,000
in any One Year, of Options Amounting to 5%
or more of Options Granted During that Year

{ii) Identified Employees whe were Granted NIL
Options, During any One Year, Equal to or
Exceading 1% of the Issued Capital (Excluding
Outstanding Warrants and Conversions) of the
Company at the Time of Grant

12. Diluted Earnings Per Share [EPS) Pursuant to Issue £1.28
of Shares on Exercise of Options Calculated in
Accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
{Ind AS) 102

13- Waeighted Average Exercise Price and Weighted
Average Fair Value of Options whose Exercise Price
Equals or Exceeds oris less than Market Price of
the Stock-

al Woeighted Average Exercise Price Per Stock Option 10
b} Weighted Average Fair Value of Opticns £32.62

14. Method and Significant Assumptions used 1o Estimate
the fair value of Options Granted During the Year

i} Method Black Scholes Valuation model

i) Significant Assumptions:
a) Weighted Average Risk-free Interest Hate

b} Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life of
Optians Qutstanding (Years)

c) Weighted Average Expected Valatility
d} Weighted Average Expected Dividends
e} Weighted Average Market Frice

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R Mandawewala
Place: Mumbai Chairman
Date: 29th July 2019 DIN: 00007179
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ANNEXURE - B : BOARD'S REPORT (CSR)

Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities
1.

32

A briet outline of the Company’s CSR policy:

To spend at least 2% average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding
financial years calculated in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013 in the
sectors as mentioned in schedule VI of the Act,

To give preference to local area and areas around where it operates, for spending the amount earmarked for
corporate social responsibility activities.

List of activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 as
mentioned in the policy is placed on website of the Company at www.aymsyntex.com

The composition of the CSR Committes:

i.  Mr.Atul Desai - Chairman

ii. Mr.Rajesh R. Mandawewala - Member

ii. Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala - Member

Average net profit of the Company for 2015-18, 2018-17 & 2017-18: ¥ 3989.58 Lakhs
Prescribed CSR Expenditure {two percent of the amount as in item 2 above): T 79.79 Lakhs
Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: ¥ 79.79 lakhs; and
T 9.05 Lakhs {the unspent
amount for the year 2017-18)

(b} Amount unspent, if any: Rs, 4.52 Lakhs

(c] Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: Tin Lakhs
Aamount
Spenton the
Sector inwhich State and Amount Project or Cumulative Armount
Sr. CSRH Project / the Project is District Unspent outlay Programme | Expenditure Spent
Ne Activity ldentified ldentified as per where Project Amount for  |Budget) [sub head) up to Direct or
Schedule Vil of was FY 2017-18 Project or i, Direct 31.03.1% through
the CA 2013 Undertaken Programme Expenditure Implementing
Wise on Praject or Agency
Programme
2.0verheads
i1 (2 (3} 4] {5) (6} (7] (8] ]

1 Implementing an Early
Childhood Educatian
Program and Promoting
Education

(Running a Balwadi for
Froviding Quality Education
lo Stedenls belwesn 3-6 [}y Framotling Paloshyar, Direct
years of age coming Trom Education Maharashira - 9.41 998 Implament sticn
Economically Challenged
Section of the Society. The
Program also has Provision
of Adimission the Students
to Grade | to Ensure
Continuation of Education.
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Tin Lakhs
Amourt
Spenton the
Sector in'which State and Ameimt Projuct or Cumulkative Armount
Sr. C5R Project / the Project is District Unspent outlay Programme | Expenditure Spent
Na .A.ciivi"ty Identified Identified as per where Project Amount for (Budget) |sub haad) up to Direct or
Schedule VI of was FY 2017-18 Froject or i. Direct 31.03.18 through
the CA 2013 Undertaken Programme Expenditure Implemeanting
Wise on Project or Agency
Programme
Z2.0verheads
{2 (2) i (5 18] 7 (8] 8y
2  Provision of Safe Drinking (i} Promoting Silvassa, UT
Water (Installation of nead healthears ol
Based Water Purification Dadra b Nagar
Plants in Silvessa and Palghar Havel| & Diract
tix Ensure Accessibility of Purified Making availabie Palghar, 9.05 Bifi. 38 65.57 Implementation
Drinking Water even in hard safe drinking Maharashtra
to feach Areas and water
Maintenance of the same) g4.32
3 Premoting Education () Pramating Palghar,
Providing |nfrastructural Education Maharashtra - - 4.78 Direct
and Educational Implementation
Facilities)
4 CSR Monitoring and As - allowed in Murmbai,
Administrative Expenditure the Section Maharashtra - 3.39 3.89 As per
Including Salaries 135 of The recuirermant
Companies Act
Total 9.05 79.79 B4.32 B84.32

In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial

years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board
report: The balance unspent amount of Rs. 4.52 lakhs will be spent for making available safe drinking water

including maintaining of water purifiers in Palghar and Silvassa,

7. ltis hereby confirmed by and on behalf of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and palicy of the Company.

R R Mandawewala
Chairman
DIN: 00007179

Abhishek R. Mandawewala,
Managing Director & CEO

Place: Mumbai

Date: 29th July 2078 DIN: 00737785

Atul Desai,
Chairman of CSA Committee
DIN: 00019443
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B ANNEXURE C : BOARD'S REPORT (Annual Return)

Extract of Annual Return

Form No. MGT - 9
As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1} of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i. CIN:-L89898DN1983PLCO00045

ii. Registration Date : March 31, 1883

iii. Name of the Company : AYM Syntex Limited

iv. Category/ Sub Category of the Company: Public Limited Company

v. Address of the Registered office and contact details: 384 (P), Village Saily, Silvassa, U.T. of Dadra & Nagar
Haveli,

Contact Tele: 0260-26405%96; 022 61637000
Email: allcompanysecretaryofaymsl@aymgroup.com,

vi. Whether listed company: Yes. The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited {NSE)

vii. Name, address and contact details of Registrar and Transter Agent, if any.
M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited
Unit : AYM Syntex Limited
C-101,247 Park,
LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083
Email - rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Telephone. No.: +91-022-49186270, Fax No. : +91-22-49186060

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All business activities are from the business of textiles

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES as on 31.03.2019 -

Name and Address CIN / GLN Helding / % of Applicable

of The Company Subsidiary / Shares Section
Associate Held

Mandawswala Entarprises UM 7200MH2007PLC171473 Holding 70.00 2(486)

Limited
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V.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital break-up as percentage of Total Equity)

Category-wise share holding

Sr
No

Shareholding at the
beginning of the vear - 2018

Sharehelding at the
end of the year - 2019

Category of
Shareholders

Demat

Physical

Total % of
Tatal
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

Yo of
Total
Shares

%a
Change
during
the year

(A)

Promoter and Promoter
Group

[

1a)

Individuals / Hindu
Undivided Family

(k)

Central Government / State
Government{s)

i)

Financial Institutions / Banks

{d]

Any Other (Specily)

Bodies Corporate

31913632

31913632 | 70.00

31813632

31813632

70.00

Sub Total {A)[1)

31913632

31913632 | 70.00

31913632

31913632

70.00

[2]

Foreign

1a)

Indivicduals (Non-Reasident
Individuals / Foreign
Individuals|

1b]

Government

()

Institutions

idi

Foreign Portfolio Investor

fe)

Any Other (Specify)

Sub Total {A)[2)

Total Shareholding of
Promoter and Promoter
Group({A)={A})[1)+[A}2)

31912632

31912632 70.00

21913632

31913632

70.00

(E)

Public Shareholding

11

Institutions

{a)

Mutual Funds / UTI

105

106

108

105

1z

Ventura Capital Funds

1]

Alternate Investment Funds

id)

Fareign Venture
Capital Investors

ie)

Foreign Portfolio Investaor

587

6§87

Financial Institutions / Banks

10440

10440 0,02

10

10

ig)

Insurance Companies

120000

120000 0.26

120000

120000

0.26

{h)

Provident Furds/ Pension Funcds

{i}

Any Other {Spacify)

Sub Total (B)(1)

131132

131132 0.29

120115

120118

0.26

[21

Central Government/ State
Government(s)/ President
of India

Sub Total [B)(2)
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Shareholding at the Shareholding at the o
bhaginning of the year - 2018 end of the year - 2019 *
Change
Sr | Category of Demat | Physical Total %% of Demat | Physical Total % of during
Mo | Shareholders Total Total | the year
Shares Shares
[3] | Non-Institutions
@l | Individuals
(i} Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh, 3799323 | 16402 | 3815725 | 8.37 3899234| 16357 | 3915591 859 0.22
(il Individual shareholdars
holding nominal share
capital in excess of A 1 1skh | 4818386 4818385 10.67 6151842 5161842 11.30 0.73
(bh | NBFCs registered with RBI - - - - 10400 - 10400 0.02 0.02
[¢] | Overseas Depositories
thalding DAs) (balancing figure) . = . & - - ; " .
(i | Any Other [Specify)
iy Trusts 4302 4302 0.01 4302 4302 .01 -
(i} Hindu Undivided Family B32074 1200 B33274 1.83 532648 1200 b33848 205 0.22
{ili} Non Resident Indiens (MWon Fepat| | 52660 52660 D2 82306 B2306 0.18 0.07
{iv} Mon Rezident Indians (Repat) 237627 - 237627 0.62 193611 - 183611 0.42 -0.10
vl Clearing Member 263790 - 263790 0.58 129271 - 12821 0.28 -0.29
{vi} Bodies Corporate 3617110 2031 3519147 1.72 3132618 2031 3134650 6.88 -0.84
Sub Total (B)(3) 13520869| 23935 | 13544804 29.71 | 13531931 23890 | 13555821 29.73 0.02
Total Public Shareholding(B)=
(BI1)+(B)2)+(B}3) 13652001 23935 | 13675936| 29.99 | 13652046 23890 | 13675935 29.99 .
Total (A}+(B) 45565633| 23935 | 45589568 100.00 | 45565678 23890 | 45589568 100.00 :
[C) Non Promoter - Non Public
|a] | Custodian/DR Holder . . - - . - . . -
[B] | Employee Baenefit Trust (under
SEBI [Share based Employee
Benefit] Regulations, 2014} - - - - - B - - -
Total (A)+(B1+(C) 45565633| 230935 | 45589568 100.00 | 45565678 23890 | 45589568 100.00 -
ii. Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the year - 2018 end of the year - 2019
Sl. | Shareholder's name No. of % of total | % of shares No. of % of total | % of shares | % change in
No shares shares pladged / shares shares pledged / |[shareholding
of the encumbered of the encumbered during
company to total CoOmpany 1o total the year
shares shares
1 | Mandawewala Enterprises
Limited 31913632 70.00 31813632 70.00 - -
iii. Change in Pramoters’ shareholding: No
a6
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iv. Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs):

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Purchase/ at the end of the
year - 2018 (Sale) year - 2019
Sr | Name & Type of Transaction Date of of no.
No. No. of % of Total transaction | of shares | g, of % of Total
Shares shares Shares shares
Held Hald
1 MGHN AGRO PROPERTIES
PRIVATE LIMITED 1623145 3.56 - . 1623145 3.66
31 Mar 2018 . 1623146 3.56
2 | SADHMNA MEHROTRA 1350000 2.96 1350000 2.95
22 Feb 2019 [2612) 1347488 2.96
07 Mar 2019 (26361) 1321127 2.80
31 Mar 2019 1321127 280
3 | SAVITA GULATI 165000 0.34 . - 166000 0.34
25 May 2018 125107 280107 0.6
22 Jun 2018 108687 388794 (.85
30 Jun 2018 165666 404460 0.89
08 Jul 2018 6792 411252 0.90
13 Jul 2018 9198 420450 0.92
20 Jul 2018 750 421200 0.92
27 Jul 2018 1225 422425 0.92
03 Aug 2018 2025 424450 0,93
10 Aug 2018 150 424600 0.93
14 Dec 2018 B468 433068 0.95
28 Dec 2018 {3068) 430000 0.94
11 Jan 2019 150 430180 0.94
15 Mar 2018 3760 433910 .95
22 Mar 2018 {210) 433000 0.95
28 Mar 2018 [5000) 428000 0.94
31 Mar 2018 428000 0.94
4 | SANJEEV R. BEHARADIA 426500 0.94 - - 426500 0.94
21 Mar 2019 - 426500 (.94
5 | WELSPUN INDIA LIMITED 283600 0.62 283500 0.62
31 Mar 2018 - 283500 0.62
6 | SEEMA AGRAWAL 230000 0,50 #30000 050
21 Mar 2019 . 230000 0.560
7 PRASHANT J SARKAR 100000 0.22 - - 100000 0.22
27 Apr 2018 13000 112000 0.25
11 May 2018 4469 117469 0.26
10 Aug 2018 10000 127469 0.28
17 Aug 2018 2115 129584 0.28
24 Aug 2018 8549 136133 0.30
29 Sep 2018 4889 141022 0.31
05 Oct 2018 111 141133 0.31
12 Oct 2018 44367 185490 0.4
19 Oct 2018 10965 196455 0.43
a0 Mar 2018 3645 200000 0.44
31 Mar 2018 200000 0.44
37
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Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Pusrcliass; at the end of the
year - 2018 (Sale) year - 2019
Sr |Name & Type of Transaction Date of aline.
No. MNo. of % of Total R &t sharss Mo. of & of Total
Shares shares Shares shares
Held Held
8 |JNJ HOLDINGS PVT. LTD. 1 0.00 - B 1 0.00
01 Mar 2019 JB6E3 38684 0.08
08 Mar 20719 32422 71108 0.16
15 Mar 2019 22635 93641 0.21
22 Mar 2018 49858 143499 0,31
29 Mar 2019 51604 195003 0.43
30 Mar 2019 4307 200000 0.44
31 Mar 2018 200000 0,44
a SATYA PRAKASH MITTAL (HUF) 76684 0.17 - . 75604 0,17
19 Oct 2018 (70} 16624 0.17
26 Oct 2018 [2196) 73328 0.16
18 Jan 2018 E0000 123328 0.27
31 Mar 2019 123328 0.27
10 |PRADEEPKUMAR GHISULAL RATHOD 113327 0.25 - B 113327 0.25
30 Jun 2018 20 113347 0.28
31 Mar 2018 113347 0.22
11 |AYUSH MITTAL 109970 0.24 - - 109870 0.24
31 Mar 2018 109970 0.24
12 |VIVOG COMMERCIAL LIMITED 196217 0.43 - - 195217 0.43
29 Mar 2019 { 124250) J0967 0.16
31 Mar 2018 - 70967 0.18
13 |EDELWEISS CUSTODIAL 211267 0.46 - - 211257 .46
SERVICES LIMITED 06 Apr 2018 15017 226274 0.50
13 Apr 2018 1868 228132 0.50
20 Apr 2078 1460 229582 0.60
27 Apr 2018 51069 280651 0.62
04 May 2018 12971 293622 .64
171 May 2018 1265 294877 0.65
18 May 2018 1376 286262 0.66
25 May 2018 {244832) 51420 a1
01 Jun 2018 22081 73601 0.16
08 Jun 2018 26334 98835 0.22
15 Jun 2018 28218 1280563 0.28
22 Jun 2018 [B4860) 33183 0.07
30 Jun 2018 147600 28443 0.06
06 Jul 2018 7934 36377 0.08
24 Aug 2018 | 16828) 19449 0.04
31 Aug 2018 (5] 19444 0.04
07 Sep 2018 (16880} 2764 0.01
14 Dec 2018 | TEHE) 1686 (.00
28 Dec 2018 1533) 1463 0.00
08 Feb 2018 1180} 1313 0.00
15 Mar 20719 | 1268) 45 0.00
28 Mar 2019 1060 1085 0.00
31 Mar 2019 1095 0.00
a8
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v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: There was no change during the year

Sr. no. Name of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year 2018

shareholding at the
end of the year 2019

No. of

shares

% of total
shares of
the company

MNo. of % of total
shares shares of
the company

Directors

Mr. Rajesh R, Mandawewala
Mr. Abhizhek R. Mandawewala
Mr. Atul Desai

Mr. M. K. Tandon

Mr. K. H. Viswanathan

Ms, Mala Todarwal

h O B R -

KMP [other than Executive director/Whole time director)
Mr. Himanshu Dhaddha (Chief Financial Officer)

2 Mr. Ashitosh Sheth (Company Secretary) *
3 Mr. Kaushik Kapasi, (Company Secretary| **

30

2000

10

30

2000 -

10

= Appointed as Company Sacretary w.e f 06th February 2019;
**  Ceased to be Company Secretary w.e.f 31st December 2018;

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

(Tin Lakhs}
Secured loans Unsecured Deposits Total
Particulars axcluding loans indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i Principal Amount 19,381.17 1,200.00 20,681.17
i, Interest dua but not paid - = H =+
iil. Interest sccrued butl not due 109.98 108.08
Total {I+ii+iii) 18,491.1% 1,200.00 - 20,691,115
Change in indebtedness during the hinancial year.
Addition 6,119.86 2,400.00 - -
Reduction 4,138.51 - - 4,138.51
Addition / Reduction in Interest accrued but not due 34.15 - - 34.15
Met chanae 2,015.50 2,400.00 - 4,415.50
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i Principal Amount 21,362.51 3,600.00 - 24 962 .51
i, Interest dug but not paid -
i, Interest accrued bul not due 144,13 . 144,13
Total {i+ii+iii) 21,506.65 3,600.00 - 25,106.65
39
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.

A. Remuneration to Executive Director, Whole-time director and/or Manager

(Ain Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars of Remunermtion

Abhishek R. Mandawewvala,
Managing Director

1 Grosce Salary

a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act 1961,

{excluding commission paid which wes provided previous vear) 69.96

o1 Value of perguisites ufs. 1T72) Income Tax Act, 1961
¢ Profits in lieu of salary under section 17{3) Income Tax Act, 1961 -

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat equity -

4 Commission

B Others, please specify | contribution to Provident fund) 2.60
Total (A} 73.56
Ceiling as per the Act.* A

*  Remunerstion paid to the Managing Director is within the ceiling provided under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013,

B. Remuneration to other directors

{#in Lakhs)
Mame of Directors
Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration
Atul M. K. K. H. Mala Total
Desai Tandon Viswanathan Todarwal amount
1 Independent Directors
1jFee for attending board & committes meetings 5.06 3468 3.65 335 16.70
2)Commission Hil il Mil il Ml
30thers; please specify il Mil Mil Nil il
Total (1) 5.05 3.65 3.65 3.35 15.70
2. Other Non-Executive Directors il
Total (2] il
Total (B) = (1 + 2] 5.05 3.65 3.65 335 15.70
Overall ceiling as per the Act 1% of the Met profits of the Company I.e. Rs5.86 Lakhs (exclusive of any fees

pavable Lo directors for attending meetings of the Board or Committes thereof
pravided that the amaunt of such fees does not exceed Rupees One lakh per

meeting of the Board or committee thereof.|
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD

(¥in Lakhs)
Himanshu Ashitosh Kaushik Total
Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration# Dhaddha Sheth, Kapasi, Amount
[CFO} cs* cs# Rs
1 Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of
tha Income Tax Aet 19617 6207 5.99 4968 118.64
b] Walue of pergquisites ufs. 17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 s = =
c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3]
Income Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option . -
3 Sweat equity - - -
4 Commission - -
- As % of prafit
- Dthers, specify.....
5 Others, please specify Incentives provided but not given) - - i
Total (A) 62.97 5.99 49.68 118.64
# Remuneration represent gross salary pald during the year including retieal benalits, il any.

* Employed for part of the year 2018-19.

VIL. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

No penalties / punishment / compounding of offences are imposed to the Company nor to any directors of

the Company.
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Secretarial Audit Report

Form No. MR-3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 21ST MARCH 2019

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel} Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
AYM Syntex Ltd,
Mumbai.

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
Compliance of Applicable Statutory Provisions and the
adherence to Good Corporate Practices by AYM
Syntex Ltd (hereinafter called "the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
Corporate conducts/Statutory Compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based an my verification of AYM Syntex Ltd’s Books,
Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its Officers,
Agents and Authorized Representatives during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hareby report that in
my epinian, the Company has, during the Audit period
covering the Financial year ended on 31st March 2019
complied with the Statutory Provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and Compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

| have examinad the Books, Papers, Minute Books,
Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained
by AYM Syntex Ltd, ("the Company”) for the Financial
year ended on 31st March 2019 according to the
Provisions of;

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). amendments
and the Rules made thereunder;

i} The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956
{('SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder,;

{iii) The Depositories Act, 1986 and the Regulations and
Bye-laws framead thersunder;

{ivl Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1899 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder ta the extant
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

47

{vi The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ['SEBI Act'): -

{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
[Substantial Acquisitien of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992 and 2009;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Requlations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employes Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,
1999;

(e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014;

{fl The Securities and Exchange Beoard of India
{lIssue and Listing cof Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

lg) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an |ssue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009,
and

iy The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

iy Other laws applicable specifically to the
Company are as per Annexure 1 attached.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

(i} Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India;

il The Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange;
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{iiy SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015;

{iv] The Companias Act, 2013 read with amendments
and rules thereunder;

(v} Securities Contract Regulations Act, 1956;

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above subject to the following observations:

| further report that:

The Baard of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Mon-Executive Directors, Woman Director and
Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act,

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule
the Board Mestings, Agenda and detailed notes on
Agenda were sent at least Seven days in Advance, and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the Agenda items
before the mesting and far meaningful participation at
the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through, while the views
of Members/Directors are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

ANNEXURE 1:

| further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines,

| further report that during the audit period the
company has naot undertaken any:

i. Public/Right/ debentures/sweat equity, etc. during
the year under review,

ii. HRedemption/buy-back of securities during the year
under review;

ili. Major decisions taken by the Company as per
powers given to them by Members in pursuance
to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
within the Limits laid down and are complied as
per Rules and Regulations laid down under the
Companies Act, 2013;

iv. No Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc
have been undertaken during the year under
review and

v, There has been no foreign technical collaborations
during the year under review.

Flace : Mumbai For A L Makhija & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Date : 30th April 2019

ALMAKHIJA
Proprietor
CP:3410

ACS : 5087

The other laws applicable specifically to the Company are as follows:
&) The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;
h) The Water (Frevention & Contral of Pollution) Rules, 1975;

c) The Water (Prevention & Control of Pallution) Cess Act, 1977;
d) The Air (Prevention & Control of Pallution) Act, 1981;

) The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Rules 1982/1983;

f) The Hazardous Wastes (Management & Handling) Rules 1989;
gl Indian Explosive Act, 1884;

h) Indian Explosive Rules, 1983;

i) Environment Statement Under Gujarat Pollution Control Rules;
i Environmental Protaction Act, 1988;

k) The Forest (Conservation) Act, 1980;

1)

The Environment Impact Assessment Notification;
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m)  The Hazardous Waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 1989, Amended 2003;

n} Ozone Depleting Substances (Regulation & Control) Rules, 2000, Amended 2003;

o}  The Energy Conservation Act, 2001;

p) E Waste Management And Handling Rules 2011;

a) Dangerous Machines (Regulations) Act, 1983;

r) Dangerous Machines (Regulations) Rules, 1984,

5] Boilers Act (Indian Boilers Act), 1923;

th Motar Vehicle Act, 1988;

u) Indian Electricity Rules, 1956;

W) Apprentices Act, 1961,

w)  Child Labour {Prohibition & Regulation) Rules, 1986;

x) Cantract Labour (Regulation & Abalition) Act, 1970;

¥) Employees Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

z) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

aa) Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1976;

ab) Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

ac) Factories Act, 1948;

ad) Bombay Industrial Relation Act, 1946

ae) Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;

af) Inter State Migrant Workers (Regulation of Employment and Condition af Service) Act, 1979;

ag) Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;

ah) Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

ail  Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

a)  Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

ak) Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

al}  Trade Unions Act, 1926;

am) Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923;

an} Weekly Holidays Act, 1942,

an) Trademarks Act, 1999:

ap) Patents Act, 1970

Place : Mumbai For A L Makhija & Co.,
Company Secretaries

Date : 30th April 2019
ALMAKHIJA
Proprietor
CP: 3410
ACS : 5087
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ANNEXURE F: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Report for the Year Ended March 31, 2019

A. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

AYM Syntex Limited believes that for a Company to succeed on a sustained basis, it must maintain global

standards of corporate conduct towards its employees, shareholders, consumers and society.

The primary objective is to create and adhere tc a corporale culture of consciousness, transparency and

OpPENNEss,
B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

i. Composition

Present strength of the Board of Directors is 8. Details of compuosition of the existing Board of Directors as
on 31 March 2019 is given below:
Mo. of MNo. of Member / Mo. of Attendance
Directorship Shares and Chairman Board at Last
Sr. MName of the Director Category in other Convertible in No. of Meetings AGM
No. Companies®  Instruments Committees Attended
held by in
NE Companies#
Public Private
1. Mr. Rajesh R. Mandawewala P.NE.C 07 03 Nil (5)M 4 MNo
2. Mr. Abhishek B. Mandawewala P.E 1 (8 Mil (MCm 4 No
3. Mr. Atul Desai I, 5, NE 08" 0o 30 Equity BIC/HIIM 4 Yes
shares

4. Mr. Mohan Tandon . NE L] il il (1C/(23M 4 Yes
5. Mr. K. H Viswanathan I, NE 05° 01 W {ACAZIM 4 Yes
6. Ms, Mala Tadarwal I.W.NE 05 0z Mil {2ICHEM 4 No

456

" ancludes diractoship nfargign companies and companias under Section B of the Compames Act, 2013,
= Includes unlisted public companias,

# For the purpoze of eounting membarchip in Basd Committes of other Companies, Chairmanship! Memberahip of the Audit Committes and the Stakoholdors
Relatinnship Committes alone are congiders,

Ahbreviations:

P = Promoter, E = Executive Director, ME = Mon - Executive Director, | = Independent Directar, YW= Woman Cirector, 5 = Shareholderg, & = Chairman, M = Mem ber.
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The names of the listed entities where the person is a director and the category of directorship and matrix of
the skills/expertise/competence identified by the board of directors as required in the context of its business(es)
and sector(s) for it to function effectively and those actually available with the board and directors who have
such skills / expertise / competence. Details of current members of the Board is given below:

Sr  Mame of the Director Skill/expertise/ MName of Listed Entity Category
Mo competence
1 Mr. Rajesh R Mandawewala Leading figure in textiles and Welspun India Limited Managing Director
Steel, believes in driving
innovation through Continuous AYM Syntex Limited Non.E g
research and praduct Welspun Corp Limited On-Erarutive
davelopments, Strategy and Welspun Enterprises Director
Business Management Limited
2. Mr, Abhishek R Strategy and Business AYM Syntex Limited Managing Director
Mandawewala management, Excellent & CEO
managerial skill, leadership
quality
3. Mr. Atul Desai Litigation & Arbitration AYM Syntex Limited
RMG Alloy Steel Limited
Welspun Corp Limited
Welspun Investments and I“%ﬁpendem
Commercials Limited IFRELar,
TCFC Finance Limited
JSW Holdings Limited
4, Mr. Mohan Tanden Frofessional with experience in AYM Syntex Limited Independeant
COrganization Aestructuring and Welspun Enterprises Director
designing Productivity ariented Limitad
Incentive Schemes
LS Mr. K H Viswanathan Corporate Tax and Legal, o
Transaction advisery and AYM Syntex Limited Independent
structuring, Internal, Welspun Corp Limited Bi
Management and Dua-diligence irantor
audits, formulation of business
strategy, mergers and
acguisitions etc
6. Ms. Mala Todarwal Charterad Accountant by AYM Syntex Limited
profession and has experience Welspun Investments and
i", : Audit Assurance, Due Commercials Limited Independent
D‘"'ge"“,' Curpuralate Welspun Enterprises Director
Restructuring and Transaction Lismitad
Advisor
¥ Talwandi Sabo Power
Limited
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i

ii.

Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter
sa;

Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala is son of Mr. Rajesh
R. Mandawsewala, Director,

The details of familiarization program (for
Independent Directors) are disclosed on the
Company's website and a web link thereto is http:/
Aww.aymsyntex.com/aym-palicies

Details of Date of Board Meetings:

Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held
during the financial year 2018-19 i.e. 21st May 2018,
13th August 2018, 31st October 2018 and 6th
February 2019,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of the following 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors (financially
literate) as on 31st March 2019,

D. NOMINATION AND

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

a. Theterms of reference stipulated by the Board
of Directors to the MNomination and
Remuneration Committee are as contained
under regulation 19 of SEBlI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Baard of Directars of the Campany consists
of the following members:

Name of the Member Designation
Mr. Atul Desai Chairman
Mr. BR. R. Mandawewala Member
Mr. M. K. Tandon Member
Mr. K. H. Viswanathan Member
Ms. Mala Todarwal Member

Name of the Member Designation

Mr. Atul Desai
Mr. K. H. Viswanathan
Mr. Mohan Tandon

Ms. Mala Todarwal

Chairman
Member
Member

Member

¢c. Four meetings of MWNomination and
Remuneration Coammittees were held on 5th
April 2018, 21st May 2018, 13th August 2018
and 6th February 2019, The details of
attendancs of members of the committee ars

Mr. Ashitosh Sheth, Secretary of the Company also
acts as a Secretary to the Committee with effect
fram 6th February 2019 in place of Mr. Kaushik
Kapasi who was retired with effsct from 31st
December 2018,

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference stipulated by the Board of
Directors to the Audit Committee are as contained
under Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Requlations,
2015 and section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Five meetings of Audit Commitice of Board of
Directors were held on 5th April 2018, 21st May
2018, 13th August 2018, 31st October 2018 and 6th
February 2019, The details of attendance of
mambers of Audit Committee are as follaws:

MName of the Member

Number of
Meetings
Attended

Designation

Mr. Atul Desai

Mr. K. H. Viswanathan
Mr. Mohan Tandon
Ms. Mala Todarwal

Chairman ]
Member L
Member 5

2]

Member
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as follows:
Mumber of
Name of Member Designation Meetings
Attended
Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 4
Mr. R. R. Mandawewala Member 0
Mr. K. H. Viswanathan Member |
Mr. M. K. Tandon Mermber 4
Ms. Mala Todarwal Member 4

d. Performance Evaluation Criteria

I. Theevaluation of individual directors would
have two parts, viz. (a) quantitative data in
the form of number of meetings of the
board and committees attended as against
the total number of such meetings held and
(b) qualitative data coming out of the
process of filling in a questionnaire by the
directors, which would be subjective, by
its very nature,

i, Inordertoinducethe respondents to give
their frank views, the instruments would
be so designed that only ticks would be
required, with no provision far description
and the directors would not be required to
identify themselves below the filled in

guestionnaire.
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iii. The result of the evaluation would be
discussed threadbare by the EBoard and
remedial actions taken.

iv. Incaseof individual directors’ perdformance
falling below a threshold, there would be
a provision for individual counselling by the
Chairman of the Company.

. Remuneration to Directors

a. There are no pecuniary relationships or
transacticns with the Non-Executive Directors
vis-a-vis the Company.

b. Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive
Directors:

The Company pays sitting fees to Non-
Executive Directars for attending meetings of
the Board of Directors, Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Finance Committee, Stakeholders Relationship
Committes, Independent Directors meeting,
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee,
General Meetings etc.

Details of the payments made to Non-Executive
Directors during the year under Review is as

under:

[Tin Lakhs)
MName of Directors Sitting Fees
Mr. Atul Desai 5.05
Mr. K.H. Viswanathan 3.65
Mr. Maohan Tandon 3.65
Ms, Mala Todarwal 335

¢. To recommend payment of Remuneration to
Executive Director / Managing Director and
CEO:

The details of Remuneration paid/payable
during the year under review are mentioned

d. Meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company
shall hold at least one meeting in a year without
the attendance of non-independent directors
and members of management. The meeting
of Independent Directors was held on 14th
March 2019 and the following points were
discussed:

-  reviewed the performance of non-
independent directors, individual directors,
committees of Board and the Board as a
whole;

- reviewed the performance of the
Chairperson of the Company, taking into
account the views of Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors;

- assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between
the Company, management and the Board
that is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform their duties.

E. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
a. Name of Non-Executive Director heading the
Committee
- Mr. Atul Desai
b. Name and designation of Compliance Officer

- Mr. Ashitosh Sheth - Company Secretary
with effect from 6th February 2019,

¢, MNumber of shareholders complaints received
during the year
- Nil

d. Mo complaint was pending as on March 31,
2019,

Details of Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Meeting:

Four meetings were held during the year i.e.6th
April 2018, 13th July 2018, 11th October 2018
and 14th January 2019,

below:

Tin Lakhs p.a)

Particulars Mr. Abhishek R, Mandawewala
tManaging Director & CEQ)

Salaries and Allowances 69.96
Leave Encashment 0
Cantribution to Provident Fund 3.60
Commission 0
TOTAL 73.56
Service Contracts From 1 August 2018 to 31 July 2021
Notice Pencd 3 manths
Severance Fees Nil
Stock Option il

MNumber of
Name of the Member Designation Meetings
Attended
Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 4
Mr. R. B. Mandaweawala Membear 3
Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala Member 3
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F

CORPORATE SOCIAL
COMMITTEE (CSR)

RESPONSIBILITY

In compliance with the provisions of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee comprising of three Directors.

a) Composition:

G. GENERAL BODY MEETING

a) Details of the last three Annual General
Meetings held are as under:

Name of the Member Designation
Mr. Atul Desai Chairman
Mr. R R Mandawewala Member
Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala Member

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to the Committes,

b) Terms of reference of the Committee, inter alia
include the following:

To foermulate and recommend to the Board, a
Carporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy
indicating activities to be undertaken by the
Company in compliance with the provisions
of the Act and rules made thereunder.

Our social vision has been enshrined in
following 45 which have become the Guiding
Frinciples of our CSR initiatives — Swasthya,
Swabhiman, Sudhar and Srishti.

c) Meetings and Attendance:

During the year under review, the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee met twice i.e.
on 21st May 2018 and 13th August 2018,

Financial Date Time Lecation
Year
2018-16  23/0%2016 11:00  Survey No. 3941P), Village Saily,
a. m. Silvassa (L. T. of Dadra & Nagar
Haweli)
2016-17  28/09/2017 11.00  Survey No. 394(P|, Village Saily,
a. m, Silvassa iU, T, of Dadra & MNagar
Haveli]
201718  25/00/2018 11.30 Survey Mo. 394iP), Village Saily,
a. m. Silvassa (U. T. of Dadra & Nagar

Hawveli)

b} Special Resclutions passed in the |ast three
Annual General Meetings are as under;

Financial
Year

Date

Hems

2015-16  23/09/2016 1.

Re-appointment of Ms. Mala
Todarwsal as an Independent
Women Director of the Company
for a peried of three years w.af.
01.08.2018.

Re- Appeointment of Mr,
Bhalchandra Anant Kale as an
Executive Director of the Company
for a period of three years w.e.f,
30.10.2016.

2016-17 28092077

Mone

NMumber of
Mame of Member Designation Meetings
Attended
Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 2
Mr. R. R. Mandawewala Mamber 0
Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala Member 2
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201718 25/09/2018 i

Re-appointment of Mr. K H
Viswanathan as Independent
Director for second term with effect
from Tst August 2018 to 31st July
2023.

Re-appointmeant of Mr. Abhishak
Mandawewala as Managing
Director & CEC for a further period
of three years with effect from 1st
August 2018 to 31st July 2021,

c. The following Special Resolutions, as set out
in the Postal Ballot Notice dated 06th February

2019 and voted

through Postal Ballot were

assented to by the requisite majority (98.76%
voted infavour and 0.24% voted as against) as
per the result declared to the Chairman on 20th

March 2019 and

therefore taken as approved

by the sharegholders:
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Resolution confirming conzent of the Company
accorded to -

> Continuation of Mr. Mohan Krishna
Tandon as an Independent Director for
the current tenure upto 28th May 2019;

> He-appointment Mr. Mohan Krishna
Tandon as an Independent Director for
2nd Tenure of five consecutive years
commencing from 29th May 2079 to
28th May, 2024;

> Re-appointment of Mr. Atul Desai as an
Independent Director for Znd Tenurs
of five consecutive years commencing
from 29th May 2019 to 28th May, 2024,

Mr. A. L. Makhija, Practicing Company
Secretary conducted the Postal Ballot exercise.

Further, No special resolution is proposed to
be conducted through Postal Ballot,

Procedure of postal ballot: Postal ballot is
conducted pursuant to Section 110 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”} read with Rule
22 of Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of
the Listing Regulations and Section 108 of the
Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,

H. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

4.

The quarterly Un-audited Financial Results and
Yeaarly Audited Financial Results of the
Company are sent to the BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange immediately after they
are approved by the Board of Directors in their
Board meetings,

Website:

http:/www.aymsyntex.com/quarterly-results
and http:/fwww.aymsyntex.com/investor-
relations

Whether it alsc displays official news releases:
No official news has been released during the
year,

d. Thequarterly Un-audited Financial Results and

Yearly Audited Financial Results of the
Company has been advertised in Newspapers,
details of which are as mentionad herein below:

Quarter/ Date of Name of Mewspaper

Year end publication

31.03.2018  22.06.2018 The Financial Express (El+ [G),
Ahmeadabad edition

30.06.2018 14.08.2018 The Financial Express (E}+ (G),
Ahmedabad edition

30.08.2018  01.11.2018 The Financial Express (El+ (G},
Ahmedabad edition

31.12.2018 07.02.2019 The Financial Express (E}+ [G),

Ahmedabad edition

e. Presentation made to institutional investors or
to the analysts: None

|. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

a. 36th Annual General

Meeting Venue

Time

Day and Date

b. Financial year

c. Dividend payment date

d. Listing on Stock Exchanges

e, Stock Code

: Plat no. 1, Survey No. 394(P),
Village saily, Silvassa, U. T.
of Dadra & Nagar Haveli -
396230
1 12.00 Noon

i Thursday, 19th September,
2019

: From 01st April to 31st
March

: No Dividend recommended/
declared during the year

i 1. National Stack Exchange
of India Limited [NSE),
Ploet no. C/1, G Block,
Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra Kurla Complex Rd,
Bandra East, Mumbai
4000517.

ii. BSE Limited (BSE), P. J.
Tower, Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai 400007,

iii. Listing fees has been paid
to BSE on 9th April 2019
and NSE on 18th April
2019,

: Stock code No. is 508933
(BSE] and Symbol is
AYMSYNTEX (NSE).
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f. Market Price Data- High-Low Quotations on
BSE Limited (BSE} and Mational Stock BSE & AYM Syntex Limited
Exchange of India Limited (NSE}, Mumbai e o
during each month for the year 01 April 2018 3800 + | "
f0 31 March 2018; |
E WHD - — i v
5 o
Bombay Stock Sensex NationalStock Nty § uon | #
Month  Exchange () Exchange {{) s S &
High Lew High Low High Low High Low e |SU
T 8 %53 wEEe a8
Apr-13  7EE0 BBJ0 3521330 3247256 7650 5860 10750.00 1011130 $riivEialiit g —mewm
May-18 6850 5655 3599353 34302.68 6675 5615 1092920 10417.80 i
s AR i
Jui-18 6750 4620 35877.41 3478468 5840 4740 1089325 1085090
Juk1B 5250 4355 3764459 3510657 5205 4405 1136600 10604.55
Aug18 4350 35.00 38989.65 3712698 49.00 3800 1176020 1123495 - NSE & AYM Syntex Limited .
Sep-18 4155 32.10 3893435 35085.63 4180 3145 1175180 10850.30
1 | )
o 4
Del-18  43.25 2870 36616.64 3329158 4480 27.20 11035.65 1000455 500 | .
HMow-18 4685 4050 3638922 3430338 4780 23975 1002745 10341490 = (]
Z 5000 | ] g
Dec-18 4490 3410 3655499 3442629 4400 3900 1098515 1033385
AN T T E T EERE Y
Jan-19 4195 3400 3670103 3537551 43.95 3375 10887.45 1058365 EESE TS SR ETE..
gigegfgig_iig
Feb-19  30.85 2855 3717216 35287.16 3070 2840 11118.10 1058565 i ’ i -
Mar-19 3805 35.00 3874854 35926.94 3065 3460 11630.35 10817.00 — i
— R G
g. Performance in comparison to broad-based . i
indices i.e. BSE - Sensex and NSE - Nifty is as h. Securities are not suspended from trading.
under: i. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:
BSE Index AYM NSE AYM Link Intime India Private Limited
Miasth feamen s Syutex Stk ANRIYE S Syatex Stoek Address : C-101,247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli
“'g:"_ pd "'::"i ol (West), Mumbai - 400083
S L]
Pﬂ“ﬁ‘; pﬁu;‘; Tel. No. : 022-49186270
Fax No. | 02248186060,
Aps-18 H180,3¢ Bzb Ll i E-mail i rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
May-18 36322.38 57.30 10736.15 58.00 WekiiEs s Rl ST
Jun-18 3542348 62.20 10714.30 51.50 .
Jul-18 37606.58 4665 1135650  47.45 I < Shure Transter System
Aug-18 30845.07 3910 11680.50 39.35 The Shares of the Company are fully
Sep-18 362727.14 37.80 10930.45 34.35 dematerialized under the category of
Pet iR AL G pran: RS PR compulsory delivery in dematerialized mode by
= - : - all categories of investors. Shares sent for
Nov- 18 36164,30 dETAS 10675.76 42,46 transfer in physical form are registered by the
Dec-18 36068.33 42.00 10862.65 41.95 Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents
Jan-18 36266.60 35,00 10830.95 34.70 within 15 days frem the date of receipt of
Feh-19 36RAT. 44 35.00 1079250 35.15 documents, if the same are found in order,
Mar-19 38672.91 3586  11623.90 95,85 Shares under objection are returned within
three days.
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SEBI vide its notification dated June 8, 2018
notified SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) [(Fourth Amendment)
Regulations, 2018 and SEB| (Registrars ta an
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018 and amendment to
Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations and
Clause 5(c) of Schedule lll of the SEBI (Registrars
ta an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Requlations,1993. These amendments have
mandated that the transfer of securities would
be carried out only in dematerialized form.

The Company had sent 3 (thres) reminders to
those sharehalders holding shares in physical
form advising them to dematerialise their
halding.

Accardingly, attention of all the members
holding shares in physical form is hrought to
the following:

= Requestfor effecting transfer of securities
shall not be processed by the Company or
Link Intime India Private Limited, unless the
securities are held in dematerialized form
with effect from April 1, 2019.

+  This restriction shall not be applicable to
the request received for transmission or
transposition of shares held in physical

I.  Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

The Shares of the Company are fully
dematerialized under the category of
compulsory delivery in dematerialized mode by
all categories of investors,

The dematerialized shares are directly
transferred to the beneficiaries by the
depositories,

The Company has signed agreements with both
the depositories i.e. National Securities
Depository Limited and Central Depaository
Services [India) Limited. As on 31st March 2019,
99,95 % of the shares of the Company are
dematerialized.

Bifurcation of shares are mentioned below:

Category Ason % of
March 31, 2019 Shareholding

MNo. aof Shares

held by NSDL 39420662 86.47
MNo. of Shares

held by CDSL 6145016 13.48
Physical* 23890 0.05
Total 45589568 100.00

mode.
k. Distribution of Shareholding
The distribution of shareholding as on 31st
March 2019 is as follows:
Shareholding of Share holders Amount
nominal value
In¥ Numbar % of In¥ % of
Total Total
{1 {21 {3) (4 {5)
Upto - 5,000 6361 76.19 9772810 2.14
5001 - 10,000 7492 945 6590890 1.45
10,001 — 20,000 544 6.51 8519350 1.87
20,001 - 30,000 142 230 4942650 1.08
30,001 - 40,000 86 1.02 3050410 0.67
40,001 - 50,000 a 0.97 3866540 0.85
50,001 - 1,00,000 151 1.81 11377540 2.50
1,00,001 and sbove 142 1.70 407775490 8944
TOTAL 8349 100.00 455895680 100.00

m. The Company has notissued any GDRs/ ADRs.

The Company has allotted 43,16,666 warrants
of ¥75 per warrant to Mandawewala
Enterprises Limited, the holding company
convertible into 43,16,666 Equity shares of T 10
each at premium of T 65 per share at the option
of the warrant holdar within 18 months from
the date of allotment.

n. Commaodity price risk or foreign exchange risk
and hedging activities: Refer to Management
Discussion & Analysis' Section of this Report.

o, Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment
of Women al Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints filed during the
financial year ; Nil

b, number of complaints disposed of during
the financial year : Nil

¢, number of complaints pending as on end
of the financial year. Nil
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p. Location of plant
Rakholi Plant and : Plot no. 1, Survey No, 394(P),

Registered Office

Palghar Plant

Address for
Correspondence

Telephone No

Village Saily, Silvassa 396230, U. T.
of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

:Plot no. 1, 40 to 45, 116 to 118,
Dewan Industrial Estate, Mahim
Village, Palghar (W) - 401404, Dist -
Palghar, Maharashtra

: Sth Floor, Trade world, “B”
Wing, Kamala Mills Compound,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai — 400 013

: 022 - 61637000/7001

Fax No 1 022 - 24937725

E-mail id rinvestorrelations@aymgroup.com
Website D WwwLaymsynlex.com
Compliance : Mr. Ashitosh Sheth with effect from
Officer and 6th February 2019

Secretary

0. List of all credit ratings cbtained by the Company
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for all debt instruments is disclosed in Directar’'s
report, Refer Point no. IV (Perfoarmance and
Outlook).

J. OTHERDISCLOSURES

Related party transactions:

During the year there is no materially significant
related party transactions i.e. transactions of
the company of material nature, with its
promoters, the directors or the management,
their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the
company at large. The Company’s policy on
dealing with Related Party Transactions as
required under Regulation 23 of the SEBI
Regulations, 2015 is hosted on the Company's
website and a web link thereto is as under:

http:/iwww.aymsyntex.com/aym-policies

MNo penalties, strictures were imposed on the
Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any
statutory authority, on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years,

Whistie Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and
Vigil Mechanism for its directors and employees
and no personnel have been denied access to

Vi.

the Audit Committee. A copy of policy is
displayed on the website of the Company at
http:ifwww.aymsyntex.com/aym-policies

Certificate as required under Part C of Schedule
V of Listing Regulations received from Mr. A L
Makhija, Practising Company Secretary that
none of the Directers on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Director
of the Company by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority was
placed before the Board of Directors at its
mesting.

Recommendations of Committees of the Board

There were no instances during the financial
year 2018- 19 herein the Board had not accepted
recommendations made by any Committee of
the Board.

Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the
Company

The total amount of fees paid to the Statutory
Auditors of the Company during the financial
year 2018-19 is stated in Notes to financial
statements, which forms part of this Annual
Report.

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE OF THE MANDATORY

- AND NON-MANDATORY CLAUSES OF SEBI

(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

The Company has complied with mandatory
requiremeants as mentioned under Regulations
17 to 27 of SEB| (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and
has adopted the following discretionary
requirements on Corporate Governance as
recommended hereunder:

-  The Company has separate individuals
occupying the position of Chairman and
that of Managing Director and CEO;

- The Internal Auditor reports directly to the
Audit Committee.

Web |ink where policy far determining material
subsidiaries is disclosed

- The Campany doas not have subsidiary
company,

Web link where policy on dealing with related
party transactions:

- http:ff'www.aymsyntex.com/aym-policies.
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L. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has established a Code of Conduct for its Board members and its Senior Management Personnel.
The Code of Conduct for the Board members and Senior Management Personnel is available on the Company’s
website at www.aymsyntex.com
All the Board members and Senior Management Personnel have complied with the Code of Conduct.

M. DISCLOSURE OF SHARES HELD IN SUSPENSE ACCOUNT UNDER CLAUSE F OF SCHEDULE V TO THE SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

Aggregate Number of
Shareholders and the
Outstanding Shares in the
Suspense Account lying at

Number of Shareholders
who Approached Issuer for
Transfer of Shares from
Suspense Account During

Mumber of Shareholders
to Whom Shares were
Transferred from
Suspense Account During

Aggregate Number of
Shareholders and the
Outstanding Shares in the
Suspense Account lying at

the Beginning of the Year the Year the Year the End of the Year
MNo af No of MNa of No of Nao of MNa of MNa of No of
Holders Shares Holders Shares Holders Shares Halders Shares
133 6766 1 a0 1 30 132 6736

The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen until the shares have been claimed by and transferred to

the rightful owner.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th April 2019

On behalf of Board of Directors

Abhishek Mandawewala

Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 00737785
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of AYM Syntex Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by AYM Syntex Limited, for the year
ended March 31, 2019 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b} to (i) of sub-regulation (2} of regulation
45 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {collectively referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015},

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Nate on Reports ar Certificates for Special Purpose,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and was limited to procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company fer ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Carporate Governance., It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion an the financial statements of the Company,

In our epinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, We certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated inthe SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015,

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectivenass with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mehul Desai
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date:30th April, 2019 Membership Number: 103211
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of AYM Syntex Limited

Report on audit of the financial statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of AYM Syntex Limited {"the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as
at March 31, 2019, the statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income},
statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other
explanatory infarmation,

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given ta us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and total
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and
other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Key audit matter

Assessment of realisability of Minimum Alternate Tax
('MAT’) credit entitlement (Refer note 7 of the financial
statements)

Minimum Alternate Tax ("MAT') credit entitiement of
Rs. 4,885.74 is recognized as an asset by crediting the
Statement of Profit and Loss and is classified under
Deferred Tax Assets (net} in the balance sheet,

Entitlement of MAT credit is recognised to the extent
there is convinecing evidence that the Company will be
able to utilise the said credit against normal tax payable
during the period of fifteen years succeeding the year
of filing of return of Income tax.

We considered the realisability of MAT credit entitlement
to be a key audit matter as the amount is material to
the financial statements and there is significant
managemant judgement involved while applying
various assumptions in preparation of forecasts for
future taxable profits,
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Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified undear
section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsihilities under
those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accardance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements undar the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period, These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whaole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters,

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

To evaluate the realisability of MAT Credit entitlement,
our procedures included the following !

« Understanding and evaluating the design and testing
the operating effectiveness of the Company's
controls over preparation of forecasts.

« Assessing the historical accuracy of the Company's
Board approved forecasts by comparing the
forecast approved in the previous year with the
actual performance in the current year,

« Testing the mathematical accuracy of the underlying
calculations and comparing the forecasts with the
budgets approved by the Board of Directors.

+ Assessing the reasonablensss of assumptions used
in the preparation of forecasts with external and
internal factors including industry growth rates and
Company's past performance.

« Applying sensitivity to the forecasts to assess
whether the MAT credit carried as an asset would
be utilised within the specified time period of fifteen
years as stated earlier,

Based on the above procedures, we noted thal the

management's judgement in preparation of forecasts

of future taxable profits for the assessment of
realisability of the MAT cradit was considerad to be
reasonable,



| Srarcorc neronr Y\ STaTUTORY neronr | FivaNciaLsATEmENTs R
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Other Information

5,

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible
for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the
“Management discussion and analysis” and
"Director's report”, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report
theraon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the sudit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstaternent of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged
with governance for the financial statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for tha matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements thal give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclesing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors
are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

8.

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional seepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatermnent resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)({i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of
management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether 8 material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude
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that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention inour auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the daie of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying
fransactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

11. We alsc provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

12. From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we dsetermine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current pericd
and are therefare the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be
cammunicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reascnably be
expected to outweigh the public interest henefits
of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

13. As required by the Cempanies {Auditor's Repaort)
Order, 2016 ("the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11)
of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
B statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

14. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:

(a) We have sought and obtained &ll the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.
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(b)) In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive incame),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report arain
agreement with the books of account.

{d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements
camply with the Aceounting Standards specified
under Section 123 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March 31,
2019taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disgualified as on March
31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such cantrols, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A",

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’'s Reportin accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our cpinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements — Refer Note 38
to the financial statements;

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as
at March 31, 2018 for which there were no
material foreseeable losses, The Company
did not have any long term derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2012,

iii, There wers no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Companyduring
the year ended March 31, 2018,

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to

Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2019,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mehul Desai
Date: April 30,2019 Partner
Mumbai Membership Number: 103211
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ANNEXURE "A" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 14(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of AYM Syntex
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1

We have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of AYM Syntex
Limited {“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial
staterments of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

2

The Company's managemeant is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India {ICAl). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Qur responsibility is to exprass an opinion on the

Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in sccordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Mote"”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to
be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the |CAl,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note reguire
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal
finaneial controls with reference to financial

statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,

Our audit involves perfarming proceduras to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstaternent of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
abtainad is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference
to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with

reference to financial stalements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial staterments for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasanable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with autharisations
of management and directors of the company, and
{3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
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assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with reference to financial statements

N

62

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2019

In our opinian, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls
systerm with reference Lo flinancial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential compaonents of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Heporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mehul Desai
Partner
Membership Number: 103211
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ANNEXURE "B" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of AYM Syntex
Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019

{al The Company is maintaining proper records
shawing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

{b) The fixed assets of the Company have been
physically verified by the Management during
the year. The discrepancies noficed on such
verification were not material and have been
properly dealt with in the books of account. In
our opinion, the freguency of verification is
reasonable,

{c} The title deeds of immowvable properties, as
disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to the
financial statements, are held in the name of
the Company, except for the following
immovable properties whose title deeds are not
held in the Company's name:

Amount as at

Nature of Number March 31, 2019
immovable of cases (¥ in Lakhs) Remarks
property
Gross MNet
block block
Freehold 2 45,22 20.04 Title iz not
land transferred inthe
name of the
Company
Residential f 14.85 0495 Documents of title
Flats deeds not available

with the Company

iil.

The physical verification of inventory (excluding
goods in transit) have been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the Management during the
year. The discrepancies noticed on physical
veritication of inventory by Managemeant as
compared to book records were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered inthe register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore,
the provisions of Clause 3{iii), (iii){a}, (ili)(b) and (iii)(c)
of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

. The Company has not granted any loans or made

any investments, or provided any guarantees or

vi.

Vii.

security to the parties covered under Section 185
and 186. Therefare, the provisions of Clause 3{iv)
of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not accepted any depasits from
the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
72 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there
under to the extent notified.

FPursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government of India, the Company is required to
maintain cost records as specified under Section
148(1} of the Act in respect of its products.

We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

{g) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company
is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutary dues in respect of goods and service
tax and employees’ state insurance, though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases,
and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including provident fund,
income tax, duty of customs and other material
statutory due, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Also refer note 38 to
the financial statements regarding
management’'s assessment on certain matters
relating to provident fund,

{b) According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of sales-
tax, value added tax and goods and service
tax which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute. The particulars of dues of
income tax, service tax, duty of customs and
duty of excise as at March 31, 2019, which have
not been deposited on account of a dispute,
are as follows:
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Name of the statute MNature of Amount Period to which Forum where the
dues (¥ in Lakhs)* | the amount relates dispute is pending
The Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 533 Assessmeant Years Commissioner of Income
’ 2013-14 to 2014-15 Tax (Appeals), Mumbai
20.00 Assessment Years Commissioner of Income
: 201112 Tax {Appeals), Mumbai
The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 1.05 Financial Years Deputy Commissioner CGST
: 2005-06 and 2006-07 & CE, Vapi
55.96 Financial Year 2006-07 | Commissioner CGST & CE, Vapi
103.86 Financial Years Commissioner CGST & CE, Vapi
' 2007-08 to 2012-13
86.61 Financial Years Commissioner CGST & CE, Vapi
' 2013-14 to 2014-15
991.71 Financial Year 2014-15 | Central Excise and Service Tax
: Appellate Tribunal, Ahmedabad
56.44 Financial Year 2015-16 | Commissioner CGST & CE, Vapi
15.02 Financial ¥Year Commissioner (Appeal), CGST
: 2015-16 to 2017-18 & CE, Surat
16.61 Financial Year Central Excise and Service Tax
’ 20156-16 to 2016-17 Appellate Tribunal, Ahmedabad®*
The Customs Act, 1962 Duty of 72.55 Financial Years Commissioner of Customs,
Customs : 1996-97 and 1997-98 Mumbai
168.36 Financial Year 2006-07 | Commissioner of Customs
: {Imports), Navi Mumbai
378 Financial ¥ears Deputy Commissioner CGST &
2006-07 to 2008-09 CE, Vapi
25 00 Financial Year 2013-14 Commissioner of Customs
[Appeals], Mumbai
§4.25 Financial Year 2014-15 | Commissioner of Customs
(Appeal), Raigad
The Caentral Excise Act, 1944 | Duty of 20.37 Financial Year 2006-07 | Commissioner CGST & CE, Vapi
BXCISE
41.42 Financial Year 2007-08 | Joint Commissicner CGST &
CE, Vapi
Financial Years Customs Excise and Service
626.68 2015-16 to 2017-18 Tax Appellate Tribunal,
Ahmedabad®™

* Net of amount paid under protast
**The Company is in the process of filing appeal with the relevant statutory authorities.
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viii. According to the records of the Company

examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to
any financial institution or bank or Government.
As the Company has not issued any debentures as
at Balance Sheet date, the provisions of Clauss
3(viii) of the Order, to that extent, are not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the money raised by
way of term loans have been applied for the
purposes for which they were obtained. As the
Company has not raised any moneys by way of
initial public offer and further public offer {including
debt instruments}, the provisions of Clause 3{ix} of
the Order, to that extent, are not applicable 1o the
Company.

During the courss of our examination of the books
and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by
the Management.

. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial

remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

Flace: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2019

xil. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the

Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to i, the
provisions of Clause 3{xii} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with

related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of
such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statemenis as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv. The Company has not made any preferential

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly cenvertible debentures during the year under
review. Accordinaly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non cash

transactions with its directors or persans
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions
of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company,

xvi. The Company is not reguired to be registered under

Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mehul Desai
Partner
Membership Number: 103211
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

[All amounts in 1 Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)
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Particulars Meote As 8t As at
Merch 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
1. Mon-current assots
le] Property, Flant and Equipment <] 44, 851.78 34,686,723
(b} Capital Waork-in-Frogress 3 2,820 87 3,293.85
[c) Intangible Assets 4 64d.81 83.47
d} Financial Assets
i. Other Financial Assets -] 19.82 T.07
|8} Income Tax Assets (net [ 131.4%8 143,09
[f] Deferred Tax Assats [net) Tl Z2,606.48 2,460.87
lgl Other Non-Current Assels B a50.0g 2.,089.43
Total Non-current Assetls b50,.854.34 42,763.95
. Current Ascets
[@ Inventories a 10,679.03 8,991 65
(b} Financial Assets
. Investments 10 1, 502.00 707,09
il. Trade Heceivables 11 10,252.74 8,568.87
iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 329,93 770.60
iv. Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalenis above 13 1.842.12 2,047 .47
Y, Loans 14 23.90 a7.78
vi. Other Financial Assets 15 162.43 134,00
e Other Current Assels 16 4,757,494 3,843,671
Total Current Assets 29,650.08 25,154 57
Total Assets 80,504.43 B7,918.52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(o) Eauity Share Capital 17al &4, 558,96 4,558,968
(b} Other Equity
I. Hesarves and Surplus 1) 24,895.56 24,432.05
il. Money Received egainst Share Warrants T7(c) 209 37 809,37
Total Equity 30,263.88 28,800.38
Limbilities
1. MNon-current Liabilities
lal Finencial Liabilities
. Borowings 8 Z0,821.48 6,406,066
bl Employee Benslit Okligations 19 643 97 672,19
e} Other Mon Current Lishifities 20 16.72 -
Total non-current liabilities 21.,082.17 17,079.05
2. Current Liabilities
|8} Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 21 6,1758.66 5,005 56
il. Trade Payvables 22
Dues to Micra Enterprises and Small Enterprises 927.73 45,70
Dues to Crediters othar than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterpnses 15,559.40 10,309,08
ifi. Other Financial Lisbilities 23 5, 788.50 4,728.71
bl Employes Benelit Obkligations 24 328.18 361,87
e} Othar Current Liabilities 25 379.49 bH8.17
Total Current Liablilities 28,158.37 21,039.09
Total Liabilities 50,240.54 38.118.14
Total Equity and Liabilities 80,504.43 67,918.52
Nates forming part of the financial statements 1-E0
The abiove Balance Sheet should be read in comjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Balance Sheet referred 1o in our repoft of the even date.
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ NS00016
Metwl Desal Rajesh Mandawewala Abhishek Mandawewala
Partnar Chedrman CED and Managing Director
Membarahip Mo. 103211 DIN 00007179 DI 00737785
Place: Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha Ashitosh Sheth
Date: April 30, 2019 Chief Financial CHficer Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2019

(Al amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
INCOME
Revenus from Operations 28 99,198.16 86,117.04
Dthor Incame 27 580.%4 558.85
Total Income 99,788.30 BE,675.99
EXPENSES
Cost of Materialz Consumed B 58 64330 45,466, 06
Changes in Invemories of Finished Soods and Goods-In-Process 20 {85.88) {1,033.52]
Excise Duty - 1.075.47
Employes Benefil Expense 30 6,709,711 6,579,309
Depreciation and Amartization Expense 31 3,760.97 3,297.38
Other Expenses 32 26,770.26 23,664,82
Finance Costs a3 3.442.56 2,792.76
Total Expenses 99,240.32 85,832.36
Profit Before Tax 547.98 843.63
Income Tax Expense 34
Current Tax 106.93 182.70
ferred Tax (144.10) (139.12]
Total Tax Expense {38.17) 43.58
Profit for the Year 686.16 800.05
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of Post Employment Benefit Obligations 3 [4.28) {9.02]
Income Tax elect on above 34 1.50 3.15
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Met of Tax {2.79] (5.87)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 583.38 794.18
Earnings Per Share 40
Basic (1) 1.2%9 2.02
Dilutad (1) 1.28 2.02
Motes forming part of the financial statements 1-50

The above statemant of Prafit and Loss should be read in conjunetion with the accompanying nofes.

This is the statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of the even date,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Mo: 012784N/ NBOOQ1S

Mehul Dessi

Fartner
Membership Mo, 103211

Placa: Mumba
Date: April 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh Manda
Chairman
DIN 00007179

Himanshu Dhaddha

Chief Financial

Abhlshek Mandawewala

CEQ and Managing Director
DiN 0D737785

Ashitosh Shoth
Company Secretary

wewala

Officer
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Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in T Lakhs, unlass otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 547.98 B43.83
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 3,760.97 3,297.38
Finance Costs 3,442.56 2,792.76
Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss (Net) 63.46 [71.89)
Unrealised Loss/{Gain) on Derivative Transactions (Met) - [24.56)
MNon Cash Shere based Expense 57.76 -
Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets through Profit or Loss [2.07] (1.08)
Loss { (Gain] on Sale of Investments (Net) [5.91] [53.18)
Loss on Sale/Discard ef Property, Plant and Equipment [Net) 38.95 26.60
Interest Income {161.72) {180.18)
Operating Profit before Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities 7.752.04 6,619.47
Adjustments for Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories {1,687.38] (1,291.64)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables {1,793.53) [2,438.82)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets 42.36 [10.36)
[Increase) / Decreasea in other Non-Current Financial Assets [12.81) 11.74
{Increase) / Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets (459.50) (83.41)
([Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (914.69] (1,055.52)
Increase [ (Decrease) in Trade Payables 6,171.01 1,247.89
Increase [/ ([Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities 171.20 (0.58)
Increase / (Decrease) in Employee Benefit Obligations [66.19] (133.91)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities [208.68] {103.66)
Increase / |[Decrease) in Other Nen-Current Liahilities 16.72

Cash Generated from Operations 8,B56.55 2,761.20
Income Tax Paid [94.34) (263.73)
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 8,762.21 2,497.47

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Payment for Property, Plant, Equipment and Intangible Assets {10,649,60) (8,063.12)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 8.44 1.0
Realisation / [Investment] in Fixed Deposit and Margin Money (Net) 105.35 (571.57)
Sale / [Purchase] of Investment (Net) (793.00] 1,060.31
Interest Received 154.32 188.27
Met Cash used in Investing Activities (11,174.49) (7,375.16)
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Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2019

[All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated]

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceads from Issue of Equity Shares and Warrants (Net) 3.571.87
Praceeds from Borrawings (Net) 2,380.01 1,961.55
Imtercorporate Deposit takan / (Re-paid) 2,400.00 2,000.00
Interest Paid (3,408.40) {2,798.99)
Net Cash Generated / {used in) in Financing Activities 1,871.61 4,734.43
D. Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C) (440.67) {143.286)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the baginning of the Year 770.60 913.86
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 329.93 770.60
F  Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of:
Cash on Hand 16.72 17.21
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 313.21 753.39
Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the Year 329.93 770.60

MNotes:

1t Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Accounting Standard (AS) 3 "Cash Flow

Statements”

21 Previous vear figures are regrouped/reconsidered wherever necessary.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of the even date,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ NS00016

Mehul Desai
Partner
Membership Na. 103211

Place: Mumbai
[ata: Aprl 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh Mandawewala
Chairman
DIN 00007179

Himanshu Dhaddha
Chief Financial Officer

Abhishek Mandawewala
CEQ and Managing Director

DIN 00737785

Ashitosh Sheth
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[All amounts in T Lekhs, unless otherwisa stated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{4l amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

General information

AYM Syntex Limited (herein referred to as “AYM" or
“the Company”) is public limited Company
incorporated and domiciled in India. The address of its
registered office is Survey No. 394P, Village - Saily,
Silvassa, Dadra & Nagar Haveli- 396230, India. The
Company is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE) and the National Stock Exchange [NSE), Since
its inception, it has grown manifold and today is
amongst the largest manufacturers and exporters of
Polyester Texturised Filament Yarn, Nylon Filament
Yarn and Bulk Continuous Filament Yarn from India.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by
the board of directors on April 30, 2019,

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

This Note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
staternents. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements comply in all material
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (IND
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant
provisions of the Act,

The financial statements have been prepared on
anaccrual and going concern basis. The financial
statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value as stated in subsequent
policies;

- Assets held for sale - measured at lower of cost
ar fair value less cost of sale

- Share based payments — Fair value

Mew and amended standards adopted by the
Company

The Company has applied the following
Accounting Standards and its amendments for
the first time for annual reporting period
commencing April 1, 2018;

- IND AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

1.2

- Amendment to IND AS 20, Accounting for
Government Grant and Disclosure of
Government Assistance.

- Appendix B, Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration to IND AS 21, The
Effects of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate

- Amendment to IND AS 12, Income Taxes

The Company had to change its accounting
policies following the adoption of IND AS 115,
Most of the other amendments listed above did
not have any impact on the amounts recognized
in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current and future pericds

Foreign Currency Translation
a) Functional and Presentation Currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates
(the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Indian rupees
(As.), which is Company's functional and
presentation currency,

b} Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
and recorded into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominatad
in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an
adjustment to borrowing costs are presented
in the statement of profit and loss, within
finance costs, All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the
statement of profit and loss on a net basis
within other income or other expenses, as
applicable.

Non-maonetary items that are measured in
tarms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of initial transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in § Lakhs, unless otherwise statad)

13

Non-manetary iterns that are measured at fair
value in a fareign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale
of manufactured goods and related services.

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers on the Company's financial
statements.

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting
Standard 115 (IND AS 115) Revenue from
Contracts with Customers from April 01, 2018
which resulted in changes in accounting policies
and adjustments to the amounts recognised in
the financial statements. In accordance with the
transition provisions in Ind AS 115, the Campany
has adopted the modified retrospective approach
and accordingly the comparatives for the financial
year ended March 31, 2018 have not been
restated,

The Company has assessed revenue contracts
and revenue is recognized upon satisfying specific
performance obligations in accordance with
provisions of contract with the customer as
against recognition on the basis of transfer of risks
and rewards approach adopted till March 37, 2018,
This is achieved upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers,
which is generally determined when documents
of title/ products are delivered to the customer,
customer has full discretion over the praduct and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that would affect
customer’s acceptance of the product. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped in
accordance with the agreed delivery terms with
the customer, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customer and the
Company has a present right to payment. All the
foregoing occurs at a point intime upon shipment
or delivery of the product,

The Company considers terms of the contract in
determining the transaction price. The price is
based on the amount that reflects the

consideration the Company expects to be entitled
to in exchange for transfer of promised products
or services to the customer.

The Company considers freight and handling
activities as costs to fulfil the promise to transfer
the related products and the customer payments
for such activities are recorded as a component
of revenue. A receivable is recagnised when the
goods are delivered as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
paymeantis due,

In certain customer contracts, freight services are
treated as a distinct separate performance
obligation and the Company recognises revenue
far such services when the performance obligation
is completed. The related shipping and handling
costs incurred are included in freight expenses
when the Company is acting as principal in the
shipping and handling arrangement.

For volume discounts and pricing incentives
offered to the customers, the Company makes
estimates and provide for based on customer
performance and sales volume, which is recorded
as deductions from Revenue,

Revenue fram services is recognized when the
services are completed,

Revenue excludes any taxes and duties collected
on behalf of the government.

When there is uncertainty as to measurement or
ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is
postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

The Company does not have any contracts where
inthe period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the custemer and payment
by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Company does not adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of
maoney.

Invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as
contract liabilities.

Export Incentives

Export incentives and subsidies are recognized
when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with the conditions and the
incentive will be received. Export benefits arising



STRATEGIC REPORT STATUTORY REPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amoeunts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.4

15

1.8

fram duty drawback scheme and merchandise
export incentive scheme are recognised on
shipment.

Other Income

Dividend income is recognized when right to
receive the dividend is established. Interest income
is recognized on a time proportion basis, taking
into consideration the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate except interest income
from customers which is accounted on receipt
basis.

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonabla
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with all attached conditions,

Grants related to assets are government grants
whose primary condition is that an entity qualifying
forthem should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire long-term assels. Grants related to income
are government grants other than those related
fo assets.

Government grants relating to income are
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate on &
systematic basis and presented either under "other
operating income” or are deducted in reporting
the related expense, Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred are recognised in the statement
ot profit and loss in the period in which they
become receivable. The presentation approach
is applied consistently to all similar grants.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to
profit or loss over the periods and in proportions
in which depreciation expense on those assets s
recognized.

Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is
the tax payahle on the current year's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences
and to unused tax losses,

a)

b)

Current Income Tax

Current income tax charge is basad on taxable
profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date where the Company operates
and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions whers
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and Company intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liakility simultanecusly.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full using
the liability method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is prabable that future taxable
income will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses, depreciation carry-forwards and
unused tax credits could be utilized.

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss).

Ceferred tax assets and liabilities are
determinad using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected
to epply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets is reviewead at sach reparting date and
adjusted to reflect changes in probability that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allowv all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in § Lakhs, unless otherwise statad)

1.7

Deferred tax assats are recognised far all
deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off-set
when there is a legally enlorceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred lax balances relate to the
same taxation authority and the Company
intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on net basis.

Current and Deferred Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to itams recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax ('MAT') credit
entitlement is recognized as a deferred tax
asset by crediting the Statement of profit and
loss only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that MAT credit will
reverse in the forseeable future and the
Company will be able to utilise the said credit
against normal tax payable during the
specified period.

Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends
is recognised consistently with the
presentation of the transaction that creates
the income tax consequence. Dividend
distribution tax is charged to Statement of
Frofit and Loss if the dividend itself is charged
to statement of profit and loss. If the dividend
is recognised in equily, the presentation of
dividend distribution tax is recognised in
equity.

Leases
- As alessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where
the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in borrowings or other financial liabilities
as appropriate,

18

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liahility and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to the profitor loss overthe lease period
s0 as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Company as lessee are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under aoperating leases
{net of any incentives received fram the lessor]
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments
are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor's
expected inflationary cast increases,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost, All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable on making the asset
ready for its intended use and borrowing cost for
qualifying assets,

Subsequent costs of replacement and major
maintenance or repair (Overhaul costs) are
included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the cost
can be measurad reliably. The carrying amount
of any assets or component of an asset replaced
is derecognised when replaced. Overhaul costs
associated with major maintenance are capitalizad
and depreciated over their useful lives. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred,

Capital work-in-progress comprises cast of
property, plant and equipment and related
expenses that are not yet ready for their intended
use at the reporting date,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual value

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold
improvements are amaortised over the shorter of
estimated useful life or the related lease term,
Depreciation is calculated using the straighi-line
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amoeunts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.8

method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Assets Useful Life
Office Eguipment 05 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Computer 03 years
Vehicles 08 years
Plant and Machinery® 15 to 25 years
Electrical Installation 10 years
Factary Building 30 years
Residential and other Buildings 60 years

*Extra shift depreciation is provided.

The useful lives have been determined based on
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The
residual values are not more than 5% of the original
cost of the asset, The assets’ residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period,
Each component of an item of property, plant
and equipment with a cost that is significant in
relation to the 1otal cost of that item is depreciated
separately, if its useful life differs from that of other
components of the asset.

Estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation methods are reviewed annually,
taking into account commercial and technological
obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

As asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from continued use of asset.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss within other expenses
or other income, as applicable.

Intangible Assets
a) Intangible Assets with Finite Useful Lives:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives
acquired by the Company are measured at
cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, Amortization
is charged on a straight-line basis over the
estimated ussful lives. The estimated useful
lite and amoartization method are reviewed at

1.10

1.1

the end of each annual reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in the estimate being
accounted for an a prospective basis.

b) Research and Development:

Research expenditure and development
expenditure that do not meet the criteria in
Mote 1.9(a) above are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in subsequent period.

¢) Amortisation Methods and Periods:

Intangible assets comprise of computer
software which is amortized on a straight-line
basis over its expected usetul life over a period
of five years.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
are not subject to amortization and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or gqroups of assets (cash-generating units).
Mon-financial assets that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Animpairment loss or a reversal of an impairment
loss is immediately recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

MNon-Current Assets held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower
of their carrying amaount and fair value less costs
to sell.
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1.12

1.13

An impairment loss is recagnised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the assets (o fair value
less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any
subsequent increases in fair value less cost to sell
of an assets, but not in excess of any cumulative
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or
loss not previously recognised by the date of the
sale of the non-current assets is recognised at the
date of de-recognition,

Non-current assets are not depreciated or
amortized while they are classified as held for sale.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, goods-in-process and
finished goods

Raw materiale, stores, goods-in-process and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of raw materials
comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in
progress and finished goods comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the |atter being allocated on the basis
of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories
also include all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Costs are assigned to individual items
of inventory on moving average basis. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necassary to
make the sale,

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to afinancial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of anather entity,

Investments and Other Financial Assets
a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

e Those to be measured subseguently at fair
value {either through other comprehensive
income, or thraugh profit or loss), and

s Those measured at amortised cost,

b)

(i)

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income.

For investments in debt instruments,
recognition will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held.

For investments in equity instruments,
recagnition will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the company commits to purchase
or sale the financial assel.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset naot at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensad in profit or loss,

Debt instruments:

Subseqguent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Company’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which
the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised Cost;

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where thase cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost.
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(ii)

Interest income from these financial assets is
included infinance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/
{losses). Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit
and loss,

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI),
Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interast income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit and loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OC| is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other expenses or other
incomes, as applicable. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign Exchange gains and losses
are presented in other gains and losses and
impairment expenses in other expenses.

Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss
and is not part of & hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
inthe statement of profit and loss within other
expenses or other incomes, as applicable in
the period in which it arises. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other
income,

Equity Instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair valus. Where the
Company’'s management has elected to
presant fair value gains and lossas on equity

d)

e)

investments in other comprehensive income,
there will be no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses Lo profit or loss.
Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Company's right to receive
payments is established,

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in the statement of profil and loss, Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOC! are not
reported separately from other changes in fair
value,

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI debt instruments, ECL recognized
during the period. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 37 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company
applies the simplified approach permitted by
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Derecognition of Financial Assets Revenue
Recognition

Afinancial asset is derecognised only when

« The Company has transferred the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial
asselor

» Retains the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of the financial assst, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the
Cempany evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is deracognised. Where the
entity has not transferred substantially all risks

i
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f)

and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a
financial asset nor retains substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the
Company has nat retained control of the
financial asset. Where the Company retains
cantrol of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing invelvement in the financial asset.

Income Recognition
(i} Interestinceme:

Interest income from financial assets at
fair value through profit orloss is disclosed
as interest income within other income.
Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost and financial assets at
FVOCI is calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as part of ather
income.

Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the affective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset {after
deduction of the loss allowance).

(i) Dividends:

Dividends are received from financial
assets at fair value through profit or lass
and at FVOCI, Dividends are recognised
as other income in profit or loss when the
right to receive payment is established.
This applies even if they are paid out of
pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment.

g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash squivalents includes cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of

h)

cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of staterment of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes
outstanding bank overdraft, if any, shown
within borrowings in statement of financial
position and which are considered as integral
part of Company’s cash managemeant policy.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services
perfarmed inthe ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they cantain significant
financing components or pricing adjustment
embedded in the contract, when they are
recognised at fair value,

Financial Liabilities

b)

Measurement

Financial lisbilities are initially recognised at fair
value, reduced by transaction costs {in case
of financial liability not at fair value through
profit or loss), that are directly attributable to
the issue of financial liability. After initial
recognition, financial liabilities are measured
at amortised cost using effective interest
method, The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
outfiow (including all fees paid, transaction
cost, and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
periad, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. At the time of initial recognition,
there is no financial liability irrevocably
designated as measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Liabilities from finance lease
agreements are measured at the lower of fair
value of the |eased asset or present value of
minimum lease payments.

Derecagnition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an axisting financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially
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c)

madified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the de-recognition of the original
ligbility and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds {net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recagnised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
dowrn. In this case, the lee is deferred until the
draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised aver the pariod of the
facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are removed from the balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired,
The difference between the carrying amount
of afinancial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transterred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or
part of the liability (debt for equity swap), &
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,
which is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
and the fair value of the equity instruments
issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Company has unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at |least
12 months after the reporting period. Where
there is a breach of a material provision of a
long-term arrangement on or before the end

d)

of the reporting period with the effect that the
liability becomes payable on demand on the
reporting date, the entity does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after
the reporting period and before the approval
of the financial statements for issue, not to
demand payment as consequence cf the
breach.

Trade and Other Payables

Thesa amounts represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the group prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually
paid within 30 days recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

a)

b)

c)

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign
exchange, interest rate, and commodity price
risks, the Company enters into forward,
pption, swap contracts and other derivative
financial instruments. The Company does not
hold derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is enfered
into and are subsequently re-measured to
their fair value at the end of each reporting
period,

Derivatives that are not Designated as Hedges

The Company enters into derivative contracts
to hedge risks which are not designated as
hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at
fair value through profit or loss.

Embedded Derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that
is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are
not separated. Financial assets with embaddad
derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest,
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Derivatives embedded in all other host contract
are separated only if the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to the
econamic characteristics and risks of the host
and are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related
to the host contracts are not separated,

d) Embedded Foreign Currency Derivatives

Embedded foreign currency derivatives are
not separated from the host contract if they
are closely related. Such embedded
derivatives are closely related to the host
contract, if the host contract is not leveraged,
does not contain any option feature and
requires payments in one of the following
currencies:

« Thefunetional currency of any substantial
party to that contract,

« The currency in which the price of the
related good or service that is acquired or
delivered is routinely denominated in
commercial transactions around the
world, or

« A currency that is commonly used in
contracts to purchase or sell non-financial
items in the economic environment in
which the transaction takes place (i.e.
relatively liquid and stable currency)

Foreign currency embedded derivatives
which do not meet the above criteria are
separated and the derivative is accounted for
at fair value through profit and loss. The
Company currently does not have any such
derivatives which are not closely related.

e] Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liahilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforcesble right must not be
contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal eourse of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptey of the Company or the
counterparty.

1.14

1.15

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale, Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expansed in the period
in which they are incurred,

Employee Benefits
Short-Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
whaolly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presentad as current employes benefit obligations
in the balance sheet.

Current abligations also include compensatory
abhsences which accrue to employees and are
expected to be availed within twelve months after
the end of the pericd in which the employees
render the related service. These compensalory
absences are measured on actual basis.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liakilities for earned leave are not expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render
the related service. They are therefare measured
as the present value of expected future payments
to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period
using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms
of the related obligation.
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Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
ara recognised in other comprahensive income.

The abligations are presented as current liabilities
inthe balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period,

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
and loss in the subsequent periods,

Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting fram plan
amendments or curtallments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
cost,

regardless of when the actual settlement is b) Defined Contribution Plans
cted t .
FApEEiEE iE peedt {ij Provident Fund, Pension Fund, Employee
Post-employment obligations State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) and
The Company operates the following post- Labour Welfare Fund (LWF)
emplayment schemes: The Contribution towards provident fund,
Defined banefit ol h : d pensiaon fund, ESIC, LWF for certain
-Lelined. jenelit plans sho as gratuity, an employees is made to the regulatory
- Defined contribution plans such as provident authorities where the Company has no further
fund and superannuation fund. obligations. Such benefits are classified as
Defined Contribution Schemes as the
a) Defined Benefit Plans Company does not carry any further
obligations apart from the contributions made
(i) Gratuity Obligations on'a morthly basis:
The liability recognised in the balance sheet i .
in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is b Supstumtion g
the present value of the defined benefit Contribution towards superannuation fund
obligation at the end of the reporting period. for certain employees is made to defined
The defined benefit obligation is calculated contribution scheme administered by
annually by actuaries using the projected unit insurance Company where the Company has
credit method no further obligations. Such benefits are
classitied as Defined Contribution Schemes
The present value of the defined benefit as the Company does not carry any further
obligation denominated is determined by obligations, apart from contribution made on
discounting the estimated future cash monthly basis.
outflows by reference to market yields at the ¢) Shared Based Payments

end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the
terms of the related obligation,

The nget interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit abligation and the fair value
of plan assets. This cost is included in
empioyee benefit expense in the statement
of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and |lossas arising from
experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized as credit
or charge in the peried in which they oceur,
directly in other comprehensive income, They
are included in retained earnings in the
staternent of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet,

Employee Options

The fair value of options granted under the
AYM Syntex Limited Employee Option
scheme is recognised as an employes benefits
expense with a corresponding increase in
equily as 'Employee stock option’. The total
amount to be expensead is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options at
the grant date:

including any market performance conditions
(e.g., the entity's share price)

excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (e.g.
profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity aver a
specified time period), and
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including the impact of any non-vesting
canditions {e.g. the requirement for
employees to save or holdings shares for a
specific period of time),

The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which
all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of sach period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on
the non-market wvesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to ariginal estimates, if any, in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Bonus Plan

The Company recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses. The Company
recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

1.16 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

82

a) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, guality claims,
volume discounts and returns are recognised
when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to ssttle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of management's best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision
is measured using the estimated cash flows
to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash
flows. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

117

1.18

b)

c)

Provisions far restructuring are recognised by
the Campany when it has developed a detailed
formal plan for restructuring and has raised a
valid expectation in those affected that the
Company will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement the plan orannouncing
its main features to those affected by it. Where
there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be reguired in
settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A pravision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

The measurement of provision for
restructuring includes only direct
expenditures arising from the restructuring,
which are both necessarily entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with the
ongoing activities of the Company.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there
is @ possible obligation arising from past
events the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of ane or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannat be made.

Contingent Assets

Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. An
entity cshall not recognise a contingent asset
unless the recovery is virtually certain,

Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new
chares or aptions are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
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longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

1.19 Earnings Per Share

1.20

1.21

1.22

Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares. (Note 40)

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares, and the weighted
average number of additional equity shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the
canversion of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

The managing director, who has been identified
as the chief operating decision maker, assesses
the financial performance end position of the
Company and makes strategic decisions. Refer
MNote 47 for the segment information presented.

Rounding of Amounts

All amounts disclosed inthe financial statements
and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
lakhs with two decimal as per the requirement of
Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

New Standards/ Amendments to Existing
Standards Issued but not yet Adopted

Following are the amendments to existing
standards which have been issued by The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs ((MCA’) that are not effective
for the reporting period and have not been early
adopted by the Company:

a) Amendments to Ind AS 116, Leases
On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate

i)

Affairs (MCA) notified Ind AS 116, Leases as
part of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS)) Amendment Rules, 2019,
Ind AS 116 replaces existing standard Ind AS
17, Leases, with effect from accounting
periods beginning on or after April 01, 2019,
The new standard introduces a single model
aon-balance sheet lease accounting and
eliminates the classification of leases as either
finance leases or operating leases for a lessee
as was required under Ind AS 17, Ind AS 116
requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset
is of low value. For all Ieases except as noted
ahbove, alessee is required to recognise a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease
payments in its financial statement. Lessee will
recognise depreciation of right of use assets
and interest on lease liabilities in the statement
of profit or loss. In the cash flow statement,
operating cash flows will be higher as payment
of the lease liability and related interest are to
be classified within financing activities.

Requirements with regard to lessor
accounting are substantially similar to
accounting requirements contained in Ind AS
17. Accordingly, a lessor will continue to
classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and account for those two
types of leases differently.

The standard permits two possible methods
of transition:

Fully retrospective- Retrospectively to each
prior period presented applying Ind AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

Modified retrospective- Retrospectively, with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial
application,

Under maoditied retrospective approach, the
lessee records the lease liability as the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted at the incremental borrowing rate
and the right of use asset either as:
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1.

b)

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

Its carrying amount as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date,
but discounted at lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application
or

An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments ralated to that lease recognized
under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date
of initial application.

The Company is currently assessing the
potential impact of the new Ind AS. These
amendments are mandatory for the reporting
period beginning on or after April 01, 2019,

Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments, to Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes'

The appendix explains howto recagnize and
measure deferred and current income tax
assets and liabilities where there is uncertainty
over atax treatment, In particular, it discusses:

How to determine the appropriate unit of
account, and that each uncertain tax
treatment should be considered separately or
together as a group, depending on which
approach better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty;

That the entity should assume a tax authority
will examine the uncertain tax treatments and
have full knowledge of all related information,
i.e. that detection risk should be ignored;

That the entity should reflect the effect of the
uncertainty in its income tax accounting when
it is not probable that the tax authorities will
acceptthe treatment;

That the impact of the uncertainty should be
measured using either the most likely amount
orthe expected value method, depending on
which method better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty; and

That the judgement and estimates made must
be reassessed whenever circumstances have
changed or there is new information that
affects the Judgement, The Company is
currently assessing the potential impact of this
amendment. These amendments are

c)

d)

ii)

iii)

mandatary far the reporting period beginning
on or after April 01, 2019.

Amendment to Ind AS 109, ‘Financial
Instruments’ - Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendment made to Ind AS 108 enable
entities to measure certain pre-payable
financial assets (e.g. loans and debt securities
which otherwise have 1o be measured as
FVTPL) with negative compensation at
amortised cost. To qualify for amortised cost
measurement, the negative compensation
must be ‘reasonable compensation for early
termination of the contract’ and the asset
must be held within a 'held to collect’
business model. The Company is currantly
assessing the potential impact of this
amendment, These amendments are
mandatory for the reporting period beginning
on or after April 01, 2019,

Amendment to Ind AS 19, '"Employee
Benefits' - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

The amendment to Ind AS 19 clarifies the
accounting for defined benefit plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements.
It confirms that entities must:

Calculate the current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the reporting
period after a plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement by using the updated
assumptions from the date of the change;

Any reduction in a surplus should be
recognised immediately in profit or loss either
as part of past service cost, or as a gain or
loss on settlement. In other words, a
reduction in & surplus must be recognised in
profit or loss even if that surplus was not
previously recognised because of the impact
of the assat ceiling; and

Separately recognise any changes intha assest
ceiling through other comprehensive income.
The Company is currently assessing the
potential impact of this amendment. These
amendments are mandatory forthe reporting
period beginning on or after April 01, 2018
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g)

h)

Amendment to Ind AS 103, ‘Business
Combinations’

The amendment clarifies that obtaining control
of a business that is a joint operation, is a
business combination achieved in stages. The
acguirer should re-measure its previously held
interest in the joint operation at fair value at
the acquisition date, The Company is currently
assessing the potential impact of this
amendment. These amendments are
mandatory for the reporting period beginning
an or after April 01, 2019,

Amendment to Ind AS ‘Joint

Arrangements’

111,

The amendment clarifies that the party
obtaining joint control of a business that is a
joint cperation should not remeasure its
previously held interest in the joint operation.
The Company is currently assessing the
potential impact of this amendment, These
amendments are mandatary for the reporting
period beginning on or after April 01, 2019,

Amendment to Ind AS 23, ‘Borrowing Costs’

The amendment clarifies that if a specific
borrowing remains outstanding after the
related qualifying asset is ready for its intended
use or sale, it becomes part of general
borrowings. The Company is currently
assessing the potential impact of this
amendment. These amendments are
mandatory for the reporting period beginning
on or after April 01, 2019,

Amendment to Ind AS 12, 'Income Taxes'

The amendment clarifies that the income tax
consequences of dividends on financial
instruments classified as equity should be
recognised according to where the past
transactions or events that generated
distributable profits were recognised. These
requirements apply to all income tax
consequences of dividends. Previously, it was
unclear whether the income tax
consequences of dividends should be
recognised in profit or loss, or in equity, and
the scope of the existing guidance was
ambiguous. The Company is currently
assessing the potantial impact of this
amendment. These amendments are
mandatory for the reporting period beginning
on or after April 01, 2019,

The Company intends to adopt these amendments
when it becames effective. There are no other
standards or amendments that are not yet effective and
that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Company in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.

MNote 2: Critical Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use
of accounting estimates and assumptions, about
carrying value of assets and liakilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources, which by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs
to exercise judgement in applying the Company's
accounting policies. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

This note provides an overview of the areas that
involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
and of items which are more likely 1o be materially
adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out
to be differant than those originally assessed. Detailed
information about each of these estimates and
judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each
affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical Estimates and Judgements

a) Estimation of Current Tax and Deferred Income
Tax

The calculation of the Company’s tax charge
necessarily involves a degree of estimation and
judgement in respect of certain items whose tax
treatment cannot be finally determined until
resolution has been reached with the relevant tax
authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal
process. The final resolution of some of thase
items may give rise to material profits/losses and/
or cash flows. Significant judgments are involved
in determining the provision for income taxes,
including amount expected to be paid/recovered
for uncertain tax positions (Refer Note 34).

The recognition of deferred income tax assets
including Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT Credit)/
liabilities is based upon management's assessment
of future recoverability of the deferred benefit.
Expected recoverability may result from sufficient
and suitable taxable prohits in the future, planned
transactions and planned tax optimizing measures
against which the reversal of temporary
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b)

c)

d)

86

differences can be deducted. To determine the
future taxable profits, reference iz made to the
latest available profit forecasts. Economic
conditions may change and lead to a differemt
conclusion regarding recoverability,

Estimation of Provisions & Contingent Liabilities

The Company exercises judgement in measuring
and recognising provisions and the exposures to
contingent liabilities which are related to pending
litigation or other outstanding claims. Judgement
is necessary in assessing the likelihood thal a
pending claim will succeed, ar a liability will arise,
and to quantify the possible range of the financial
setflement. Because of the inherent uncertainty
in this evaluation process, actual liability may be
different from the originally estimated as provision,
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the
financial statements, (Refer Note 38).

Estimated Useful Life of Property, Plant and
Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent a
significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the
expected residual value at the end of its life. The
useful lives and residual values of Company's
assets are determined by management at the time
the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at each financial year end. Factors such
as changes in the expected level of usage,
technological developments, product life cycle
may impact their life and the residual value of
these assets. This reassessment may result in
change in depreciation and amaortization expense
and have an impact on profit in future years. For
the relative size of the Company’s property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets (Refer Notes
Jand 4).

Estimation of Provision for Inventory

The Company writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an estimate of the
realisability of inventories. Write downs on
inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying

e)

balances may not realised. The identification of
write-downs reauires the use of estimates of net
selling prices of the down-graded inventories,
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of
inventories in the periods in which such estimate
has been changed. Refer Note 2 for details of
inventory and provisions.,

Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation

The present value of the defined banefit
obligations depends on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuarial basis using a
number of assumptions. Significant judgements
are required when setting these assumptions
which include estimation of appropriate discount
rate, inflation, salary growth, attrition rates and
martality rates. Any changes in these assumptions
will impact the carrying amount of such
obligations. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The Company determines the appropriate
discount rate at the end of each year. This is the
interest rate that should be used to determine the
present value of estimated future cash outflows
expected to be reqguired to settle the defined benefit
obligations. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Company considers the interest
rates of government bonds of maturity
approximating the terms of the related plan liability.
Refer Note 31 for the details of the assumptions
used in estimating the defined benefit obligation.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Management uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on
observable markei conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period. But where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement s required in
establishing fair value, Change in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments. For details of the
key assumptions used and the impact of changes
to these assumptions see Note 35,
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Note 4: Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Software Total
Year Ended March 31, 2018
Gross Carrying Amount
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 82.57 82 57
Additions 59.50 59.50
Disposals [25.26) [25.26]
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 116.81 116.81
Accumulated Amortisation
Opening Accumulated Amortisation 16.06 16.056
Amaortisation Charge During the Year 22.61 22,67
Amortisation on Disposals (5.32] (5.32)
Closing Accumulated Amortisation 33.34 33.34
Met Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 83.47 83.47
Year Ended March 31, 2019
Gross Carrying Amount
Opening Gross Carrying Amaount 116.81 116.81
Additions - -
Disposals
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 116.81 116.81
Accumulated amortisation
Opening Accumulated Amortisation 33.34 33.34
Amaortisation Charge During the Year 18.66 18.66
Amortisation on Disposals - -
Closing Accumulated Amortisation 52.00 52.00
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 64.81 64.81
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Mote 5: Non-Current Financial Assets - Other Financial Assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
Security Deposits 15.28 7.01
Bank Deposit with more than 12 Months Maturity 4.54
Total 19.82 7.1
Note 6: Income Tax Assets (net)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018

Income Tax Assets | Net of Provision for Tax T 4,895.74 Lakhs,

March 31, 2018 : T 4,789.81 Lakhs) 131.49 143.09
Total 131.49 143.09
MNote 7: Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Deferred Tax Assets

Unabsorbed Tax Losses - Depreciation 2,859.45 2,003.11
Employee Benefits / Expenses allowable an Payment Basis 302.22 311.00
MAT credit entitlement® 4,895.74 4,789.81
Total (A) 8,057.41 7,103.92
Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation an Fraperty, Flant, Equipment and Intangible Assets 5,450.93 4 643,05
Total (B) 5,450,93 4,643.05
Met Defered Tax Assets /(Liabilities) 2,606.48 2.460.87
Notes:

Unrecognised deferrad lax assal on temporary differences relating to unused tax losses (capital loss) @ T742.3% lakhs [March 37, 2018 1 3
742,39 lakhs], This will expire in various yvears upto financial year 2021-22.

*In assessing the realizability of deferred tax on MAT credit entitlement, the Company considers the extent to which it is probable that the

credit will be realized.

Entittement of MAT credit is recognised 1o the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will be able to utilise the said credit

against normal tax payable during the period of fifteen years succeeding the yvear of filing of return of Income tax. The Company considers
the expected projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assesament.

Bazed on thig, the Company believes that it is probable that the Company will realize the benefits of this MAT credit entitlement.
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MNaote 8: Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Capital Advances 377.78 1,976.62
Prepaid Expenses 20.13 29.66
Balances with Government Authorities 552.18 83.15
Total 950.09 2,089.43
Note 9: Inventories
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Raw Materials

-In Stock 3,509.94 2,627.49

-In Transit - 141.35
Goods-in-Process 1,167.21 1,350.48
Finished Goods

-In Stock 2.469.18 2,.815.07

-ln Transit 1,210.92 595,88
Stores, Spares and Packing Material 2.321.78 1,461.38
Tatal 10,679.03 8,991.65
Refer Mote 1.12 for Basis of Valuation
MNote 10: Current Investments

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 21, 2018

Investment in Mutual Funds (Quoted)

HDFC Liguid Fund-Regular Plan-Grawth:

Units 10,940.12 (March 31, 2018: Nif) 400.44

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund-Growth Regular Plan:

Units 133,975.60 March 31, 2078:Md) A00.59 -

Reliance Liguid Fund-Growth Plan-Growth Option(LFIGG):

Unit 11,030.13 (March 37, 2018:NVl} 500.68

UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Institutional - Growth:

Units 8,567.03 (March 31, 2018: 24,714) 200.29 701.09

Total 1.502.00 701.09

Note 11: Trade Receivables - Unsecured, Considered Good

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Trade Heceivables 10,252.74 7.881.26

Receivables from Related Parties (Refer Mote 46) - 887.61

Total 10,252.74 8,568.87
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MNote 12: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 313.21 753,30
Cash on Hand 16.72 17.21
Total 329.93 770.80
Nots:
There are restricted bank balances on aceount of unpaid dividend - $0.36 lakhs (March 21, 2018 : $0.36 lakhs]
MNote 13: Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents Above
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance with Banks in:
- In Escrow Accounts [Refer Mote (a) below] 655,17 534.60
- In Fixed Deposits with Banks having Criginal Maturity Period
upto Twelve Months [Refer Nate (b} below] 1,286.95 1.512.87
Total 1,942.12 2,047.47
Motes:

a  Balances in escrow accounts are restricted bank balances against maturities and interest payments of borrowings.

b. Fixed money deposits with banks having maturity period more than 12 months are disclosed under *Non-current financial assets -

Other financial assets”"(Refer Mole 5).

Note 14: Current Financial Assets - Loans Unsecured, Considered Good

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Loans and Advances to Employees 23.20 97.28
Total 232.90 §7.28
MNote 15: Current Financial Assets - Others
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Security Deposits 898.20 101.37
Less: Provision for Doubtful Deposits (70.786) -
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 30.03 32.63
Insurance Claim Receivable 104.96 -
Total 162.43 134.00
91
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Mote 16: Other Current Assets

Particulars As at As at
Marech 31, 2019 March 21, 2018
Assets held for Disposal 7.84 7.49
Advances to vendars (recoverable incash or kind] 331.09 260.89
Prepaid Expenses 190.16 160.55
Balances with Government Authorities 3.753 .58 3,159.52
Expart benefits receivable 155.65 61.87
Other Recaivables 319.62 1493.20
Total 4,757.94 3,843.61
Note 17 (a): Equity Share Capital
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Authaorized Equity Share Capital

8,20,00,000 (March 31, 2018: 8,20,00,000) Eguity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 9,200.00 9,200.00
2,80,00,000 (March 31, 2018: 2,80,00,000)
Optionally Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of T10/- each 2,800.00 2,.800.00
Total 12,000.00 12,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Equity Share Capital
45,689,568 (March 31, 2018: 45,689 568)
Equity Shares of 110/- each fully paid up 4,558.96 4,558.96
Total 4,558.96 4,558.96
i) Movement in Equity Share Capital
Particulars Number of equity shares Amount
As at April 1, 2016 39,239,568 3,923.96
Add/{less}: Increase/ (Decrease) During the Year - -
As at March 31, 2017 39,239,568 3,923.96
Add: Preferential Allotment of Equity Shares ta Holding Company
[Refer Mote 17(a)({iv) below) 5,350,000 635.00
As at March 31, 2018 45,589,568 4,558.96
Add/{Less): Movement - -
As at March 31, 2019 45,589,568 4,558.96

ii}j Terms/ Rights Attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 110 per share. All issued shares rank pari-passu and
have same vating rights par share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupses. The final dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of tha Company, aftar distribution of prefarential amounts. The distribution will ba in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

iii) Shares Reserved for lssue under Warrants

43,176,666 warrants of T 75 per warrant have been issued and alletted to Mandawewala Enterprises Limited on 8th

March 2018, 25% af the face value is received at the time of allotment and balance 75%

equity shares at the option of holder of the warrant, within 18 months from the data of allotment.

iv) Equity Shares held by Holding Company

is receivable on conversion into

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Mandawewala Enterprises Limited 31,913,632 31,913,632

6,350,000 equity shares of ¥10 at a premium of T 65 per share have been issued and allotted to Mandawewala Enterprises
Limited, during the year. Out of this, 6,000,000 equity shares have been issued and allotted by converting corporate loan

of $4,500 lakhs.
v) Details of Shareholders Holding more than 5% Equity Shares

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Mandawewala Enterprises Limited Mumber of Equity Shares 31,913,632 31,913,632
Mandawewala Enterprises Limited % of Holding 70.00% 70.00%
Note 17 (b): Other Equity - Reserves and Surplus
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Capital Reserve 2,664.93 2,664.93
Capital Redemption Reserve 293.36 293.36
Securities Premium 4 168.05 4,168.05
General Reserve 107.06 107.06
Share Options Outstanding Account 57.76
Retained Earnings 17,604.40 17,198 .65
Total 24,895.56 24,432.05
Movement:
- Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 7 664.893 Z2,664.93
Add/[Less): Changes During the Year
2,664.93 2,664.93
- Capital Redemption Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 283.36 293.36
Add/[Less): Changes During the Year - .
2593.36 293.36
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Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

- Debenture Redemption Reserve

Asg per last Balance Sheat - 107.08
[Less): Transferred to General Reserve during the year - {107.08)
- Securities Premium
As per last Balance Sheet 4,168.05 40,65
Add: Preamium Received on Preferential Allotment of
Equity Shares to Halding Company (Refer Note 17(al{iv]) - 4,127.50
4,168.05 4,168.05
- General Reserve
As par last Balance Sheet 107.06
Add: Transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve during the year 107.06
107.06 107.06
- Share Options Outstanding Account
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Employes Stock Options Expensed (Refer Note 48) 657.76
57.76 -
- Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet 17,198.65 16,404.47
Change in Accounting Policy (Refer Note 49) (177.61)
Add/(Less);
Met Profit for the year 586.15 B800.05
Item of Other Comprehensive Income Recognized Directly
in Retained Earnings = g
- Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligation, Net of Tax (2.79] (5.87)
17,604.40 17,198.65
Note 17 (¢): Other Equity - Money Received against Share Warrants
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
As per last Balance Sheet 809.37 -
Add: Share Warrants Issued to Mandawewala Enterprises Limited [Refer Note 17(a)(iii]] - 809.37
Total 809.37 B09.37
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Mature and Purpose of Reserves

i} Capital Reserve

Capital reserve represents capital surplus and is not available for distribution as dividend.

i) Securities Premium Reserve

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance

with the provizsions of the Companies Act, 2013,
i) Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR)

CHH is created on redemption of Preference Shares in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

iv] Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR)

DRR was created on issue of Debentures in the earlier years This has been transferred to General Reserve as the

Debentures have been redeemed.
v} General Reserve

General Reserve represents appropriation of profits by the Company.
vi) Share Options Outstanding Account

The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees

under AYM Syntex Limited employee stock aption plan.
vii] Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent the accumulated undistributed earnings.

MNote 18: Non-Current Borrowings

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Secured
Term Loans froam Banks
- Rupee Loans 19,294 .77 16,712.90
- Foreign Currency Loans 2.067.73 2,668.27
Unsecured, Considered Goad
Inter-Corporate Deposits from Related Parties 3,600.00 1,200.00
Amount Disclosed Under the Head “Current Maturities of
Long-Term Borrowings” (Refer Note 23) (4,541.02) {4,174.31)
Total 20,421.48 16.406.86
Note:

The rate of interest on the rupes borrowings are in range of 9.80% to 11.00% (March 31, 2018: 9.50% to 11.00%) and foreign currency
loans are in the range 4.50% to 5.20% (March 37, 2018: 4.40% to 5.78%), The rupee term loans from banks are eligible for Central and

State Government interesl subsidies/ rebates,

95

'&\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\“‘



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise statad)

Last As at As at
Particulars Installment Terms of Hepayment March 31, March 31,
Due 2019 2018
R e Term L is Secured by 1st pari passicha .
D:E,E the p:;'s;,’,fg,:d FTJcture Fixy;d AE:&IEI.:: all Ma-..rarb';:: January 2018 | Repayablain Elﬂua rterly Installmeants 32657
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari passu Commencing from July 2018
Charged gver Current Assets of the Company
Rupee Term Loan is Secured by 1st pari passu charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable |  March 2018 | Repayable in 12 Quarterly Installments - 933.74
and Immovable properties and 2nd pari passu Commencing from June 2016
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Rupee Term Loan is Secured by 1st pari passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable | January 2021 | Repayable in 28 Quarterly Installments | 1,786.95 2,486.95
and Immovabla Properties and 2nd pari passu Commencing from April 2014
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
External Commerical Borrowings is Secured by 1st
pari passu Charge over the Present and Future Fixed | pygreh 2021 | Repayablein 28 Quarterly Instaliments | 2,067.73|  2,668.27
Assets, all Movable and Immovable Properties and Commencing from June 2014
2nd pari passu Charged over Current Assets of the
Company
Rupee Term Loan is Secured by 1st pari passu Charge ) .
owver the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable April 2021 | Repayable in 24 Quarterly Installments 841,37 740,89
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari passu Commencing fram July 2015
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Rupes Term Loan is Secured by 1st pari passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable | October 2023 | Repayable in 28 Quarterly Installments 929.99 1,050.01
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari pessu Commencing from Jan 2017
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Rupee Term Loan iz Secured by 1st pati passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable | October 2023 | Repayable in 28 Quarterly Installments | 1,545,118 1,744.20
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari passu Commencing from Jan 2017
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Rupee Term Loan is Secured by 15t pari passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assais, all Movable | December 2023| Repayable in 26 Quarterly Installments | 1,162.50 1,350.00
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari pessu Commencing from July 2017
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Rupee Term Loan is Secured by Tst pari passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable | March 2024 | Repayable in 28 Quarterly Installments | 1,587.76 1.822 56
and Immovabla Propertieas and 2nd pari passu Commencing from July 2017
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Rupee Term Loan is Secured by 1st pari passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable | March 2025 | Repayable in 28 Quarterly Installments | 1,833.57 2.076.56
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari passu Commencing from June 2018
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Rupee Term Loan is Secured by 15t pari passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable June 2025 | Repayable in 28 Quarterly Installments | 1,063.16 1,280.65
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari passu Commeancing from Dctober 2018
Charged aver Current Assets of the Company
Rupesa Term Loanis Secured by 1st pari passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable June 2025 | Repayable in 28 Quarterly Installments | 2 400.86 1,476.57
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari passu Commeneing fram October 2018
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Rupea Term Loan is Secured by 1st pari passu Charge
over the Present and Future Fixed Assets, all Movable | October 2026 | Repayable in 28 Quarterly Installments | 6,353.45 1.416.21
and Immovable Properties and 2nd pari passu Commencing from December 2019
Charged over Current Assets of the Company
Total 21,362.50| 19,381.17
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Note 19: Non-Current Employee Benefit Obligations

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 20) 643,97 672.19

Total 643,97 672.19
MNote 20: Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Deferred Capital Subsidy 16,72 -
Total 16.72 -
MNote 21: Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Secured

Working Capital Loan from Banks

- Rupee Loans 4,205,860 2,668.20
- Foreign Currency Loans 1,482.68
Unsecured

Buyars’ Cradit from Banks 1,869.78 854 .68
Total 6,175.66 5,005.56
Note:

The working capital loansg, which includes cash credit and packing credit from banks, are secured by hypothecation of raw material,
stock-in-process, finished goods, semi finished goods, stores, spares and book debts and other current assets of the Company and

gsacond charge on entire fixed assets of the Company.

Note 22: Trade Payables

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Acceptances 10,255.14 5,055.01
Others:

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer Mote 41) a927.13 45.70

Dues to Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 5,304.26 5,254.07

Total 16,486.53 10,354.78
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(Al amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 23: Other Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at As at
Marech 31, 2019 March 21, 2018
Current Maturities of Lang-Term Borrowings (Refer Note 18 4,541.02 4,174.31
Interest Accrued but not Due on Borrowings 144.13 109.98
Unclaimed Dividend (Refer Note (a) below| 0.36 0.36
Creditors for Capital Purchases 1,016.17 374.44
Security Deposits 86.82 66.58
Provision for Mark to Market Lasses on Derivative Contract - 3.04
Total 5,788.50 472871
Note:

There are no amounts due for payments to the investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1958
as at the year end. Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 which corresponds to Section 205C of the Companies Act 1956 has not yat
been enforced.

Note 24: Current Employee Benefit Obligations

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 30) 35.59 38,69

Provision far Compensated Absences (Refer Mote 30] 185.30 1740.10

Employes Benefit Payables 107.30 153.08

Total 328.19 361.87
Note:

The entire amaount of the provision of T1865.30 (37 Mareh 2018 - T170.10) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an
uneonditional right to defer settlement for any of these cbligations. Howsaver, based on past experience, tha group does not expect all
employess to avail the full amount of accrued leave or reguire payment for such leave within the next 12 months,

MNote 25: Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Contract Liabilities 254.42 -

Advance fram Customers - 448.67

Statutory Dues 119.64 139.50
Deterred Capital Subsidy 5.43

Total 379.49 588.17
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Note 26: Revenue from Operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 21, 2018

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Sale of Products 97,072.82 84,792 .34

Sales of Services 1,090.97 -
Other Operating Revenue

Job Work Revenue 147.85 265.57

Sale of Scrap 329,88 321.30

Export |ncentives (Refer Note balow) 656,64 737.83
Total 99,198.16 86,117.04
MNote:

Export incentives includes duty drawback and merchandise export incentive scheme. Also, Refer Nota 1.3,

MNote 27: Other Income

Particulars Year ended

Year ended

March 21, 2019 March 31, 2018
Exchange Difference [net) 185.61
Interest Income on:
- Fixed Deposits 93.17 97.06
- Dthers 58.55 83.14
Profit on Sale of Current Investments 5.1 £3.18
Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments 2.01 1.08
Insurance Claim 140.86 -
Interest Subsidy 174.43
Miscellaneous |ncome 115.21 128.99
Total 580.14 558.95
MNote 28: Cost of Materials Consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Raw Material Consumed
Inventary at the Beginning of the Year 2,768.84 2,526.72
Add: Purchases {net) 59,384.40 4970818
62,1532.24 52,234.90
Less: Inventory at the End of the Year 3.,609.94 2,/68.84
Total 58,643.30 49,466.06
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(Al amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 29: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Goods-in-Process

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Inventory at the End of the Year

Goods-in-Process 1,167. 211 1,350.48
Finished Goods 3,680.10 3,410,895
4,847.31 4,761.43

Less: Inventory at the Beginning of the Year
Goods-in-Process 1,350.48 1.014.01
Finished Goods 3,410.95 2,713.80
4,761.43 3.727.9
Total Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Goods-in-Process (85.88) (1.033.52)

Note 30: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries, Wages and Allowances 5,887.53 B,721.52
Employee Share Based Payment Expense (Refer note 48) b7.78 -
Managerial Remuneration 75.00 105.38
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 32783 331.54
Gratuity 136.80 135.89
Warkmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 224.19 285.06
Total 6,709.11 6,579.39

Defined Contribution Plans

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

During the year, the Company has Recognized the following Amounts
in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Employers’ Cantribution to Provident Fund*® 2B88.46 298.56
Employers’ Contribution to Employees’ State Insurance * 38.10 32.80
Employers’ Cantribution te Labour Welfare Fund* 1.27 0.38
Total 327.83 331.54

* Included in Contribution ta Provident and Other Funds

Defined Benefit Plan
Contribution to Gratuity

The Company provides Gratuity for every employee who is entitled to a benefit equivalant to fifteen days salary last
drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Paymeant of Gratuity Act, 1972, The same is payable at the time

of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier.

Risk Exposure

These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risk such as langitivity risks, interest rate risks, market

([investment] risks.
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a. Major Assumptions

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

% p.a. % p.a.
Discount Rate 1.67 7.73
Salary Escalation Rate * 6.50 6.50
Rate of Employee Turnover:
-Upte 30 years 3.00 3.00
-From 31 to 44 vears F.00 3.00
-fbove 44 years 2.00 1.00
Maortality Rate During Employment 100% of IALM 100% of |ALM
(2006-2008) (2006-2008)

* The estimates for future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promaotion and other relevant factors.

b. Change in the Present Value of Obligation

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening Present Value of Obligation 710.88 625.19
Current Service Cost 81.85 88.69
Interest Cost 54.85 47.20
Total Amount Recognized in Profit or Loss 136,80 135.89

Remeasurement

{Gain)/Less from Change in Demagraphic Assumptions and

Experience Adjustments (26:13) 135.20)
{Gain)/Loss from Change in Financial Assumptions 29.42 44 .22
Total Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 4.29 9.02
Benefit/ Exgratia Paid 172.41 59232
Closing Present Value of Obligation 679.56 710,88

c. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Present Value of Obligation 679.56 710.88
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Funded Status [[Surplus/ {Deficit}] (675.66) 1710.88)
Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 141.09 144.91
MNet {Liability}/ Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (679.58) (710.88)
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(Al amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d.

Expenses Recognized in Profit and Loss

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Current Service Cost 81.85 88.69

Interest Cost 64.95 47.20

Total Expenses recognized in the of profit or loss* 136.80 135.89

* |ncluded in Employee Bensfits Expense

Expenses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 21, 2018

Re-measurement [Refer Mote b abowve)

Actuarial [Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Year 4,29 9.02
Net [Ineome)/Expenses for the Period Recognized in OCI 4.29 9.02
Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 679.66 710.88
Dalta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Discounting [38.81) (3.07)
Defta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Discounting 53.18 3.08
Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Salary 53.50 3.63
Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Salary [39.34) (3.80)
Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover® 44,51 -
Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover® 50.51 -

* Amounts less than 1000 are denoted by “ - “

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely ta occur, and changes in some of the assumptians may be corralated, When calculating the
sansitivity of the definad benefit abligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same mathod (present value of the
defined benefit obligatian calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting periad) has been
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognized in the balanca sheet,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior

period.

Defined Benefit Liability and Employer Contributions:

The Company considers that the contribution rates set-at tha last valuation date are sufficient to eliminate the deficit over
the agreed period and that regular contributions, which are based on service costs, will not increase significantly.

Expected cantribution to post-amployment banefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2020 is T144.57 Lakhs.

102



STRATEGIC REPORT STATUTORY REPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(&Il amaunts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 14.54 years (2018 -14.21 years). The expected
maturity enalysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Particulars Less than a year More than one year Total
As at March 31, 2019
Defined Benefit Obligation (Gratuity) 79.20 600.36 679,56
As at March 31, 2018
Defined Benefit Obligation [Gratuity) 38.69 672.19 710.88

Other Employee Benefit
The liability for compensated absences as at year end is T185.30 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: $170.10 Lakhs)

Mote 31: Depreciation and Amortisation Costs

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Depreciation on Proparty, Plant and Equipmeant {Refer Note 3) 3,742.31 3,274.77
Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4) 18.66 22.61
Total 3,760.97 3,297.38

Note 32: Other Expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Consumption of Stores and Spares 2,423.04 2,568.08
Paower, Fue!l and Water 7.047.25 5,720,23
Packing Materials 2.807.30 3.315.07
Oves and Chemicals 4,442 59 4,258,28
Increase/(Decrease) in Excise Duty an Finished Goods - (176.72)
Contract Labour Charges 2,464 66 1,403.25
Repairs and Maintenance:

-Buildings 187.93 122.64

-Property, Plantand Equipment 346.66 602.10

-Othars 383 88 334 .82
Rent (Refer Note 44) 481,17 382.26
Rates and Taxes 31.46 95,46
Insurance 174.82 141.22
Directors Sitting Fees 156,20 18.65
Printing and Stationery 35.90 37.92
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses §11.02 484,84
Legal and Professional Charges 457 .61 542 41
Payment to Auditors [Refer Note (a) belew] 30.38 2343
Communication Charges 50.28 74.056
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MNote 32: Other Expenses [Contd.)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Vehicle Expenses 67.66 121:62
Loss on Sale/Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 38.95 26.60
Freight and Forwarding Expenses 247345 1,624.52
Exchange Difference (Met) 1.23 -
Brokerage and Commission 1,413.61 1.201.75
Donations 11.44 10.88
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure [Refer Note {b) below] 84.32 93.56
Miscellaneous Expensas 677.93 607.10
Total 26,770.26 23,654.82
Note (a) Payment to Auditors for:
As Auditor:

-Audit Fees 22.75 19.00

-Tax Audit 1.75 1.50
In Other Capacities:

-Certifications 4.50 2.80

-Heimbursement of Expenses 1.38 0.33
Total 30.38 23.43
Mote (b) Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure:
Amount Unspent, of Earlier Years as per Section 135 of the Act 9.05 -
Amount Reguired to be Spent During the Year, as per Section 135 of the Act 79.79 102,67
Amount Spent During the Year an
i} Construction/Acquisition of an Asset - -
tiiy On Purpases other than (i) above 84.32 93.66
Taotal 84.32 93.56
Note 33: Finance Cost

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Interest and finance charges onfinancial liabilities

Inet of interest subsidy for year ended March 31, 2019; ¥ 275.25 lakhs,

March 31, 2018: T 218.99 lakhs)}

- Long Term Borrowings 1,828.82 1,730.07
- Short Term Borrowings 321.23 263.02
- Others 115.37 241
Bank and Other Financial Charges 1,177.14 784.98
Total 3,442 56 2,792.76
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Note 34: Income Tax Expense

a) This note provides an analysis of the Company’s income tax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in eqguity
and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant estimates
made in relation to the Company's tax positions.

i) Income Tax Helated to Items Recognised Directly in Profit or Loss of the Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2018
Current Tax
Current Tax on Profits for the Year 106.83 182.70
Adjustments for Current Tax of Prior Periods - -
Current Tax (A} 105,93 182.70
Deferred Tax
Decrease/|Increase} in Deferred Tax Assets* (951.98) 1617.83)
{Decrease)/Increase in Deferred Tax Liabilities 807.88 478.71
Deferred Tax (B) (144.10) {139.12)
Income Tax Expense Charged to Profit or Loss (C) = (A} + (B) (38.17) 43 .58
#Including minimum alternate tax credit availed; ¥ 105,93 lakhs (March 31, 2018; ¥ 182,70 lakhs),

ii) Deferred Tax Related to Items Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income [OCI)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred Tax on Remeasurement Gains/(Lasses) on Defined Benefit Plan 1.80 3.15
Deferred Tax Charged to Other Comprehensive Income 1.50 3.15

b} The Reconciliation of Estimated Income Tax Expense at the Indian Statutory Income Tax Rate to the Income Tax
Expenses Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss is as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit Before Income Tax 547.98 843.63
Expected Tax Expense at the Enacted Tax Rate in India 191.49 291.96
Tax Effact of Adjustments to Reconcile Expected Income Tax Expanse
to Reported Income Tax Expense:
1 Non-Deductible Expenses
Donations and C5R Expenditure 33.46 36.14
Other ltems 4.08 47 .08
2) Tax Benefit tems
Research and Development Expenditure {267.20) 1181.52]
Other tems 1139.75)
3] Effect of Changes in Tax Hate [0.34)
Income Tax Expense Charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss (38.17) 43,58
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Note 35: Fair Value Measurements

Financial Instruments

The following tables present the carrying value and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 21,

2019 and March 31, 2018,

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Financial Assets MNote Amortised FVTPL Amortised FVTPL
Cost Cost
Trade Receivablas 11 10,252.74 8,568.87 -
Margin Money Deposits with Banks 13 1,286.95 1,512.87 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 320,93 - 770.60 -
Investmeants 10 . 1,502.00 701.09
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash
Equivalents above - Escrow Account 5 13 659.71 - 534.60 -
Security Deposits B 16 42.72 108.43 -
Loans 14 23.90 - 97.28 -
Insurance Claim Receivable 15 104.96 - -
Interest Acerued on Fixed Deposits 15 30.03 - 32.62 -
Total Financial Assets 12,730.94 1,502.00 11,625.28 701.09
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Financial Liabilities Note Amortised FVTPL Amaortised FVTPL
cost cost
Borrowings 18, 21,23 31,138.16 25,586.73 -
Trade Payables 22 16,486.53 10,354.78
Creditors for Capital Purchases 23 1,016.17 - 374.44 -
Interest Accrued but not Due on Borrowings 22 144.13 109.98
Securnity Deposits Received 23 86.82 - 66,58 -
Derivative Instruments 23 - - 3.04
Unclaimed Dividend 23 0.36 0.36 -
Total financial liahilities 48,872.17 - 36,492.87 3.04

Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amaount that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.This section explains the
Judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (al recognised and
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.
Ta provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its
fimancial instruments into three levels prescribed under the Ind AS. An explanation for each level is given below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instrumeants,
exchange traded funds and mutual funds that have quoted price, The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the
stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing Net
Assets Valua (NAV), NAV reprasents the price at which, the issuerwill issue further unite and will redeem such units of mutual

funds to end from the investors.
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Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues
which maximise the use of cbservable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrumeant are ohservable, the instrument is included in level 2. Instruments in the level 2
category for the Company include foreign exchange forward contracts, security deposits and loans to employees.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs are neither based on observable market data nor supported by prices from
observable current market transactions, the instrument is included in this level.

There ara no internal transfers of financial assets and financial libilities between Level 1, Level 2, Level 3 during the period. The
Company's policy is ta recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy level as at the end of the reporting
period.

Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

at Fair Value Measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

Investments 1.502.00 - - 701.09 - -

Financial Liabilities

Derivatives not Designated as Hedges

Foreign Exchanges Forward Cover - - - - 3.04 -

Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

at Amortised Cost for which Fair Values

are Disclosed Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets

Margin Money Deposits with Banks 1,286.95 - - 1,612.87 - -
Security Deposits = 4272 = = 108.43 5
Insurance Claim Receivable - 104.86 - - -
Loans - 23.80 97.28 -
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 30.03 - 32.63 - -
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 31,138.16 - 25,686.73 -
Interest Accrued but not Due on Borrowings 144.13 - - 109.98 - -
Security Deposits Received - 86.82 - - B6.68 -

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents,
escrow account and its interest accrued, current loans, current barrowings, trade payables and creditors for capital purchases
are considered to be approximately same as their value, due to the short -term maturities of these financial assets/liabilities.

The fair values of fixed deposits having maturity period of more than 12 months and its interest accrued, non-current security
deposits and non-current borrowings are based ondiscounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. The carrying amount
of non current borrowing is approximately equal to its fair value since the borrowings are at floating rate of interest. Claims are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs with fair value based on
discounted cash flow using a current barrowing rate. During the periods mentioned above, there have been no transfers
amongst the levels of hierarchy.

107

I&\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\N.



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

[All amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise statad)

Valuation technigues used to determine fair value:

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

+ the use of gquoted market prices or dealer guotes for similar instruments.

« thefair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
» thefair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

+ All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 2 except for insurance claim, where the fair values have been
determined based on present values on present values and the discount rates used were adjusted for counterparty or own
credit risk.

Note 36: Capital Management

Risk Management

The Campany's objectives when managing capital is to safequard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate returnio shareholders through continuing growth. The Company's
overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term oparating plans which
include capital and other strategic investments.

The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and long term borrowings. The
Company's policy is to use short-term and long-term borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Campany monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratic (gearing ratio) and maturity profile of the
averall debt portfolio of the Campany.

For the purpese of the Company's capital managemeant, equity includes paid up capital, securities premium and other reserves,
Met debt are lang term and short term interest bearing debt as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances
lincluding earmarked balances) and current investments. The Company’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within 2:1.

The capital composition is as follows:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Gross Debt (Inclusive of Long Term and Short Term Barrawing) 31,138.16 25,686.73
Less: - Cash and Bank Balances and Current Investments 2,272.05 2.818.07
Net Dabt 28.866:11 22,768.66
Total Equity 30,263.89 29,800.38
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.95 0.76

Loan Covenants

Bank loans contain certain debt covenants relating to limitation on indebtedness, debt-equity ratio, net debt to EBITDA ratio,
interest service covarage ratio and debt service coverage ratio. The debt service coverage ratio covenant gets suspended
once the Company meets certain prescribed criteria. The covenant remained suspended as of the date of adoption of the
financial statements. The Company has also satisfied all other debt covenants prescribed in the respective sanctions of the
banks.
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Note 37: Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities are exposed to market risk, liguidity risk and credit risk which may adversely impact the fair value of
its financial instruments. In arder to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company, derivative
financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracte are entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposuras.
Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purpose and not as trading or speculative instruments,

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Cashand Cash Equivalents, Diversification of Bank
=3 Trade Receivables, Derivative ! ) Deposits, Credit Limits and
Credit Risk Financial Instruments, Financial Ageing Analysis Letters of Credit
Aszsets Measured at Amonrtised
Cost,
Borrowings and Other Avallability of Committed
Ligquidity Risk Liabilities Rolling Cash Flow Forecasts Credit Lines and Borrowing
Facilities
Market Risk — Future Commaercial Cash Flow Forecasting Forward Foreign

Foreign Exchange

Transactions Recognised

Financial Assets and Liabilities

not Cenominated in Indian
Rupee (INR)

Sensitivity Analysis

Exchange Contracts

Market Risk — Interest Hate

Long-Term Borrowings at
Variable Rates

Sensitivity Analysis

Interest Hate Swaps

Market Risk — Security

Prices

Investments in Bonds

Sensitivity Analysis

Portfolio Diversification

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a central treasury departiment under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Company's treasury team identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the Company's
respactive department heads. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
spacific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments, and investmeant of excess liguidity.

A, Credit Risk

Credit rigk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under & financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarly trade receivables)
and from its finanecing activities, including deposits with banks, investments in mutual funds, foreign exhange transactions
and other financial instruments. The credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of defauit and the risk of deterioration of
creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability
of counter party, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, analysing the risk profile of the
counter party and the analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable etc. Individual risk limits are set
accordingly.

The Company determines default by considering the business environment in which the Company operates and other
macro-economic factors. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reparting date with tha risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive
farwarding-looking information such as:
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i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business;

i} Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty;

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to mest
its obligations;

iv}) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty;

v) Significant changes inthe value of the collateral supporting the obligation orin the quality of the third-party guarantees.

None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk. The carrying value of
financial assets represent the maximum credit risk. Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company.

i] Trade Receivables

The Company extends credit to custemers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as
credit track record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. Cradit risk is managed thorugh
credit approvals, establishing credit limits, payment track record, maonitoring financial position of the customer and
other relevant factors. Ouistanding custoamer receivables are regularly monitored and reviewsad.,

The Campany evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as limited, as its customers are
located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets. The exposure to customers
is diversified and no substantial concentration of risk as no single customer cantributes more than 10% of revenue
and of the outstanding receivables. Sales made in domestic market predominantly are through agents appointed by
the Company, the agents being del credere agents most of the credit risk emanating thereto is borne by agents and
the Comapny’s exposure to risk is limited to sales made to customers directly. In case of direct sale, the Company has
a policy of dealing only with credit worthy counter parties, The credit risk related 1o such sales are mitigated by taking
advance, security deposit, letter of credit, setting and monitoring internal limits on exposure toindividual customers
as and where considered necessary.

iil The Ageing Analysis of the Trade Receivables [other than due from Related Parties) has been considered from the
date the Invoice falls due.

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
Mot Due 5,404.71 5,971.66
Upto 3 Months 2,386.78 1,696.38
3 to 6 Months 589.21 129.40
More than & Manths 99,85 83.82
Total 8,4B0.55 7.881.26

During the year and previous year, the Company made no write-offs of trede receivables.
iii} Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

The Company maintains axposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and investmants in mutual
funds, the same is done after considering factors such as track record, size of the institution, market reputation and
service standards. Generally, the balances are maintained with the institutions from whom the Company has also
availed barrowings. Individual risk limits are set for each counter party based on financial position, credit rating and
past experience, Cradil risk and concentration of expoasure are actively monitared by the Company, Mone of the
financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk.
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i)

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or mest its cbligations, by delivering cash or
other financial assets, ontime ar at a reasonable price. For the Company, liguidity risk arises from obligations on account
of financial liabilities — borrowings, trade and other payables, derivative instruments and other financial liabilities.

The Company's appraach ta managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash and
drawable reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the
financial assets and lisbilittes. The Company regularly monitors liquidity position through rolling forecast based on estimated
free cash flow generated from business. The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits and liquid schemes
of mutual funds, which carry no/negligible mark to market risks.

Financing Arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reparting period:

Particulars A= at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Floating Rate

- Expiring within one year |Fund Based and Non Fund Based

Capital Lines and Term Loans] 4.012.02 9,179.87
- Expiring beyond one year {Tarm Loans) 1,347.12 16,406.86
Total 5,359.14 25,586.73

The waorking capital facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

Maturities of Financial Liabiliities

The tables below analyse the Campany's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities for:

- all nen derivative financial liabilities, and

- net and gross settled derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding
of the timing of the underlying cash flows,

The amounts disclosed inthe table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

As at March 31, 2019 Less than Between Beyond Total
1year 1 and5 years 5 years

Maturities of Non - Derivative Financial Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings 4,541.02 17.050.60 3,370.82 24.962.51
Shart Term Barrowings 6,175.66 - 6,175.66
Imterest Accrued and not Due 14413 - - 144.13
Trade Payables 16,486.53 - - 16,486.53
Other Financial Liabilities 1,103.356 . - 1,103.35
Tatal 28,450.69 17,050.60 3,370.89 48,872.18
Maturities of Derivative Financial Liabilities

*Fareign Exchange Forward Contracts - - - 0.00
Total 28,450.69 17,050.60 3,370.89 48,872.18

*Provision for mark to market losses on derivative contract recognised at TNl (Previous vear: T 3.04 lakhs). Refer Note 21
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As at March 31, 2018 Less than Between Beyond Total
1year 1and5 years 5 years

Maturities of Mon = Derivative Financial Liabilities

Long Term Borrowings 4,174.31 13,262.72 3,144.07 20.581.17
Short Term Borrowings 5,005.56 < = 5 005.56
Interest Payable 109.98 - - 109.98
Trade Payables 10,354.78 - - 10,354.78
Cther Financial Liabilities 441.38 - - 441.38
Total 20,086.01 13,262.78% 3,144.07 36,492.87
Maturities of Derivative Financial Liabilities

*Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts (643.35) - - (643.35)
Total 19,442.66 13,262.79 3,144.07 35,B49.52

*Provision for mark ta market losses on derivative contract recognized at T¥3.04 lakhs. Refer Note 23,
Market Risk

Markel risk is the rizk that changes in market prices, such as fareign exchange rates, interest rates and eguity ar commodity
prices will affect the Company's income/cash flows or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while aptimising
the return. The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post-
employment benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liakilities. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include receivables, loans and borrowings, advances, deposits, investments and derivative financial
instruments. The sensitivity of the relevant profit and loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market
risks.

The Company's activities expose it to risks on account of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts of varying maturity
depending upon the underlying contract as a risk management strategy to manage its exposures to foreign exchange
fluctuations and interast rate.

Foreign Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument or future cash flows fluctuate because of changes in
market price of the functional currency. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on their receivables, payables
and foreign currency loans which are mainly held in the United State Dollar ("USD"), the Euro {“EUR"}, British Pound
('GBF"), the Swiss Franc (*CHF") and Japanese Yen [*JPY"). Consequently, the Company is exposed primarily to the risk
that the exchange rate of the Indian Rupees [“INR") relative to the USD, the EUR, the CHF, and the CNY may change ina
mannerthat has a material effect on the reported values of the Company’s assets and liabilities that are denominated in
these foreign currencies.

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk
management policy wherein exposure is identified, a benchmark is set and monitored closely for suitable hedges,
including minimising cross currency transactions, using natural hedge and the use of derivatives like foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge exposure to foreign currency risk.
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The Company's Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the Reporting Pericd are as under -

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Particulars Foreing Currency Exposure in

Foreing Currency Exposure in

usp EUR GBP JPY CHF

usD EUR GBP JPY CHF

Financial Assets

- Trade Receivables 4,067.50 129.41 53.11 - = Z.560.84 79.88 17065 - -
- Advance to Suppliers 456,38 32,46 1.42 2244 4.67 163.63 £9.00 0.74

- Capital Advances 50.77 87.97 145.68 1,533.41 - 188981

- Cash and Cash Egquivalents 1.36 1.28 . - - -
- Bank Balances 205.74 273.00

- Othar Financial Assets 0.25

Derivative Assels

- Foraign Exchange
Forward Contracts

Net Exposure to Foreign

Currency Risk (Assets) 446076 258983 5153 2244 457 3,14958 1,702.29 170.65 20055 -
Financial Liabilities
- Term Loans from Banks 2,067.73 2.668.27
- Werking Capital and Buyers

Credit from Banks 1,869.78 2.378.73 15.62 - - -
- Trade Payables 4,565.47 21.68 0.14 - 2,220.02 139.47 0.14 - 0.01
- Creditors for Capital Purchases 916 462.13 5.21 - - 10.43 -
- Advance from Customers 132.00 19.13 - = 3658.01 69.22 6,15
- Accrued [nterest on Borrowings 28.66 an - - - -
Derivative Liabilities
- Foreign Exchange

Forward Contracts (643,36)

Net Exposure to Foreign
Currency Risk (Liabilities) 877280 50294 0.14 -

7.018.00 224.21 6.29 10.43 0.01

Net Open Exposure (4,312.05) (243.11) 5139 2244 4.57

(3,868.42) 1,478.08 164.36 190.12 (0.01)

Sensitivity to Foreign Currency Risk

The following table demonstrates the foreign exchange sensitivity by assuming rates shift in the USD, EUR, CHF, CNY and

ather currencies with all other variables held constant. The impact below an tha

Company's profit/equity before eonsidering

tax impact is due to changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at balace sheet date:

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Currencies / Sensitivity Increase by 4% | Decrease by 4% Increase by 5% [ Decrease by 5%
[Loss) / Gain (Loss) / Gain

usD (89.77) 89.77 (60.01) 60,01

EUR {9.72) 9.72 73.80 {73.90)

GBP 208 (2.08) 8.22 (8.22)

JPY 0.80 {0.90) 8.51 (9.51)

CHF 018 (0.18) {0.00) 0.00
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Based on the movements in the foreign exchange rates histarically and the prevailing market conditions as at the reporting
date, management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are reasonable benchmarks.

Appreciation and depregiation of USD with respect to the functional currency would resull in increase and decrease in
carrying value of property, plant and eqguipment by approximately ¥82.71 Lakhs as at March 37, 2019 (Previous year: 1
133.41 Lakhs)

Interest Rate Risk

This refers to risk to the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument on account of movement in market interest
rates.

For the Company, the interest risk arises mainly from debt obligations with floating intarest rates. To mitigate interest rate
risk, the Company closely monitors market interest and as appropriate makes use of hedged products and optimise
borrowing mix / compasition.

Cash flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rete. The Company uses a
mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day
operations like vendor bill discounting, suppliers’ and buyers’ credit. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining
an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. As the Company does not have exposure to any floating
interest bearing assets, iis interest income and related cash flows are not affected by changes In the market interest rates.

al Interest Rate Risk Exposure:

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting pariod are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
Variable Rate Barrowings 21,362.51 19.381.17
Fixed Rate Borrowings 9 775.68 B,205.56
Total Borrowings 31,138.17 25,586.73

As atthe end of the reporting period, the group had the following variable rate borrowings and interast rate swap contracts
outstanding:

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars Weighted % of Weighted % of
Average Balance Total Average Balance Total
Interest Rate Loans Interest Rate Loans
Borrowings - Term Loan 8.86% 21,362.51 69% 8.36%  19,381.17 76%
Net Exposure to Cash Flow
interest Rate Risk 21,362.51 19,381.17
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b| Interest Rate Sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit and equity before considering tax impact to a reasonably
possibla change in interest rate of 50 basis point increase or decrease. The calculations are based on the risk exposures
outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Impact on Profit
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Interest Rates - Increase by 50 Basis Points® {106.81) {96.91)
Interest Rates - Decrease by 50 Basis Points® 106.81 96.91
*Holding all other variables constant including change in interest subsidy

Price Risk

(a) Exposure

The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in mutual funds. The price risk arises due to
uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. In order to manage its price risk arising from
investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its porifolic in accordance with the limits set by the risk
management policies.

(b) Sensitivity

The table below surmarises the impact of increases/decreases of 0.75% increase in price of Mutual Fund / Bond,

Impact on Profit Before Tax

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Increase in Price 0.75% (March 31, 2018 - 0.75% ) 1127 5.26
Decrease in Price 0.75% [(March 31, 2018 - 0.75% |} (11.27) 15.26)

Note 38: Contingent Liability Disclosure

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Excise, Customs and Service Tax Matters 2,262.00 1,632.34
Income Tax Matters 26.32 109.56
Sales Tax Mattars - 166.09
Other Claims against Company not Acknowledged as Debts 127.82 130.85

Notes:

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda
Vidyamandir And Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner {1l) West Bengal” and the related circular (Circular No.
C-1/1133)2019/Vivekananda Vidya Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employess’ Frovident Fund Organisation
in relation to non-exclusion of cerlain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relavanl employees for the
purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employess’ Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952 In the assessment of the management which is supported by legal advice, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have
& significant impact and accordingly no pravisian has been made in these financial state ments.
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(a) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the abowve pending

resolution of the respective proceedings.,

(b} The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

Description of Contingent Liabilities

Excise, Customs and Service tax matters

The Company has ongoing disputes with tax authoritizs mainly relating to availment of input tax credit on certain items and

classfication of finished goods.

Sales Tax Matters

The Company had sales tax disputes relating to resale of traded goods which were exempt from tax under BST (Bombay Sales

Tax Act, 1959,

Income Tax Matters

The Company has ongoing disputes with Income tax authorities relating to tax treatment of certain items. These mainly

includes disallowed expenses, claimed by the Company as deductions.

Claims against Company not Acknowledged as Debts

Represents a claim disputed by the Company wherein the Company has filed an applicaticn for dismissal of the matter.

MNote 39: Capital and Other commitments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

|a) Capital Commitments

Estimated Value of Contracts Hemaining to be Executed on 233.14 6,667.65

Capital Account (Net of Capital Advances)
(b) Other Commitments

Custom Duty an Pending Export Obligation for Import under 1,085.78 799.99

Advance License and EPCG
Note 40: Earnings Per Share

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Profit After Tax (A) (Tin lakhs) 586.15 800.05
Weaighted Average Numbear of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year (B) 45,589,668 38,657,102
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Basic Earning Per Share 45, 589 568 39,667,102
Adjustments for Diluted Earning Per Share - Options 143,361.00 -
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for Diuted Earning Per Share (C) 45,732,929 39,657,102
Basic Earnings Per Share (A]/(B] (1) 1.29 2.02
Diluted Earnings Per Share [A}/IC) * { T) 1.28 2.02
Mominal Value of an Equity Share [ T) 10.00 10.00

* 43,168,666 warrants of T 75 per warrant have been issued and allotted to Mandawewsla Enterprises Limited on 8th March 2018 Such
convertible securities could potantially dilute the basic earnings per share in the future, but are not included n the calculation of

diluted earnings per share because they are antidilutive for the period presented. Refer Note 17 {a){ii) for details.
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Note 41: Disclosure for Micro, Medium and Small Enterprises

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

The Principal Amount and the Interest Due thereon Remaining
Unpaid to Suppliers as at the End of the Year

- Principal 827,13 45,70
- Interest 0.01 ?
Principal Amounts Paid to Suppliers beyand the Appointed Day

During the Year -

Interest Paid, Under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to Suppliers
beyond the Appointed Day During the Year - -

Interest Paid, other than Under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
Suppliers beyond the Appointed Day During the Year

Interest Due and Payable tawards Suppliers for Payments already made 6.30 4.64
Further Interest Remaining Due and Payable for Earlier Years 14.72 10.08

Mote 42: Disclosure Pursuant to the Regulation 34(3) read with Para A of Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015

Thera are no loans and advances, in the nature of loans to firms/ companies in which directars are interested outstanding
during the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

Note 43: Research and Development Expenditure

Details of research and development expenses incurred during the year, debited to the statement of profit and loss account
are T 595.93 Lakhs (March 37, 2018; ¥ 582.79 Lakhsi, which Includes materials cost, power cost, employvee cost and ather
axlpenses.

Details of Capital Expenditure incurred during the year for Research and Develapment is given below:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Plant and Machinery 833.35 513.99
Total 833.35 513.99

Mote 44: Leases
Operating Lease

The Campany has taken various residential, office pramises, godowns, equipment and vehicles under operating lease
agreaments that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the lessor and the lessas. The initial tenure of lease is
generally for two months to fifty one months.

The aggregate rental expenses of all the operating leases for the year are T491.17 Lakhs (March 21, 2018 ¥ 392.26 Lakhs)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note 45: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

There are no financial assets or financial liabilities which are subject to offsetting as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018
since, the Company neither has enforceable right or an intent to settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Further, the Company has no enforceable master netting arrangements and other similar arrangements as at
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

Note 46: Related Party Disclosures
(i) Relationships

Holding Company Mandawewala Enterprises Limited

Key Management Personnel Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala
Mr. B.A. Kale (Upto May 6, 2017)

Relatives Mr. R.R. Mandawewala
Mrs. Pratima Mandawewala
Mr. Yash Mandawewala
Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala

Other Related Parties Mertz Estates Limited
Welspun India Limited
Welspun Global Brands Limited
Welspun Corp Limited
Welspun Steel Limited
Welspun USA Inc
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{ii} Terms and Condition

- All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

- All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash.

Holding Entarprizes over which Koy Managermert Peronmel or relatives of such Employee Ky Marsgement Felathue of Key
Company personnel exercie significant mfluence o contrel and with Banudit Plan Parnonnel Marugesnant Personnel
‘wihom tramsdetions have taken place dusing the yesr
Mandewewels  Mertz  Welipin  Wekpun  Welipun  Welspun Welspun AfMSymem M Abhishek  MrBAKale  NrYash Mo Khushboo
Particiisrs Emequias  Ectates Inidia Global USAine  Comp Stesl Lirnited Manclsaievnly Mandawewsls  Mandsvewala
Limited Limited  Limited Beande Lamitedd Lamnited Superannuistion
Limite Toust
Trarseetions. during the Year
mtereorporate Depaoans Aeceived 2400.00 -
(3 700,004
Lo e of Equiry Shares .
(o, 762.50) i =
tsaue of Share Warrarts - -
(B0R.37) 5
CroesEtame 1888
11318
Relmiburisrant of Expersay -
| 2840}
Salory - 1356 el
(7358) 31 B2 11065} {27.47)
Purchmea of Gooe/Senvicas!
Experees Incurrad 05.05 3860 55 L L 1105 8.85
(268,27 {32041y [364EG) (3034 13200 {T.35)
Saleof Goods E 4 45681 =
(B001.749)
Purchoge oF Fived Aseets,
Capital Goods 386
Clnaing Belsres
Intercarponste Deposits Receivid 360000
1,200,000
Detidors
168161
Crudibon L] 7.4 1640 .80
- 11803 [hrAEll 0.EE]
Yoar 207714 figires e giesn i round Sewckats
* Amount is ncfusie of fees
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 47: Segment Information

i)

Information about Primary Business Segment

The Group is engaged in the business of Synthetic Yarn which in the context of Ind AS 108 on Segment Reporting are
considered to constitute single primary business segment,

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business segment separately for the purpose of
making decision about prolt or loss in the nancial statements, Operating segment have been identied on the basis of

Geographical segment and other quantitative criteria specied in the Ind AS 108,

(i) Segment Revenue :

The segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss,

2019 2018
Segment Revenue India Outside Total India Outside Total
India India
Total Segmental Revenue® 65,068.33 34,129.83 99,198,168 58,718.68 27,398.35 86,117.04

*excluding ather income

The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the

customers is shown in the table balow,

Revenue from outside India

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Australia and New Zealand 9,819.98 5,894.15
European Union 3,639.09 2,876.44
LLS.A 3,142.90 2,5620.20
LK. 1,243.38 2,034.64
Others 16,384 .48 14,072 .92
Total 34,129.83 27.398.35

(i) Segment Assets :

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the

operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset.

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Segment Assets India Outside Total India Dutside Total
India Indin

Carrying Amount of Segment Asseats b7,b82.84 593745 6352029 52,319.13 540367 &7722.80

Additions to Mon-Current Assets 12,7447 - 12,7447 6,890.67 6,890.67

Total Segment Assets 70,327.01 5.937.46 76,264.46 59,209.80 5,403.67 64,613.47

Unallocated:

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) Z2,606.48 2,460.87

Income Tax Assets [Net) 131.49 143.02

Investments 1,602.00 701.09

Balance sheet Assets BO0,504.43 67,818.52
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(Al amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwvise stated)
(iii) Segment Liabilities :

Segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment and the physical location of the liability.

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Segment Liabilities India Outside Total India Outside Total
India India

Carrying Amount of

Segment Liabilities 18,948.00 154.38 19,102.38 11,999.12 53229 12,531.41
Additions to Non-Current Liabilities - - - : 5 Z
Total Segment Liabilities 18,948.00 154.38 19,102.38 11,999.12 532.29 12,531.41
Unallocated:

Borrowings 31,138.16 25,586.73
Balance Sheet Liabilities 50,240.54 38,118.14

MNote 48: Employee Stock Option Plan

The establishment of the AYM Syntex Limited Employee Stock Option was approved by shareholders at Extra Ordinary
general meeting.

The Employee Stock Option Plan is designed to provide incentives to employees as determined by NRC Committee to
improve performance of employees and deliver long-term return

The employees covered under this scheme are as follows:-

la) & permanent employee of the Company working in India or out of India or

[b) adirector of the Company, whether 8 whole time director or nat, or

[c) anemployee as defined in (a] and (b) above of a subsidiary [in India ar out of India) or & halding company, of the Company
And Excludes

(it anemployea who is outside India and who is an employee of the subsidiary, helding or associate company;

[ii) applicable for directors of the company other than pramoter directar, independent director a director who either by
himself or through his relatives or through any body corporate, directly or indirectly holds more than 10% of the outstanding
Shares of the Company.

Under the plan, participants are granted options which vest upon in the following manner:-
The Grant date s Aug 13, 2018

Vesting Proportion Date of Vesting
10% of the Options Granted 12-Aug-19
10% of tha Options Granted 12-Aug-20
20% of the Options Granted 12-Aug-21
20% of tha Options Granted 12-Aug-22
40% of the Options Granted 12-Aug-23

The condition of the vesting are such that the NRC shall take into account the strength and competency of the employee
viz a viz business challenges and past track record of the employes in terms of achievements of targets and milestones.

Once vested, the option remains excercisable for a period of one year
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(Al amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Options are granted under the plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting rights.

When exercisable, each option is convertible into ohe equity share. The exercise price of the aptions shall not be less than face
value of equity share and shall not exceed market price of the quity share of the company as on the date of grant of Option.

Set out below is a summary of options granted under the plan

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Average Exercise Mumber of Average Exercise Number of
Price Per Share Options Price Per Share Options
Option (T) Option (T)
Opening Balance- - -
Granted During the Year 10.0 781,700
Exercized During the Year - -
Farfeited During the Year = 2
Closing Balance 10 781,700 -
Vested and Exercisable - -
Mo option expired during the year 2018-19
Share Option outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise price
Grant Date Expiry Date Exercize Share Options Share Options
Price (1) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
13-Aug-18 12-Aug-20 10 78,170 -
13-Aug-18 12-Aug-21 10 78170 -
13-Aug-18 12-Aug-22 10 156,340
13-Aug-18 12-Aug-23 10 156,340 -
13-Aug-18 12-Aug-24 10 312,680 -
Total 781,700
Weighted Average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at end of periad 4.0$|

The fair value at grant date of oplions granted during the year ended March 31, 2019 was T 41.20 per option (March 31, 2018-

Nill

The fair value at grant data is determined using Black Scholes Maodel which takes into account the axercise price, the tarm of
the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and

the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The model input for the option granted during the year ended March 31, 2018 included:

al options are granted far no consideration and vest upon completion of service for a periad of one year Vested options are

exercisable for @ period of ane year after vesting.
b} Exercise Price:
¢l  Grant Date:
d} Expiry Date:
g) Shere Price at the Grant Date:
fI  Expected Price Volatility of the Company’s Shares:
g} Expected Dividend Yeild:
hy Risk Free Interest Rate:

10 [March 31, 2018 - Nil)
August 13, 2018

August 12, 2020

1412

41,22%

7.61%
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The expected price volatility is based on historic volatility (Based on the remaining life of the option], adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly availlable information,

Expenses Arising from Share-Based Payment Transactions

Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit
axpenses wera as follow:

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Employee-Share Based Expense 57.76 -

Note 49: Change in Accounting Policy

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” from April 01, 2018 using the modified
retrospective approach in adopting the new standard. This change in accounting resulted in a decrease in opening retained
earnings of T177.61 lakhs, which was accounted for on April 1, 2018 and accordingly the comparatives of previous year have
not been restated. The following table shows the adjustments recognized for each individual line item. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

(T in Lakhs}

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2019(Audited)

Increase / (Decrease) in Revenue from Operations (262.33)
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Goods-in-Process 196.45
Increase / {Decrease) in Freight Cost 81.90
Increase [ (Decrease) in Profit Before Tax 16.02
[Increase) / Decrease in Tax Expense (3.10)
Increase / (Decrease) in Profit for the Year 12.92
Increase / (Decrease) in Earning Per Equity Share (T) 0.03

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities Cantract liabilities relating to sale of products as at March 31, 2019
aggregated to ¥ 254.62 lakhs has been included under 'Other current liabilities'. It shall be recognised as revenue in the
subsequent reporting period.

MNote 50: Events Occurring after the Reporting Date
Mo adjustments on account of events occuring after the reporting date have been identified to the figures reported.

Signatures to Notes to Financial Statements

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No: 012754N/NS00016

Mehul Desai Rajesh Mandawewala Abhishek Mandawewala
Partner Chairman CEO and Managing Director
Membership No. 103211 DIN 00007179 CIN 00737785
Flace: Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha Ashitosh Sheth
Date: April 30, 2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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NOTICE

To,

The Members

NOTICE is hereby given that the 36" Annual General
Meeting of AYM Syntex Limited will be held on
Thursday, 19" September 2019 at 12.00 Noon at its
Registered Office at Plot No. 1, Survey no. 394(P), Village
Saily, Silvassa-396230, U.T of Dadra & Nagar Haveli to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance
Sheet as at 31" March 2019 and the Audited Profit
and Loss Accountforthe year ended on that date.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh R
Mandawewala (DIN:00007179), who retires by
rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Appointment of Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala as a
Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
section 152, 160 and applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder,
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, including
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force, Mrs. Khushboo
Mandawewala (DIN 06942156), who was appointed
as an Additional Director pursuant to the provisions
of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Articles of Association of the Company and who
holds office up to the date of this Annual General
Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice from a member of the Company,
proposing her candidature for the office of Director,
be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
Company whose period of office shall be liable to
determination by retirement of directors by
rotation.”

Appointment of Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala as a
Whole-Time Director

To appoint Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala as a
Whole-time Director and in this regard, pass the
following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read
with Schedule V and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force), and the Articles of Association
of the Company, subject to approval of the Central
Government / Regional Director, if any, and such
other consents and permission as may be necessary,
and subject to such modifications, variations as may
be approved and acceptable, approval of the
members be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mrs.
Khushboo Mandawewala (DIN 06942156), as a
Whole-time Director, designated as Executive
Director of the Company, whose office will be liable
to determination by retirement by rotation, for a
period of 3 (Three) years with effect from July 29,
2019, on the terms and conditions including
remuneration as set out in the Statement annexed to
the Notice, with liberty to the Board of Directors
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term
shall include any Committee(s) constituted / to be
constituted by it for this purpose) to alter and vary
the terms and conditions of the said appointment
and/orremuneration as it may deem fit;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or
inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the
currency of tenure of the appointment, the Whole
Time Director shall be paid salary, perquisites and
other allowances as set out in Explanatory
Statement, as the minimum remuneration, subject
to ceiling as specified in Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 from time to time and subject
to the approval of the Central Government/Regional
Director, if so required, in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorised to alter and vary the terms and
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conditions to the said appointment to the extent the
Board may consider appropriate and as may be
agreed to between the Board and Mrs. Khushboo
Mandawewala.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such
steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution.”

Amendment of the AYM ESOP Scheme 2018

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 62(1)(b) and all other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and rules framed
there under, the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
(hereinafter referred to as “SEBI SBEB Regulations”),
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”) and subject to such other approvals,
permissions and sanctions as may be necessary
from time to time and subject to such conditions and
modifications as may be prescribed or imposed
while granting such approvals, permissions and
sanctions, the approval of the members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to amend the
‘AYM Syntex Limited - Employees Stock Option Plan
2018’ (hereinafter referred to as the “AYM ESOP
SCHEME 2018") for compliance with the
requirements under applicable laws by revising
clause of “Treatment of options” of AYM ESOP
Scheme 2018 as under:

a. Treatment of lapse of options: All lapsed options
granted to the grantee shall stand cancelled and
will be available for re-issue.

b. Treatment of Cancelled/Forfeited options: All
unvested unexercised options which are
cancelled/forfeited will be available for re-issue.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of
giving effect to the above resolution, the Board be
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds
and things, as may, at its absolute discretion, deem
necessary including authorizing or directing the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for

2

effective implementation and administration of the
AYM ESOP SCHEME 2018 as also to prefer
applications to the appropriate Authorities, Parties
and Institutions for their requisite approvals as also
to initiate all necessary actions for the preparation
and issue of public announcement and filing of
public announcement, if required, with the SEBI/
BSE Limited/National Stock Exchange of India, and
all other documents required to be filed in the above
connection and to settle all such questions or
difficulties whatsoever which may arise and take all
such steps and decisions in this regard.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT it is hereby noted that
the amendments to the Scheme are not prejudicial
tothe interests of the option holders.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and
is/are hereby authorised severally to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things as may be necessary to
implement this resolution.”

Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules 2014 and the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force), payment of remuneration of
Rs. 1,10,000/- to M/s. Kiran J Mehta & Co., the Cost
Accountant (Registration Number: 000025)
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company,
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the financial year ending 31 March
2020, be and is hereby ratified and approved.”

By order of the Board

Ashitosh Sheth
Company Secretary
ACS:25997
Place: Mumbai

Date: 29th July 2019
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NOTES:

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy
need not be aMember of the Company.

The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be
effective, must be deposited at the Company’s
Registered Office, duly completed and signed, not
less than 48 Hours before the meeting. Proxies
submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies
etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions /
authority, as applicable.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not
exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of the total share capital of the
Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be
appointed by a member holding more than 10% of
the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy
for any other person or shareholder.

Corporate members intending to send their
authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of
the Board Resolution authorizing their representatives
to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

A statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special
business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed
hereto.

Members are requested to bring their attendance
slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the
meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the
member whose name appears as the first holder in
the order of names as per the Register of Members of
the Company will be entitled to vote.

The Register of Members of the Company will
remain closed from Monday, 16th September 2019
to Wednesday, 18th September 2019, both days
inclusive.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (‘the
Listing Regulations’), as amended, securities of
listed companies can be transferred only in
dematerialised form with effect from April 1, 2019,
exceptin case of request received for transmission

9.

10.

11.

or transposition of securities. In view of this and to
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares
and for ease of portfolio management, Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to
consider converting their holdings to dematerialized
form. Members can contact the Company or its RTA,
M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited (‘Link Intime’)
for the same. SEBI has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every
participant in securities market. Members holding
shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to
submit their PAN to the Depository Participants (DPs)
with whom they maintain their demat accounts.
Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to submit their PAN to Link Intime.

Pursuantto the provisions of Sections 101 and 136 of
the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, electronic copy of the Annual Report for the
financial year 2018-19 is being sent to those
Members whose email IDs are registered with their
respective Depository Participants (DPs), the
Company or its Registrar and Transfer Agents, viz
Link Intime India Private Limited, unless any Member
has requested for a hard copy of the same. Those
members who have not got their email address
registered or wish to update a fresh email address,
may promptly intimate the same to respective DPs
or to the Company/its Registrar and Transfer Agents,
as the case may be.

Physical copies of the Annual Report for the financial
year 2018-19 will be sent through the permitted
mode in cases where the email addresses are not
available with the Company.

The Annual Report along with the Notice of the
Annual General Meeting is available on the website
of the Company, www.aymsyntex.com.

The Notice for Annual General Meeting and the
Annual Report will be available for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working
days between 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon upto the
date of Annual General Meeting. The Notice shall
also be available on the Company’s website at
www.aymsyntex.com

The businesses mentioned in this Notice may be
transacted through electronic voting system; the
process, manner and other related details are as
under:
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In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies
(Management and Administration) Amendment
Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, the Company is pleased to provide
members facility to exercise their right to vote at
the 36" Annual General Meeting (AGM) by
electronic means and the business may be
transacted through e-voting services provided
by National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL). The e-voting facility is available at the
link https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

Members holding shares either in physical form
or in dematerialized form, as on the close of
business on Thursday, 12" September 2019,
being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the
Resolutions set forth in this Notice. The voting
rights of Members shall be in proportion to their
shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date. Any person who
is not a Member as on the cut-off date should
treat this Notice for information purpose only.

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall
be made available at the General Meeting and
the members attending the meeting who have
not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be
able to exercise their right at the meeting
through ballot paper.

The members who have cast their vote by
remote e-voting prior to the General Meeting
may also attend the General Meeting but shall
not be entitled to cast their vote again.

V.

Initial password shall be given in the following
format of attendance slip for the AGM

EVEN UserID Password/PIN

(E-voting event

number)

However, if you are already registered with
NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your
existing user ID and password for casting your
vote.

The e-voting facility will be available during the
following voting period:

Commencement End of e-voting
of e-voting
Monday, Wednesday,
16" September 18" September
2019 2019

Vi.

Any person, who acquires shares of the
Company and become member of the Company
after dispatch of the notice and holding shares
as of the Cut-off Date, may obtain the login
ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in orIssuer/RTA.

Please read the instructions before exercising
the vote.

These details and instructions form integral part
of the Notice for the Annual General Meeting to
be held on 19" September 2019.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system
consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting
system.

Details on Step 1is mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

4.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open
web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer oronamobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched,
click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholders’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL
eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and
you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares Your UserIDis:
i.e. Demat (NSDL or

CDSL) or Physical
a) ForMemberswho 8 Character DP ID followed by
hold shares in demat 8 Digit ClientID
accountwith NSDL. For example if your DP ID is
IN300*** and Client ID is
12****%* then your user ID is
b) ForMemberswho 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
hold shares in demat
accountwith CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID

is 12************** then your
user ID IS 12**************

c)

For Members holding
sharesin Physical
Form.

EVEN Number followed by
Folio Number
registered with the company

For example if folio number is
001*** and EVEN is 101456 then
user IDis 101456001 ***

Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then
you can user your existing password to login
and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the
first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you.
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you
need enter the ‘initial password’ and the system
willforce you to change your password.

c¢) Howtoretrieve your  initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat
account or with the company, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email
and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file.The
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of
client ID for CDSL account or folio number
for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial
password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial
password’ is communicated to you on your
postal address.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the
“Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you
are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are
holding shares in physical mode) option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by
aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat
account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time
Password) based login for casting the votes on
the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to
“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.
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8.
9.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of
e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting

system?

1.

10.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to
see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting.
Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to
see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active
status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to
castyourvote.

Members may participate in AGM even after
exercising his right to vote through remote E-voting
but shall not be allowed to vote again at AGM.

A person whose name is recorded in the Register of
Members or in the Register of beneficial owners
maintained by the Depositories as on the cut off date
only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote E-
voting as well as voting at AGM.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page
opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e.
assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click
on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast
successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by
you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Registered Office of the Company:

Plotno.1, Survey no.394 (P), Village Saily, Silvassa 396230,

U.T of Dadra & Nagar Haveli

Contact No.

Tel.: 9102261637000, Fax: 91022 24937725,

E-mail: allcompanysecretaryofaymsl@aymgroup.com
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General Guidelines for shareholders

1

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who
are authorized to vote, to the Company
secretary/compliance officer by e-mail to
allcompanysecretaryofaymsl@aymgroup.com with
acopy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the
e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct
password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.in to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the
download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call
on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in

Mr. A. L. Makhija, Company Secretary in whole time
practice has been appointed as the scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

The result of voting shall be declared by the
Chairman of the meeting on or after AGM of the
Company. The results declared along with the
Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the
Company’s website www.aymsyntex.com and will
be communicated to the Stock Exchanges at which
shares of the Company are listed.

By order of the Board

Ashitosh Sheth
Company Secretary
ACS:25997

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29th July 2019
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEMNO.3&4

On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Board of Directors of the Company, subject
to approval of the Members, has appointed Mrs.
Khushboo Mandawewala as an Additional Director of
the Company with effect from 29" July 2019 for the term
of 3 years. In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of
the Act, Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala would hold office
only up to the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

The Board considers that keeping in view wide range of
experience of Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala, her
appointment and continuance with the Company would
be guide to the Board and benefit to the Company
and it is desirable to avail her service as a Director.
The proposed appointment of Mrs. Khushboo
Mandawewala is in the category of ‘Non independent
and Executive’.

Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala is also a Whole Time
Director of Mandawewala Enterprises Limited (Holding
company) w.e.f 25" October 2017. However, she is not
drawing any remuneration from Mandawewala
Enterprises Limited.

The Company has received from Mrs. Khushboo
Mandawewala, the consent to act as a director,
necessary disclosures, notice for candidature,
confirmation etc. in relation to the aforesaid
appointment pursuant to the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and Rules thereunder.

Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala is not disqualified from
being appointed as Director in terms of applicable
provision of section 164 of the Companies Act 2013.

Information pursuant to Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

GENERAL INFORMATION:
1) Nature of industry — Textile
2) Financial performance based on given indicators —

(€in Lakhs)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Revenue from operations (net of excise*) 99198.16 85041.57
OtherIncome 590.14 558.95
Total revenue 99788.30 85600.52
EBIDTA 7751.51 6933.77
EBIDTA Margin (%) 7.81 8.15
Finance Costs 3442.56 2792.76
Depreciation and amortization expense 3760.97 3297.38
Profit before tax 547.98 843.63
Current Tax 105.93 182.70
Deferred tax (144.10) (139.12)
Profit after tax 586.15 800.05
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (2.79) (5.87)
Total comprehensive income for the year 583.36 794.18
Earning per share (Basic & Diluted) () 1.29 2.02

*Revenue from operations includes other operative income.
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1)

2)

3)

4)

Background details:

Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala is Entrepreneurial,
Hardworking & Execution focused. She joined the
Company as General Manager (Corporate Social
Responsibility) w.e.f 10.10.2015 and is now heading
Human Resources, Corporate Communication and
Administration department.

Past Remuneration:

She was drawing salary of ¥30,00,000 per annum
from the Company.

Job profile and his suitability:

Job profile: She looks after entire Corporate
Communication, Human Resources, Corporate
Social responsibility activities and Administrative
operations of the Company such as the creation and
development of print and online advertising, annual
reports, website management and content
development, press releases, bylined articles,
corporate videos and marketing collateral, RFP
review and development, marketing budget
development and cost tracking. She is also
responsible for executing Company’s CSR vision.

Suitability:

She has completed Bachelors of Engineering in
Information Technology from D J Sanghvi, College
of Engineering in the year 2009. Started her journey
as a software engineerin 2010. Joined Welspun India
in 2012 as part of their CSR team. With a major focus
onwomen empowerment & healthcare, she played a
key role in conceptualizing and implementing a
sustainable income-generating program for women
in cutting and stitching home textiles and a primary
health care program through mobile health vans
across target locations. Appointed as General
manager (Corporate Social Responsibility) and also
heading Human Resources and Administration
department. She is also responsible for executing
Company’s CSR vision to uplift the underprivileged
from the vicious cycle of poverty and working
towards 4S mission towards Sudhar (Rural
Development), Swasthya (Water, Sanitation, Health
& Hygiene), Swabhiman (Education), Srishti
(Environmental Restoration).

Remuneration proposed:

60,00,000/- per annum inclusive of all perquisites
and allowances computed in the manner laid down
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= INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE:

5)

6)

under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
as per the maximum limit specified in Schedule V of
Section 196 & 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 except
that the remuneration of the directors shall not be
deducted from the gross profits.

Comparative remuneration profile with respect to
industry, size of the company, profile of the position
and person:

Looking to her education, experience in the field
of textiles, size of the company, the proposed
remuneration is justified to retain the managerial
person.

Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with
the Company, or relationship with the managerial
personnel, if any:

She is relative of Mr. Abhishek R Mandawewala,
Managing Director & CEO of the Company and Mr. R.
R. Mandawewala, the Chairman of the Company.
Further, she has no pecuniary relationship with the
Company except as a Head HR & Corporate
Communication of the Company. She does not hold
any equity shares of the Company.

OTHER INFORMATION:

Reason of loss orinadequate profits

The fluctuation in price of raw material which could
not be passed to customers, delay in planned
capacity expansion.

Steps taken forimprovement

The Company has expanded its capacity into high
value added products and are in process of
improving the product sales mixes.

Expected increase in productivity and profits in
measurable terms

In view of expansion undertaken by the Company,
the Company expects to increase productivity in
textile and BCF yarn which may lead to increase in
margin of profits. The Company has also undertaken
cost optimization initiatives which benefits will
crystalized in coming years.

Disclosures

The disclosures relating to remuneration package of
all directors with details of fixed components,
performance link incentives, service contract etc. are
mentioned in the attached Corporate Governance
report, part of Directors report.
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v. Directorshipinother companies:

She is director in Mandawewala Enterprises Limited,
Totsol Commercial Private Limited and Mertz Estates
Limited.

Membership/Chairmanship of committees in other
Companies: Nil

No. of meetings attended: NA, since she
is appointed as Additional Executive director w.e.f
29" July 2019.

The Board recommends the Resolutions set out in
ltem No. 3 & 4 of the Notice for approval of the
shareholders.

Disclosure as required under SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 on
General Meetings is given as Annexure to this
explanatory statement.

Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala being appointee is
interested in the resolutions set out in the Notice with
regard to his appointment. The appointee and her
relatives may be deemed to be interested in the
resolutions to the extent of their shareholding
interest, if any, in the Company.

Except as mentioned above, none of the Directors
and key managerial personnel of the Company and
their relatives is interested or concerned, financial or
otherwise, inthe resolutions for the above matter.

ITEMNO.5

The shareholders at their Extra-ordinary General
Meeting held on Wednesday, 28" February 2018 have
approved AYM Syntex Limited - Employees Stock
Option Plan 2018’ (AYM ESOP Scheme 2018) to grant
9,80,989 options to permanent employees including
directors (other than Promoters of the Company,
Independent Directors and Directors holding directly or
indirectly more than 10% of the outstanding Equity
Shares of the Company).

Accordingly, the Company had granted 7,81,700 options
to its Key employees on 13" August 2018.

AYM ESOP Scheme 2018, had following provision on
treatment of lapsed options:

“All lapsed options granted to the grantee shall stand
cancelled/forfeited and will not be available for re-issue”

The intentions of the Management is to give full benefit
of the AYM ESOP Scheme 2018 to its employees and
also cover more Key employees under the said scheme
going forward. Considering the above and post
consultation with various stakeholders, Management is
of the opinion that, the cancelled options and/or lapsed
options should be reissued by appropriately modifying
AYM ESOP Scheme 2018 by revising clause of
“Treatment of options” as under:

a. Treatment of lapse of options: All lapsed options
granted to the grantee shall stand cancelled and will
be available for re-issue.

b. Treatment of Cancelled / Forfeited options: All
unvested unexercised options which are cancelled /
forfeited will be available for re-issue.

The said modifications in the scheme will require prior
approval of Shareholders of the Company and
accordingly Item No. 5 of the Notice is being placed
before the shareholders for their approval.

None of the Key Managerial Personnel or Directors of the
Company or their relatives have any interest or concern
inthe proposed resolution.

Rest clauses of existing AYM ESOP Scheme 2018
remains unchanged.

Abstract of the existing AYM ESOP Scheme 2018 are as
follows:

i. Identification of classes of employees entitled to
participate in AYM ESOP SCHEME 2018: Employees
in the category of the managerial personnel as
determined by NRC.

ii. Requirements of vesting and period of vesting:

The Employee Stock Options shall vest over a period
of five years in the following manner:

Period Vesting proportion
End of One Yearsfromthe |10 % of the options granted
date of Grant

End of Two Years from the
date of Grant

End of Three Years from the | 20 % of the options granted
date of Grant

10 % of the options granted

End of Four Years from the
date of Grant

End of Five Years from the
date of Grant

20 % of the options granted

40 % of the options granted
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AYM Syntex

Vi.

The options would vest only if the option grantee
continues to be in employment of the company at
the time the options are due to vest.

Maximum period within which the options shall be
vested:

The Employee Stock Options granted shall be
capable of being exercised in one or more tranches,
within a period of five years from the date of Vesting
of the respective Employee Stock Options. In
absence of any such exercise the options shall lapse.

Exercise price or pricing formula:

The Employee Stock Options shall be granted by the
Company at the price not less than face value of
equity share and shall not exceed market price of the
equity share of the Company as on date of grant of
Option which may be decided by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee at their discretion.
Payment of the Exercise Price, if any, shall be made
by a crossed cheque or a demand draft drawn in
favour of the Company, or in such other manner as
the NRC may decide.

Maximum number of options to be issued in
aggregate:

Not exceeding in aggregate 9,80,989 Options
entitling the Grantees for 9,80,989 equity shares of
the Company.

10

ITEMNO.6

The Company being in a textile industry has to
appoint cost auditor pursuant to notification dated
31" December, 2014 issued by the Ministry. The Board,
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has
appointed M/s. Kiran J Mehta & Co., Cost Auditors to
conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the
financial year ending March 31, 2020.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has
to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.
Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for
passing an Ordinary resolution as set out at tem No.6 of
the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to
M/s. Kiran J Mehta & Co., Cost Auditors for the financial
year ending March 31, 2020.

None of the Key Managerial Personnel or Directors of the
Company or their relatives have any interest or concern
inthe proposed resolution.

By order of the Board

Ashitosh Sheth
Company Secretary
ACS:25997
Place: Mumbai
Date: 29" July 2019
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Details of the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed pursuant to Regulation 26 (4) and 36(3) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on

General Meeting (SS-2):

Particulars

Director proposed to be Re-Appointed

Director proposed to be Appointed

Name of the Director

Mr. Rajesh R Mandawewala

Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala

Age and date of birth

57 years, 5" May 1962

32 years, 29" January 1987

Date of first appointment

16" July 1991

29" July 2019

Brief Resume (including profile,
qualification, experience and
expertise in specific functional
areas)

He is a qualified Chartered Accountant.
Under his guidance and supervision,
the operations have reached highest
efficiency level as well as economy of
operations, which has contributed to a
great extent to the profitability of the
Company. Under his able leadership,
the Company achieved handsome
performance, especially in exports and
development of marketing network
world over.

She has completed Bachelors of
Engineering in Information Technology
in July 20009 from D.J. Sanghvi College
Of Engineering with distinction.
Currently she is working with the
Company as Head HR, CSR & Corporate
Communication, Previously she has
worked with Welspun India Limited as
Deputy General Manager since 2012.

Shareholding in the Company (as on
the date of the Notice of AGM)

Nil

Nil

Relationship with other Director/
Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company

Yes, Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala,
Managing Director & CEO and Mrs.
Khushboo Mandawewala,

Yes, Mr. Rajesh R Mandawewala, Chairman
and Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala, Managing
Director & CEO

No. of Board Meetings attended

He has attended all the four meetings
held during the year.

NA, since she is appointed as Additional
Executive director w.e.f 29" July 2019.

Directorships held in other
companies (including the C
ompany as on the date of the
Notice of AGM)

Welspun India Limited

Welspun Corp Limited

Welspun Steel Limited

Mandawewala Enterprises Limited
Angel Power and Steel Private
Limited

Welspun Enterprises Limited
Welspun Global Brands Limited
Connective Infrasructure Private
Limited

RRM Realty Trader Private Limited
Welspun Advanced Materials Limited
Rank Marketing LLP

- Mandawewala Enterprises Limited
- Mertz Estates Limited
- Totsol Commercial Private Limited

Companies in which Director is
Chairman/Member* of the

Committee of the Board (as on
the date of the Notice of AGM)

Chairmanship - Nil

Member of Audit committee:

- Welspun India Limited

- Welspun Enterprises Limited

Member of Stakeholders Relationship
Committee

- Welspun Corp Limited

- Welspun India Limited

Nil

Terms and conditions of
re-appointment

As per the Draft Appointment
Letter

* Note: For the purpose of counting membership in Board Committee, Chairmanship/ Membership of the Audit Committee and
the Stakeholders Relationship Committee alone are considered.
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AYM Syntex Limited

(Corporate ldentification Mumber — LO9399DN 18983FLC0O00O04G)

Am Syntex Reg. Office: Survey No. 394 |P), village Saily, Silvassa, (U. T.) Dadra & Magar Haveli
e e Tel. No. +91-260-2640596/2640599, Fax Mo. + 91 260-2840597,

Corp. Office: Trade world, ‘B wing, 9th floor, Kamala city, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbal- 400013
Email: allcompanysecrataryofayms|@aymgroup.com; websile: www.aymsyntex.com

PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies iManagementand Administration) Rules, 2014

MName of the memkber (s):

Registered Address:

E-mail Id:

FolioNojctienttD] | | [ [ [ | [ [ [ | [ [ 1 [ | |

o0 [ [ [ [ [ 7 [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [ J |

If We being the member{s) of Equity Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1. Name :

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature; or failing him
2 Name) :

Address:

E-mail ld:

Signature: or failing him
3 Name) :

Acddciress:

E-mail lId:

Signature:

as my [ our proxy attend and vote (on a poll) for mie / us and on my / our behalf at the 36™ Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on Thursday, 19'" September 2019 at 12.00 Moon at the Registerad Offica of the Company at and at any adjournment thereof in
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below :

Item No. Subject of the Resolution

1 Consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statemen!, Report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon for the
Financial year ended 31" March 2019

2 Re-appointment of Mr. Rajesh R Mandawewala (DIN:00007179) as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation

3 Appointment of Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala (DIN: 068942156} as Director of the Company

a Appaintmeant of Mrs. Khushboo Mandawewala (DIN: 06942 156) as a Whaole time director of the Company

5 Amendment in AYM ESOP Scheme 2018

3] Ratification of remuneration payable to Cost Auditor

Signed this ........day of ......000000.2018,
Signature of shareholder Affix Re. 1
Revanue
stamp
Signature of Proxy Holderis): 1) 2) 3
Note:

The Form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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AYM Syntex

THE STRENGTH WITHIN

Head Office : AYM Syntex Limited
9th Floor, Trade World, B Wing, Kamala City,
Senapati Bapat Road, Lower Parel (W)
Mumbai - 400013, India

& +91-22-61637000
&1 +91-22-24937725
investorrelations@aymgroup.com

@ www.aymsyntex.com
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